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20 0.10%( )
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®
0.45 10
0.40 10 0.35
5,000 0.25 5,000
0.20 0.15
0.02
0.23 10
0.28 10 0.33
(
)
( )
2019 115,860.18
64,366.68 59,223.59 5,149.2
Q)
) () )
)

2019 1,881.48
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@
(2019 )
( ) )

2,895 11.53
2,723 10.84
914 3.64
782 3.11
757 3.01
687 2.74
400 1.59
396 1.58
311 1.24
307 1.22
291 1.16
202 0.80
195 0.78
182 0.72
180 0.72
157 0.63
105 0.42
105 0.42
100 0.40
100 0.40
11,789 46.95
3,441 13.70
1,127 4.49
718 2.86
681 2.71
513 2.04
342 1.36
212 0.84
101 0.40
7,135 28.41
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( ) )
1,470 5.85
861 3.43
94 0.37
65 0.26
36 0.14
2,526 10.06
254 1.01
237 0.94
100 0.40
95 0.38
82 0.33
37 0.15
12 0.05
817 3.25
600 2.39
442 1.76
46 0.18
24 0.10
22 0.09
14 0.06
8 0.03
2 0.01
1,158 4.61
3,581 14.26
826 3.29
177 0.70
-152 -0.61
27,857 110.93
-2,745 -10.93
25,112 100.00

( 2,954 )

(

)
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@
(2019 )
® C C O,
Spain Government Bond 0.350 | 2023 30 |1.858,518 | 1,850,000 1,887,561 | 7.52
Fannie Mae, TBA 3.500 | 2049 1,620,946 | 1,800,000 1,646,398 | 6.56
United Kingdom Gilt 3.250 | 2044 22 692,233 625,000 965,416 | 3.84
Treasury Inflation 1.750 | 2028 15 757,671 825,308 825,998 | 3.29
Protected Securities
Kingdom of Belgium
Covernment Band 2.250 | 2057 22 611,001 560,000 681,682 | 2.71
Nykredit Realkredit A/S 2.000 [2047 10 609,154 | 4,630,679 643,362 | 2.56
Spain Government Bond 1.400 |2028 30 595,252 600,000 642,463 | 2.56
Italy Buoni Ordinari
del Tesoro (0.232)| 2019 14 600,278 600,000 600,286 | 2.39
Fannie Mae 3.500 [ 2049 538,732 595,565 545,415 | 2.17
10 |Agence Francaise de 0.500 |2022 10 25 510,755 500,000 513,174 | 2.04
Developpement
Nederlandse
11 | yaterschapsbank NV 0.500 [ 2023 19 461,432 450,000 463,442 | 1.85
12 | Freddie Mac 3.500 | 2048 408,659 476,863 436,957 | 1.74
13 | Jyske Realkredit A/S 2.000 [2050 10 407,830 | 3,094,002 425,837 | 1.70
14 |Dexia Credit Local S.A. 0.625 [ 2022 21 408,099 400,000 409,260 | 1.63
Nordea Kredit
15 | ponlkreditaktieselskab 2.000 | 2050 10 381,464 | 2,896,738 399,548 | 1.50
Italy Buoni Poliennali
16 | 4ol Tesoro 1.750 | 2024 400,550 400,000 397,176 | 1.58
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
17 | gank Ltd. (0.570) | 2019 382,320 382,320 382,320 | 1.52
18 | Jyske Realkredit A/S 1.500 | 2050 10 375,221 | 2,800,000 379,081 | 1.51
19 |Nykredit Realkredit A/S 1.500 2050 10 316,957 | 2,394,749 324,215 | 1.29
oo | !taly Buoni Poliennali 3.850 | 2049 298,689 300,000 320,597 | 1.28
del Tesoro
21 gKg Bank Hipoteczny 0.750 | 2024 24 304,030 300,000 306,848 | 1.22
22 |spain Government Bond 2.700 2048 10 31 203,527 200,000 237,663 | 0.95
23 ?‘r’zgg‘”e‘” Home Loan 2.680 |2036 10 25 204,509 250,000 216,406 | 0.86
Morocco Government
24 || torrational Bond 4.500 [2020 10 199,838 200,000 211,841 | 0.84
25 |Bank of Montreal 0.750 | 2022 21 203,914 200,000 206,232 | 0.82
26 |Autonomous Community of 4.950 | 2020 11 | 204,080 200,000 206,177 | 0.82
Catalonia
27 | Province of ontario 2.400 | 2026 205,286 300,000 203,449 | 0.81
Sparebanken Soer
28 | potigkreditt A/S 0.250 | 2021 22 201,257 200,000 202,055 | 0.80
29 | Spain Government Bond 0.050 | 2021 31 200,663 200,000 201,363 | 0.80
30 gg:;ed Technologies 0.000 | 2020 18 200,247 200,000 200,234 | 0.80

(2019
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(2019 )
(€))

2019
45,450,449 5,346,336,316 8.77 1,032
41,410,018 4,871,060,417 8.84 1,040
10 37,698,761 4,434,505, 256 9.38 1,103
1 35,089,794 4,127,612,468 9.80 1,153
12 35,246,796 4,146,080,613 10.25 1,206
13 32,440,928 3,816,026,361 10.42 1,226
14 26,939,009 3,168,835,629 10.38 1,221
15 27,093,279 3,186,982,409 10.50 1,235
16 25,757,362 3,029,838,492 10.40 1,223
17 25,111,840 2,953,905, 739 10.71 1,260
2018 25,357,558 2,982,809,548 10.32 1,214
10 25,357,613 2,982,816,017 10.31 1,213
11 25,285,370 2,974,318,073 10.29 1,210
12 25,256,428 2,970,913,626 10.30 1,212
2019 25,683,534 3,021,154,104 10.47 1,232
25,701,988 3,023,324,848 10.49 1,234
26,164,414 3,077,720,019 10.67 1,255
26,080,802 3,067,884,739 10.63 1,250
26,271,986 3,090,373,713 10.71 1,260
25,440,790 2,992,600,128 10.84 1,275
26,155,299 3,076,647,821 10.98 1,292
26,602,495 3,129,251,487 11.18 1,315

)
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0.226604892 26.656
0.258215956 30.374
10 0.272048734 32.001
11 0.198548392 23.355
12 0.123166264 14.488
13 0.765302711 90.023
14 0.091291480 10.739
15 0.070361437 8.277
16 0.087322777 10.272
17 0.126751009 14.910
2019 0.008495980 0.999
0.006234684 0.733
0.004762208 0.560
(@)

15.49

3.74

10 9.19

11 6.59

12 5.85

13 9.12

14 0.49

15 1.83

16 -0.12

17 4.20

) () 100x(a b)y b
a

b (
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®

78,540 1,225,256 5,182,498

(78,540) (1,225,256) (5,182,498)

278,700 774,492 4,686,706

(278,700) (774,492) (4,686,706)

10 52,040 721,575 4,017,171
(52,040) (721,575) (4,017,171)

n 281,650 717,806 3,581,015
(281, 650) (717,806) (3,581,015)

1 108,160 251,874 3,437,301
(108,160) (251,874) (3,437,301)

13 192,190 515,414 3,114,077
(192,190) (515,414) (3,114,077)

1 127,440 645,585 2,595,932
(127,440) (645,585) (2,595,932)

15 238,850 255,307 2,579,475
238,850) 255,307) (2,579,475)

16 21,310 124,931 2,475,854
(21,310) (124,931) (2,475,854)

17 27,250 158,075 2,345,029
(27,250) (158,075) (2,345,029)

) (
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(b)

USA (USA PATRIOT ACT) (The U.S. Bank Secrecy
Act)

( )
CSSF 08/387(CSSF 10/476

) CSSF CSSF
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2019 31
110.8%
4.3%
1.6%
Anheuser-Busch InBev S.A.
0.875% due 03/17/2022 EUR 100 EUR 102
Barry Callebaut Services NV
5.500% due 06/15/2023 $ 200 193
Euroclear Bank S.A.
0.092% due 03/08/2021 EUR 100 101
396
2.T%
Kingdom of Belgium Government Bond
2.250% due 06/22/2057 560 681
1,077
( EUR 1,015)
2.7%
1.2%
Bank of Montreal
0.750% due 09/21/2022 200 206
Fairfax Financial Holdings Ltd.
2.750% due 03/29/2028 100 105
311
0.1%
Canadian Mortgage Pools
2.289% due 07/01/2020 CAD 54 36
1.4%
Province of Alberta
2.350% due 06/01/2025 100 68
Province of Ontario
2.400% due 06/02/2026 300 204
Province of Quebec
3.500% due 12/01/2022 100 70
342
689
( EUR 686)
0.7%
0.7%
QNB Finance Ltd.
3.872% due 05/31/2021 $ 200 182
182
( EUR 170)
0.4%
0.4%
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd.
0.240% due 10/12/2020 EUR 100 100
100
( EUR 100)
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« )
2019 31
( ) ( )
10.8%
10.8%
Jyske Realkredit A/S
1.000% due 01/01/2020 DKK 500 EUR 68
1.500% due 10/01/2050 2,800 379
2.000% due 10/01/2047 699 97
2.000% due 10/01/2050 3,094 426
3.000% due 10/01/2047 30 4
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab
2.000% due 10/01/2047 256 35
2.000% due 10/01/2050 2,897 399
2.500% due 10/01/2047 43 6
3.000% due 10/01/2047 13 2
Nykredit Realkredit A/S
0.189% due 10/01/2022 EUR 100 101
1.500% due 10/01/2047 DKK 8 1
1.500% due 10/01/2050 2,395 324
2.000% due 10/01/2047 4,631 643
2.000% due 10/01/2050 999 138
2.500% due 10/01/2036 3 0
2.500% due 10/01/2047 109 16
Realkredit Danmark A/S
2.000% due 10/01/2047 437 61
2.500% due 07/01/2036 82 12
2.500% due 07/01/2047 39 6
3.000% due 07/01/2046 36 5
2,723
( EUR 2,622)
5_5%
0.4%
Purple Master Credit Cards
0.082% due 10/25/2030 EUR 100 100
3.0%
Altice France S.A.
5.625% due 05/15/2024 100 103
Dexia Credit Local S.A.
0.500% due 01/17/2025 100 103
0.625% due 01/21/2022 400 409
Pernod Ricard S.A.
5.750% due 04/07/2021 $ 150 142
757
2.1%
Agence Francaise de Developpement
0.500% due 10/25/2022 EUR 500 513
1,370
( EUR 1,355)
4.1%
1.0%
Bavarian Sky S.A.
0.034% due 06/20/2025 65 65
Driver Multi-Compartment S_A.
0.032% due 02/21/2026 46 46
0.032% due 08/21/2026 85 85
Red & Black Auto Germany 4 UG haftungsbeschrankt
0.134% due 09/15/2025 58 58
254
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« )
2019 31
( ) ( )
3.1%
Deutsche Bank AG
0.192% due 12/07/2020 EUR 100 EUR 99
4.250% due 10/14/2021 $ 100 90
Deutsche Hypothekenbank AG
1.100% due 03/22/2021 GBP 100 113
Deutsche Pfandbriefbank AG
2.250% due 05/04/2020 $ 200 179
IHO Verwaltungs GmbH
3.750% due 09/15/2026 (a) EUR 100 100
Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen Girozentrale
0.000% due 07/18/2022 100 101
Volkswagen Bank GmbH
0.110% due 06/15/2021 100 100
782
1,036
( EUR 1,044)
1.1%
0.1%
SCF Rahoituspalvelut Kimi VI DAC
0.032% due 11/25/2026 37 37
0.7%
Iberdrola Finance Ireland DAC
5.000% due 09/11/2019 $ 100 90
Shire Acquisitions Investments Ireland DAC
1.900% due 09/23/2019 100 90
180
0.3%
Bluestep Mortgage Securities No.3 DAC
1.453% due 05/10/2063 SEK 233 22
Bluestep Mortgage Securities No.4 DAC
0.412% due 08/10/2066 EUR 43 43
65
282
( EUR 286)
3.5%
0.6%
UniCredit SpA
3.250% due 01/14/2021 150 157
2.9%
Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro
1.750% due 07/01/2024 400 397
3.850% due 09/01/2049 300 321
718
875
( EUR 857)
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2019 31
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0.4%
0.4%
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.
0.141% due 06/14/2022 EUR 100 EUR 100
100
( EUR 100)
0.4%
0.4%
Atrium European Real Estate Ltd.
3.000% due 09/11/2025 100 105
105
( EUR 99)
2.5%
0.9%
Bavarian Sky S.A.
0.034% due 10/20/2024 44 44
Compartment VCL 25
0.032% due 09/21/2023 34 35
Compartment VCL 27
0.032% due 08/21/2024 157 158
237
1.6%
Allergan Funding SCS
3.000% due 03/12/2020 $ 100 90
Aroundtown S.A.
1.500% due 07/15/2024 EUR 100 102
Blackstone Property Partners Europe Holdings Sarl
2.200% due 07/24/2025 100 103
Gazprom OAO Via Gaz Capital S.A.
2.949% due 01/24/2024 100 105
400
637
( EUR 616)
0.8%
0.8%
Morocco Government International Bond
4.500% due 10/05/2020 200 212
212
( EUR 200)
4.1%
0.1%
Chapel BV
0.050% due 07/17/2066 12 12
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« )
2019 31
( ) ( )
3.6%
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV
0.500% due 01/19/2023 EUR 450 EUR 464
1.625% due 01/29/2048 100 115
NN Group NV
4.500% due 01/15/2026 (b) 100 105
Syngenta Finance NV
3.698% due 04/24/2020 $ 200 180
Vonovia Finance BV
0.875% due 03/30/2020 EUR 50 50
914
0.4%
Dutch Property Finance BV
0.318% due 04/28/2051 94 94
1,020
( EUR 981)
0.8%
0.8%
Sparebanken Soer Boligkreditt A/S
0.250% due 03/22/2021 200 202
202
( EUR 201)
1.2%
1.2%
PKO Bank Hipoteczny S.A.
0.750% due 01/24/2024 300 307
307
( EUR 304)
14.5%
0.4%
Asset-Backed European Securitisation Transaction Thirteen FT
0.029% due 08/23/2030 81 82
0.4%
Merlin Properties Socimi S.A.
2.375% due 05/23/2022 100 105
13.7%
Autonomous Community of Catalonia
4.900% due 09/15/2021 150 162
4.950% due 02/11/2020 200 206
Autonomous Community of Valencia
4.900% due 03/17/2020 100 104
Spain Government Bond
0.050% due 01/31/2021 200 201
0.350% due 07/30/2023 (h) 1,850 1,888
1.400% due 07/30/2028 600 642
2.700% due 10/31/2048 200 238
3,441
3,628
( EUR 3,504)
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2019 31
( ) ( )
0-4%
0.4%
European Stability Mechanism
0.000% due 01/17/2022 EUR 100 EUR 101
101
( EUR 100)
0.8%
0.8%
Molnlycke Holding AB
1.875% due 02/28/2025 100 105
Svenska Handelsbanken AB
2.400% due 10/01/2020 $ 100 90
195
( EUR 189)
1.2%
1.2%
Credit Suisse AG
1.000% due 06/07/2023 EUR 100 103
UBS AG
5.125% due 05/15/2024 (c) $ 200 188
291
( EUR 279)
13.1%
2.7T%
BG Energy Capital PLC
4.000% due 10/15/2021 200 185
HSBC Holdings PLC
0.578% due 12/04/2021 EUR 100 101
5.100% due 04/05/2021 $ 100 94
Lloyds Bank PLC
4.000% due 09/29/2020 EUR 100 106
NatWest Markets PLC
0.590% due 09/27/2021 100 100
Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC
2.000% due 03/04/2025 100 101
687
5.9%
Aggregator of Loans Backed by Assets PLC
1.016% due 03/17/2039 GBP 67 71
1.980% due 04/24/2049 53 60
Dukinfield PLC
1.806% due 08/15/2045 49 55
Eurohome UK Mortgages PLC
0.995% due 06/15/2044 58 63
Eurosail PLC
1.005% due 12/15/2044 13 15
Eurosail-UK PLC
0.993% due 03/13/2045 51 57
Gosforth Funding PLC
0.139% due 02/15/2058 EUR 100 100
Great Hall Mortgages No.1 PLC
0.000% due 03/18/2039 29 29
Landmark Mortgage Securities No.3 PLC
1.107% due 04/17/2044 GBP 40 43
Ludgate Funding PLC
1.001% due 01/01/2061 62 66
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Newgate Funding PLC
0.975% due 12/15/2050 GBP 30 EUR 34
Paragon Mortgages No.13 PLC
1.061% due 01/15/2039 83 89
Residential Mortgage Acceptance Corporation Securities No.1 PLC
1.015% due 06/12/2044 168 181
Residential Mortgage Securities 28 PLC
1.995% due 06/15/2046 34 38
Ripon Mortgages PLC
1.604% due 08/20/2056 78 88
Silverstone Master Issuer PLC
0.009% due 01/21/2070 EUR 78 78
0.139% due 01/21/2070 100 100
Southern Pacific Securities PLC
1.143% due 03/10/2044 GBP 54 60
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Granite4 PLC
1.855% due 10/20/2051 100 114
Warwick Finance Residential Mortgages No Two PLC
2.339% due 09/21/2049 113 129
1,470
4.5%
United Kingdom Gilt
3.250% due 01/22/2044 625 965
3.500% due 01/22/2045 100 162
1,127
3,284
( EUR 3,084)
32.9%
0.4%
SLM Student Loan Trust
1.393% due 03/15/2038 88 95
11.5%
Air Lease Corp.
3.000% due 09/15/2023 $ 100 89
Amgen, Inc.
1.250% due 02/25/2022 EUR 100 103
Bank of America Corp.
0.471% due 05/04/2023 150 151
Bank of New York Mellon Corp.
2.200% due 08/16/2023 $ 200 177
BAT Capital Corp.
3.398% due 08/15/2022 100 90
Berkshire Hathaway, Inc.
0.250% due 01/17/2021 EUR 100 101
Charter Communications Operating LLC
4.908% due 07/23/2025 $ 100 95
Citigroup, Inc.
0.519% due 05/24/2021 EUR 100 101
Daimler Finance North America LLC
2.450% due 05/18/2020 $ 200 179
Discovery Communications LLC
2.800% due 06/15/2020 100 90
Energy Transfer Partners LP
5.750% due 09/01/2020 100 92
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ERAC USA Finance LLC
2.600% due 12/01/2021 $ 100 EUR 89
Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC
8.125% due 01/15/2020 100 92
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
0.141% due 12/16/2020 EUR 100 100
0.322% due 09/09/2022 100 100
1.375% due 05/15/2024 150 154
3.752% due 04/23/2020 $ 100 90
Incitec Pivot Finance LLC
6.000% due 12/10/2019 100 91
Kraft Heinz Foods Co.
3.115% due 02/10/2021 100 90
Masco Corp.
5.950% due 03/15/2022 100 97
Morgan Stanley
0.087% due 05/21/2021 EUR 100 100
Navient Corp.
4.875% due 06/17/2019 $ 70 63
United Technologies Corp.
0.000% due 05/18/2020 EUR 200 200
Volkswagen Group of America Finance LLC
2.400% due 05/22/2020 $ 200 179
Wells Fargo & Co.
3.813% due 10/31/2023 200 182
2,895
3.4%
Banc of America Mortgage Trust
4.494% due 02/25/2035 59 54
BCAP LLC Trust
4.916% due 03/26/2037 43 39
Chase Mortgage Finance Trust
4.358% due 01/25/2036 68 61
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
3.133% due 03/25/2032 3 2
Downey Savings & Loan Association Mortgage Loan Trust
3.281% due 09/19/2044 58 52
GSAMP Trust
2.570% due 06/25/2036 60 53
JPMorgan Mortgage Acquisition Trust
2.560% due 08/25/2036 94 83
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
3.210% due 02/25/2034 48 43
Option One Mortgage Loan Trust
2.620% due 01/25/2036 10 9
Residential Accredit Securities Corporation Trust
2.830% due 12/25/2035 75 67
4.155% due 11/25/2034 117 109
Soundview Home Loan Trust
2.680% due 10/25/2036 250 216
Structured Asset Securities Corporation Mortgage Loan Trust
2.565% due 07/25/2036 15 14
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
2.208% due 02/27/2034 22 20
2.890% due 04/25/2045 44 39
861
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14.3%
Fannie Mae
2.944% due 07/25/2039 $ 115 EUR 105
3.500% due 04/01/2049 596 545
Fannie Mae, TBA
3.500% due 07/01/2049 (d) 1,800 1,646
Freddie Mac
1.777% due 01/15/2038 (e) 45 3
2.852% due 01/15/2038 45 40
3.500% due 09/01/2048 477 437
4.599% due 09/01/2037 91 86
Ginnie Mae
3.008% due 10/20/2062 94 85
3.243% due 01/20/2066 161 145
3.273% due 09/20/2066 183 165
3.293% due 06/20/2066 177 160
3.293% due 07/20/2066 86 78
3.343% due 11/20/2066 95 86
3,581
3.3%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities
1.750% due 01/15/2028 (f) 825 826
8,258
( EUR 7,951)
4._6%
2.2%
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd.
0.660% due 06/03/2019 AUD 1 1
1.890% due 06/03/2019 $ 1 1
Bank of Nova Scotia
0.840% due 06/03/2019 CAD 5 4
1.890% due 06/03/2019 $ 11 10
BNP Paribas Bank
(0.570%) due 06/03/2019 EUR 21 21
5.900% due 06/03/2019 ZAR 40 3
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(0.900%) due 06/03/2019 DKK 2 0
(0.570%) due 06/03/2019 EUR 2 2
(0.450%) due 06/03/2019 SEK 15 2
0.370% due 06/03/2019 GBP 0 1
0.370% due 06/03/2019 NOK 2 0
5.900% due 06/03/2019 ZAR 5 0
Citibank N.A.
0.370% due 06/03/2019 GBP 2 2
1.890% due 06/03/2019 $ 6 5
DBS Bank Ltd.
1.890% due 06/03/2019 8 8
HSBC Bank PLC
(0.570%) due 06/03/2019 EUR 35 35
0.370% due 06/03/2019 GBP 10 11
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
1.890% due 06/03/2019 $ 11 10
MUFG Bank Ltd.
(0.230%) due 06/03/2019 \ 81 1
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
(0.570%) due 06/03/2019 EUR 23 23
1.890% due 06/03/2019 $ 1 1
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Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
(0.570%) due 06/03/2019 EIR 382 EWR 382
(0.230%) due 06/03/2019 \ 15 0
0.370% due 06/03/2019 GBP 24 27
1.890% due 06/03/2019 $ 9 8
558
2.4%
Italy Buoni Ordinari del Tesoro
(0.232%) due 08/14/2019 (g) EUWR 600 600
1,158
( EUR 1,158)
110.8% EUR 27,832
( EUR 26,901)
HE ©.1% &)
( EUR 1)
(10.7%) (2,684)
100.0% EUR 25,112
(C
*
@)
()
©
@
(O)
@
@
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2019 31
1
( ) ( ) o
IND (0.290%) 04/17/2019 07/18/2019 EUR (406) EUR (406)
EUR (406)
30 31 90 90
EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR (406) EUR 0 EWR (406)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR (406) EUR 0 EWR (406)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR (406) EUR 0 EWR (406)
EUR 406
2019 31 « )
(h) 2019 31 408
(&3]
IND EUR 0 EUR  (406) EUR 0 EWR 0 EUIR  (406) EUR 408 EUR 2
EUR 0 EUR (406) EUR 0 EUR 0
(1)2019 31 1,373 (0.348%)

@
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@®
( )

Euro-Bobl 5-Year Note June Futures Short  06/2019 1 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0
Euro-Bobl 5-Year Note September Futures Long 09/2019 36 10 4 0
Euro-BTP 3-Year Note June Futures Long 06/2019 1 0 0 0
Euro-BTP 10-Year Bond June Futures Long 06/2019 4 10 0 (€D)
Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond June Futures Short  06/2019 3 0 0 0
Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond September Futures Long  09/2019 45 19 16 0
Euro-Buxl 30-Year Bond June Futures Short  06/2019 1 0 0 (€H)
Euro-Buxl 30-Year Bond September Futures Short  09/2019 1 0 0 0
Euro-0AT 10-Year Bond June Futures Long  06/2019 1 2 0 0
Euro-Schatz 2-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2019 47 (@) 0 (@)
U.S. Treasury 5-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2019 51 (46) 0 (23)
United Kingdom Treasury 10-Year Gilt September Futures Long  09/2019 18 13 3 0
Call Option Strike @ EUR 113.800 on Euro-Schatz 2-Year
Note September 2019 Futures Long 08/2019 55 0 0 0
Call Option Strike @ EUR 167.000 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Short  06/2019 2 ®) 0 @
Call Option Strike @ EUR 169.500 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Short  06/2019 2 @ 0 @
Call Option Strike @ EUR 171.000 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Short  07/2019 2 0 0 @
Put Option Strike @ EUR 129.500 on Euro-Bobl 5-Year
Note September 2019 Futures Long 08/2019 34 0 0 0
Put Option Strike @ EUR 148.000 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Long 08/2019 10 0 0 0
Put Option Strike @ EUR 153.000 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Long 08/2019 8 0 0 0
Put Option Strike @ EUR 167.000 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Short  06/2019 2 2 0 )
Put Option Strike @ EUR 167.500 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Short  06/2019 2 ! 0 @
Put Option Strike @ EUR 169.000 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond September 2019 Futures Short  07/2019 2 0 0 @

EUR 1 EUR 23 EUR [€1))
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o
2019
31
2 3
( ) @ ®
Lloyds Bank PLC 1.000%  12/20/2021 0.326% EUR 100 EUR 2 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0
_ ()]
3 4
( ) @ @
iTraxx Europe Series 31 Index 1.000%  06/20/2024 EUR 1,900 EUR 31 EUR (3) EWR 0 EUR 0
(¢ )
3-Month Canadian
Bank Bill 2.200%  06/16/2026 CAD 400 EUR (7) EWR 12 EUR 0 ELR ()
3-Month SEK-STIBOR 1.013%  01/23/2025 SEK 200 1 0 0 0
3-Month SEK-STIBOR 1.023%  01/23/2025 1,600 7 4 0 0
EUR 1 EUR 16 EUR 0 EIR (1
EUR 34 EUR 13 EUR 0 EUIR (D)

2019 31

@) 2019 31 416

EUR

0 EUWR 23 EWR 0 ER 23 EWR 0 EWR (7)) ER (D EWR (38)

@

@

®
*
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(QY)
AZD 0672019 SGD 36 $ 27 EUR 0 EWR 0
BOA 08/2019 EUR 84 NOK 825 1 0
BPS 06/2019 DKK 496 EUR 66 0 0
BPS 06/2019 EUR 370 $ 413 1 0
BPS 06/2019 D) 2,166 70 2 0
BPS 06/2019 $ 188 EUR 167 0 @
BPS 06/2019 73 PEN 243 0 @
BPS 08/2019 GBP 75 EUR 86 2 0
BPS 08/2019 $ 272 RUB 17,733 4 )
CBK 06/2019 KRW 82,309 $ 74 4 0
CBK 06/2019 $ 74 COP 232,525 0 5)
CBK 08/2019 EUR 36 GBP 32 0 0
GLM 06/2019 $ 73 KRW 83,481 0 ®)
GLM 08/2019 EUR 613 SEK 6,642 13 0
HUS 06/2019 1,262 $ 1,421 13 0
HUS 06/2019 SGD 64 47 1 0
HUS 06/2019 $ 72 MXN 1,367 0 @
HUS 06/2019 40 WD 1,256 0 0
HUS 11/2019 WD 1,256 $ 40 0 @
JPM 06/2019 EUR 37 42 0 0
JPM 06/2019 $ 129 EUR 115 0 0
JPM 06/2019 208 PLN 788 0 0
JPM 06/2019 13 WD 405 0 0
JPM 07/2019 DKK 4,865 EUR 652 0 0
JPM 07/2019 $ 77 HUF 21,090 0 @
JPM 08/2019 SEK 2,850 EUR 264 0 )
JPM 11/2019 WD 405 $ 13 0 0
MY 1 07/2019 DKK 2,995 EUR 401 0 0
WY1 08/2019 CAD 577 380 0 0
RYL 06/2019 MXN 1,389 $ 70 1 @
SCX 06/2019 $ 16 WD 505 0 0
SCX 08/2019 EUR 475 CHF 537 5 0
SCX 08/2019 1,567 GBP 1,357 0 (36)
Scx 08/2019 $ 81 CZK 1,857 0 @
SCX 11/2019 WD 505 $ 16 0 0
Scx 01/2020 DKK 500 EUR 67 0 0
S0G 08/2019 $ 23 RUB 1,488 0 0
TOR 06/2019 COP 232,525 $ 69 0 0
TOR 06/2019 EUR 6,824 7,612 7 0
TOR 07/2019 $ 69 COP 232,525 1 0
TOR 07/2019 7,630 EUR 6,824 0 )
UAG 06/2019 9,176 8,211 0 (24)

EUR 55 EUR (10D)
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( ) ()

Call - OTC 2-Year Interest

GLM Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.513% 12/05/2019 7,600 EUR 24 EUR 94
Call - OTC 2-Year Interest

MYC Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.250% 12/18/2019 3,800 7 32
Call - OTC 2-Year Interest

MYC Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.500%  02/20/2020 3,900 15 51

EUR 46 EUR 177

C ) wW

Call - OTC 30-Year Interest

BPS Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.776% 12/05/2019 370 EUR (9) EWR (35)
Call - OTC 30-Year Interest

FBF Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.770% 12/05/2019 400 (©)) (38)
Call - OTC 5-Year Interest

MYC Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.525%  02/20/2020 1,600 (15) (45)
Call - OTC 30-Year Interest

MYC Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.642% 12/18/2019 400 (8) (30)

EUR (41) EUR  (148)
Put - iTraxx Europe Series

GST 30 Index 2.400% 09/18/2019 400 EUR (1) EWR 0
Put - iTraxx Europe Series

GST 31 Index 0.950% 09/18/2019 700 (€Y) (€Y)

GST Put - CDX.1G-32 Index 0.950% 09/18/2019 1,600 (2) (3)

EUR (4) EWR (4)
EUR  (45) EIR  (152)
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2019 31
2019 31 0TC
oTC
@
AZD EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0
BOA 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
BPS 9 0 0 9 ®) (35) 0 (43) (34) 0 (34)
CBK 4 0 0 4 ) 0 0 ) (¢ 0 (6
FBF 0 0 0 0 0 (38) 0 (38) (38) 0 (38)
GLM 13 94 0 107 3) 0 0 ®3) 104 0 104
GST 0 0 0 0 0 () 0 O) O] 0 (O]
HUS 14 0 0 14 3) 0 0 3) 11 0 11
JPM 0 0 0 0 (11) 0 0 (11) (11) 0 (11)
MYC 0 83 0 83 0 (75) 0 (75) 8 0 8
MYl 0 0 0 0 (&) 0 0 ) @) 0 @)
RYL 1 0 0 1 () 0 0 o 0 0 0
SCX 5 0 0 5 @37 0 0 (37) (32) 0 (32)
S0G 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOR 8 0 0 8 [©) 0 0 ) 1 0 1
UAG 0 0 0 0 (24) 0 0 (24) (24) 0 (24)
EUR 55 EUR 177 EUR 0 EUR 232 EUR (101) EUR (152) EUR 0 EUR (253)
(€]
() 0TC
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2019 31
2019 31
EUR 0 EUWR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EWR 23 EWR 23
0 0 0 0 0 0
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 23 EUR 23
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUWR 0 EUR 55 EUR 0 EUR 55
0 0 0 0 177 177
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 55 EUR 177 EUR 232
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 55 EUR 200 EUR 255
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUWR 0 EUR 0 EUWR (37) EWR @7
0 0 0 0 @) @
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EWR (38) EUR (38)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR  (101) EUR 0 EUBR  (101)
0 4) 0 0 (148) (152)
EUR 0 EUR (4) EUR 0 EUR  (101) EUR  (148) EIR  (253)
EUR 0 EUR (4) EUR 0 EUR  (101) ELR  (186) EUR  (291)
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2019 31
2019 31
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EUWR 0 EWR 5 EUR 5
0 0 0 0 562 562
0 20 0 0 27 47
EUR 0 EUR 20 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 504 EUR 614
EUR 0 EUWR 0 EWR 0 EUR (1,406) EUR 0 EUR (1,406)
0 0 0 0 1 1
0 3 0 3 14 20
0 5 0 0 5 10
EUR 0 EWR 8 EWR 0 EUR (1,403) EUR 20 EUR (1,375)
EUR 0 EUR 28 EUR 0 EUR (1,403) EUR 614 EWR  (761)
EUR 0 EUWR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EWR 1 EWR 1
0 0 0 0 1) )
0 3) 0 0 (121) (124)
EUR 0 EUR (3) EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR  (191) EUR  (194)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EUR 495 EUR 0 EWR 495
0 0 0 0 136 136
0 3 0 ) (100) (99)
0 0 0 0 @) @
EUR 0 EUWR 3 EWR 0 EUR 493 ELR 35 EUR 531
EUR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 493 EUR  (156) EUR 337
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2019 31
2019 31
2019 31
EUR 0 EWR 396 EUR 0 EWR 396
0 681 0 681
0 311 0 311
0 36 0 36
0 342 0 342
0 182 0 182
0 100 0 100
0 2,723 0 2,723
0 100 0 100
0 757 0 757
0 513 0 513
0 254 0 254
0 782 0 782
0 37 0 37
0 180 0 180
0 65 0 65
0 157 0 157
0 718 0 718
0 100 0 100
0 105 0 105
0 237 0 237
0 400 0 400
0 212 0 212
0 12 0 12
0 914 0 914
0 94 0 94
0 202 0 202
0 307 0 307
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2019 31
2019 31
EUR 0 EUR 82 EUR 0 EUR 82
0 105 0 105
0 3,441 0 3,441
0 101 0 101
0 195 0 195
0 291 0 291
0 687 0 687
0 1,470 0 1,470
0 1,127 0 1,127
0 95 0 95
0 2,895 0 2,895
0 861 0 861
0 3,581 0 3,581
0 826 0 826
0 1,158 0 1,158
EUR 0 EUR 27,832 EUR 0 EUR 27,832
23 0 0 23
0 232 0 232
EUR 23 EUR 232 EUR 0 EUR 255
@37 @ 0 (38)
0 (253) 0 (253)
EUR (37) EUR (254) EUR 0 EUR (291)
EUR (14) EUR 27,810 EUR 0 EWR 27,796

2019 31
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities
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I 0
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Diver e o 10181 i a0
Payeide lor i 3 rurchas] w0 7] -l
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Statements of Assets and Liahilities icant
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Statements of Operations conu

FICO

irergag PRAL
Markey Bl Tl Pernew PR Rl PN S
Fared B [ [ —— e sty
Investment Income:
intaresi, met cf formign tames” 3 14 A Wk 137§ 1w
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1 A4 Ea7 1387 13,841
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) o [ 1
[y ' NIk 160
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I 1 HiA N/ fi
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Het Investment Income 1353 i1 i 9541
Het Realized Gain |Loss):
W cumlet el ol lermgn tine 1 128 2571 5|
4L o
i cheares nancil derative matnement: l 1] 1
fexl £ wATNE TR el 03D 1375 im [FEGH
] 155
d ILoag 74 5841 HEE ryl] 18, 15§
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1 Finanei atements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fund descussed in this teport feach @ “Fand™ and collectavely, the “Funcs ™), which abso includes eact dass of units of that Fund [zach a "Class™ and collectively,
The “Chises ™), B a senies tnnd of FINCO Bermuda Truse {ihe “Trust™), a0 open-ecded unit rust establehed undier the L of Bermode & g mult-senie Trust purseant
10 & frust ceed exsoted by Winchester Global Trust Compasy Liméted on August B, 2001 (3s 2mended Irom time o tima, the *Trust Deed”). Effectve as of the close
af business ([Eastern tme) on Nowercber 28, 2006, Winchester Globa! Trust Company Limited eetired and was discharged as tiustes of the Trust and Bzovwn Brothers
Harriman Trest Company (Cayman) Limited was appointed as new trustoe of the Trest for the owners of units of the Funds (e "Unithalders”). Effective as of the close
aif busingss (Easiem Tme) on heptembes 19, 2017, Brewe Broches Hasimas 1oust Compasy (Cayman) Limned retited and was dschanged & mustes of te Tret and
htaghes Trustee Sevices (Sermuda) Limited was appointed as new mustee of the Tiust As usec in this repart, all refevences 1o the “Trustee” shall mean the person
1hen wrving as nntee o the Trust Pacifc krvestment M.'u'.Jgﬁr.rrn Company LLC [TPIMCO,” the 'J-.".1r:.1r_,|cr' of B " Inyesiment Advesen ™) i Be sponsar of and wad
resporrible for sircturing the Trist

The Trust is subjedt ba regulation and supervision as prowvided For i the Irvestmen Funds At 2006 and related rules refating to standard funds

The 1enme of the Trust Deed confer upen the Trustee, with the cosdent of the Manbger, the poswer, in the futwre, 10 establah furthey funds in addition 1o the Fonds
currently in operaticn & of the date of this repont

Thee Funds prevenied in this report ane Ested below

Funt e te
PR Bormuda Farowgn Low Dumation Fund 0 taresd conhy 1o Aandla widh & “Fund of Funds™ siructene, os dalmad mn B rulos of tho |
PG Bormuxda LS. Low Dusatien Fand Imvostmart Tousts Associmtion, Japan, or tn fencl with 3 samdae siructuse in any other
PIRC Emesrging Markety Boo Fond |TT) Juriadiction

PIRACE) Frrwsarping Markcats Bisst Forel [Yor-Hacdpadi
PIMCT Emerging Markety Boad Ford [l

"m'ihnfiiﬁﬂﬁuﬁﬁ'ﬂ o Oftered bo rotel invesion in Japan by way of public offaring theough a desributor in
MG fpal Return Fundi Japan, s may be olleind 1o athes srestons al the decreton of e Masage . |
| TRAC] ST Seratogy” | Dfiarad to retad srvestors i Japan by way of pubic alfarng through @ decribaior and'or @ |
saiey herdbing comgay i Jafan. and may be alfeied [ ather rvesioes af the distetan
of tha Manager
| PANACE] Emerring Markets Baeet Furd iH) | Dfared ey v sthe: Furck: 1 serve a3 uncerlyng avestnunt vahices for such Fuck
" [ JLFTE e ST (e o' v (MCTT ey T Sratagy o alfray iy o ol il ¢ Tomd! of ol ™ iPuiiiom. i e 8 e i W P dmemmieew [ g dinmontis Sguisl o ¥ irull mif] 3 wsule g haid i iy e jhnclly e

Units ol the PIMCD Eurg Tozal Retatn Fund, PIMCO Read Beturn Fund, aod AUD, JPT, and USD Clisses of PINKCO Shon-Term Strabegy have been requsened under the
Financial Instiuments and Exchasie Laww of lapan. Uaits of sach af the iemaning Furck and the | IFY) and §(LISD) Classes ol PIMCO Shart-Tearn SMrategy have ot
beens and are not curently expected to be registered under the Financial instruments and Excharge Law of lapan. Accordingly, such Urets of these Funds may not be,
directly or indirectly, offared in lapan or to any risident i lapan, extept in compliance with applicable Japanese laws and ||:Iqu'.1'.i.1n'.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

The fallowing ts a summary of significant acoounting pofices consistently foliowed by the Trust in the peeparation of its finandal tatemends in confomity with
accoarling principhes genesally acoepted in the United States of America | *US. GAAP], Tach Fund is treated a3 an investment company under the reporting
requintmigats of LS GAAP, The preparation of financial staements it acoordanoe wih S GAAP requires management 1o make estimates and assomptions thal
atfect the ieported amounts of assats and labilties and dedosure of contingent assets and Labiites at the date of the finandal statements and the eported amounts
af increases and decreases in net aivets from operations dutirg the repanting period. Actual results could differ hom those estimates

{n) Undestying Fund The Trustes and the Manager may aoply all ar & portion ol the assets af FIMCO Tmenging Markets Bond Func (FTT), PINCO Emerging Markets
Bend Fund (¥en-Hedoed), ard PIMCO Emenging Matkets Berd Fund || (each referred 1o betein 25 3 "Fund of Fands® or the “Aoquining Fund®, which invests in ather
Furds) to the respective credt of the PIMOO Emenging Markets Bord Fund (k) dreflerred 1o hereim as an “Underying Fund® or the *Acquired Fund™). Any assefs so
applied will be heid in such Acquired Fund as if received directly. Whese assets are so applied, the Acgured Fund will record the Issue of unins to the 1elevant Atguiring
Fund at the issse price per unit of $uch onits and Will repurchase such umits at the repunchade price per unit of such omits af the time of tepurchase.

{b) Securities Transactisns and Investmant Inoame Secunties bansictions sie recorced a4 of the trade date for financlal reparting purposes. Secunties purchased e
sald on & when-lswed or delaged-defiery hasis may be settied heyord A standand settlement period for the seourity after the trade date Realized gains and Insses
from securities sokd ane recorded on the identied cost basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-tdividend date, except certain divdends from loreign securities
whete the ex-didend date may have passed, which are recorded as sean as & Tund & mieemed of the ex-dividend date Interest income, sdjusted lor the sceretion of
discounts and amortization of premikams, is recorded on the acoual basis from settfement date, wich the exception of secusities with a forward starting effective date,
wheee interesl income i reconded an the accnsal bases am effective date For comaetible securities, peemiums attributable 1o the comeeraan featune a0 not
Smnoniied. Eslimaned 13x lighisied on Cerain 1u|eq.‘| Lerunitien are rpeordied om an scetual bass and ane el eoed B COMmpoaTL ol innespgr income of net chargs in
unisalived appiecialon {Seplediatsn) o ewestments an the Statesenis ol Operalons, a4 spphoptiate Tax labitties realimd & 8 el of suh setunity sakes aig
reflected as a comporent of net ceatized gain (koss) on invesimenss on the Statements of Qperations. Paydown gairs and lonses on martgage-elated and other asset-
Backed wecuritiod, d any, e reconded as components of intere! incame on the Sestemaents al Dperatiang
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1 Finanei ements

et obligations may be placed on ron-aanual status and related intenest
ircome may be educed by l:rnsing curent accruaky and writirg aff imfenest
recefvaile: when the calizction ol all or a porton ol intarest has become
doubtiul based on consissently appled procedures. A debt obligation s
temoied from ron-aocnasl s1atus when the it retume intered pEymenty
of when colledabling of ivtene i probable

{e] Cash and Foraign Currency The financia’ staterents of each Furd are
presented using the cumency of the primany econamic erwdronment in which it
operates (the “luncticnal cumency™)

The matket values of leveign secarites, currency holdings and ather sssets
and liabiltes are marstated inso each Fund's functone cumency based on (ke
curient eschange rates pach business day Furchases and safes of seaunibes.
and income and experse items denomindbed in foreign camencies, il amy, are
translated ingo each Fund's respective funcbional currency &t the l‘II.'hﬂnI:F‘
rate i eflect on the amacton date. The Funds do mot separately teport the
effects od chamged in feregn exchange rates Som changes & marcet pricss on
securities held Such thanges are included In net realized and net changes in
unrealized gain or by from nvestrents on the Satements of Operations
Thie Funch may immest in foepign currescy denominabed securities and may
engage in barpigh camency irasaactonm eithid on & spat {caih) b at the
rate prevaling s the currency enchange market at the time or through a
foravaed dpreign cumency contract. Realized foreign exchange gains o losses
atising from sabes of spot foreign currercies, curnency gaind of legses reafined
between the frade and settiement dates on secunibes tznsactons and the
difference between the reconfed amounts of dividends, interest, and forelgn
withho!ding taxes and the functiona! cuntency equivalent of the amounts
Sctually ieceived of paid are included in net realized gain of less on fareign
curency transactions on the Matements of Operatices Net unreafized foregn
exchange qains and ksses arieng from changes in forelgn exchange fates an
foresgn denomirated assees and Rabilities other than isestments in secuiies
hield at the end of the reporting period ase induded in net change in
unrealized apprecation or deprecialion on foepgn turmency dssets and
[abslities on the Staterents of Dperations

The Mot Asset Value ["NAN) ard iotal returrs of certan Funds (or Classes
thereal, as applicablel are presented in the cunency for which the HAY &
reported (the “MAY curmency™) as detaded in each Fund's Cffering
Memaeandum (the “(iffering Memarandum®). For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the satal return in the HAY Cummenty, the
beginning and ending MAVE e corvened uuing the petiod Beginning and
ending exchange rates, ispectively, and distibitions ase comerted using the
exchange fatwe al the e ol the distributian. See the foliowng Lable for the
HAY curtency and functional curency ol each respective Fund:

| PCE Barda Fomgn Law Cuntonfnd | lopaneseyon | US collr |
| FINCD Bermuda U5, Low Duratios Fend . Jipansun yun | 15, ol 1
| _PCO Fmegng Markets Bord Fand AIITH | Jopanoseyen | UG cobiar |
| PNICD Emisrping Murkets ond Fard (M1 | U5 deller | U5 ol

*_ U

| PABACT) Errwepe ackets: Bord Fard [¥enHedped) | Jipasase g | UG dolle

| ANICD Emping Markets Bone o lipanaseyen | U5 ol |

« JBER

" J BRI

L] JaNRI

o Jmn

- JIUTEY)

v J@M ! |
| M) Eirs Tatal Reterm Fud Eure | fumn |
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_PALL Pt Fetuss Fond | US.dolr

PAWCO Shart-Terrs Stranegy |
* AlUD Mugtralisn dedise LS. dallar
o I Aspanssa yen U diollar
L] J U0 JANFNAIE e U collar
. U Japanssa pen U5 dollar
= U= L5, dallar LS collar

(d} Multiclass Opengions Each Clew of a Fund oflered by the Tust has
tights to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, except for specfic assets and gairs anc kosses designated to a Class
refating 1o cureéndy hedgeng aperations. Income, non-Chads specife expenses,
and ran-Class speofic realized and unresfized capital gas and losses aie
albocated to oach Class of units based o the relative meq assets of cach Class
o the ters poctive Fund. Class specific expanies curently include
managerent, advisory, admmitrative and distibution fees, where applicabie

|e) Distribution Polley The following table shows the anticipated frequency
of distributiors for cach Fund. Distribugions from cach Fund may be declared
and ctr bubed 10 Unfthalders only upon the authorization ol the Mansger,
which auhorizaton mﬂy“'ﬂ'ﬁmm a1 e ’\.HI'\K,'E'IE IS0 oy

Dociwres Oasty and Paid Monihiy
PRACTH Eore Toind Fofors Fied

Declured and Paid Manikdy
PAACD Emanging Markets Band Fund (HTF
PRCD Emergang Marhets Bard Fund [Ven-Hedged)
PRACT Emarging Martees Bend Furd §
PG Shoat-Term Strategy

L] J1)

s JILED
Declerad and Paid Lusrasly.
PRACD Berruata Formign Low Duration Fued
PRACD Bermixta U5, Low Duration Fund
Deciaresd and Pald Laspaly
PRACT Al Fehom fond
PRACD Short-Tarm Strabagy

= Al

to dheelarn deatributinns with respaet 19 this
gpteabilal, bt My, ih k8 dissaalion, dek
pay distrhetions to the Unithaldora ot any tma

PRACD Emanging Markots Band Furd (M)

Drestributions, i any, will generally be made from the relevant Fund's [or
Class's, i appicabie) net irveiiment incame. 0 addnkn, the Manager may
authorize the payment af net realized capital gales available for distribution
Addational distributions may be dedared as the Manager deems appopriate
Drstributions paid with reipect 1o any Fund (af Class thereal, if applicable}
will reduce the MAV of such Fund for Class thereod, If apobeable]. Af the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash destributions feom a Fund for Class thereof,
il applicable] may eher be reimveited in additional unia o Fund (of Class
theeol, if applicable) or pad 10 a Unithalder in cash, Cash payments will be
paid in the MAY currency af the Fund Fach Fund for Class thereaf, if
apglicabie) may declade harther distribumons if cotiidesed necestady in oider
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o maintain 3 reasonable level of distrbutions for a Fund {or Class thereal, if
applicable}. In the event that there i nadequate not incame and net realined
capitaf gaims to pay a dstriputios of a Fund {or Class theseof, if applicable)
requined by the Offering Memcrandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
comiting of a portion ol the capital of such Fund jor Class thereaf, il
applicable). Diributions pot collected within six years from ther due dae
will lapse and wall acomee 1o the benefit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereed,
il applicable)

i N Rzcounting Pronouncemaents &5 Mach 2016, ehe Fasncial
Accounting $4andards Board {*FASE")] tssued an Arcountieg Standards
Update {"ASU"), ASU J016-05, which provides quidance related to the
irmpait of dirivatind CONTRACT novatiend an cérTain relationabigs undes
Hezeourting Sandards Codfeation Tape ["ASC") B15. The ASU i efferie
for anmual periods beginning akter December 15, 2017, and interim periods
within frcal yeart bisginning atter December 15, 2008 The Funds ki
adapied the ASU. The implementation of the 45U did not have an mpact on
any Fund's financial statements

in Augeil 3016, the FASE naved an ARUL AU J016-15, which amendi ASC
240 te elaify quidance an the classification of certain cach receipts and eash
payments on the Statement of Cash Fows. The ASU is effective for annual
periods I:fgnr-il'rj after December 15, JO1E, and inferim periods beg ming
afver Decombar 15, 20719, The Fund haee sdapred the 45U The
irplernenitation of the ASL did not have an mpact on @y Fund's financial
statements

bn Mowember 2006, the FASE iisued &y ASL, ASU 2016-18, which amends
ASC 230 1o provice quidance on the dassification and presentation of
changes in nestricied cash and restricied cash eguivalents on the Statesw of
Cash Flowd. The ASU is elletive Tor annual periods beganting altéy December
15, 2018, and imtaim periods beginning afier Decernber 15, 2019, The Funds
have adopted the ASL. The imolementation of the ASU did not have an
impact on any Fund's financial slanements

B Augest 2078, the FASH ssued an A5, ASU 20 18- 13, which amends ASC
220 1o modify the ds<losure requirements on fair valse messaioments. The
M50 i elfective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and
e penods within thise annual peiods. The mpiementaton of the AL
removes or modifies ertain disciosare requiremenss. AR this time,
management his elected 10 parly adopt the ASL and the changes are
imcorporated in the financial statzments

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASLREMENTS

(] Imvestment Y¥aluation Policies The price of a Fund's unifs s based on
the Funds Mo, The My of a Fund, ar each of is Classes, a5 applicable, &
deteimeined by dividing the total valos of portolia investments and ather
assets atributable 1o that Fund or Class, kess oy labilities, by the 1oz
number af whith outianding al thal Furd of Chis. On each Fund's Dealing
Dy (3 described in the current Dffering Memorandurm of the Trust),

Fund units are crcinarily valued as of the diose of regular trading on the New
York Siock h-:hrﬂ:l {*MYSE Close ™), Information that becomes knows 10
the Funds or their agents atter the time as of which HAY has beéen caboulated
on a partioular day will not gamerally be used 1o cetroactively adjust the price
al @ secwity of the HAV determined eardier that day. Each Fund reserves the
right 1o charge the time as of which i NAY & caloulated if the Fund closss
eailies

Foo purposes of caloulatiog a WAY, portolio securilies and olber asiets o
which market quotes are feadily availabie are valsed ot mariet value Mesket
walue ts gererally determined on the basks of offical desing prices or the last

reparted sales prices, o if po sales are reported, based on guates obtained
from established market makers or prices (including evaluated prices | sppbed
by thee Furds’ approved priciag senvices, gootation reporting systems and
other thind-party sources (ogether, " Pricing Sendces™) The Funds will
nosmaliy ue pricing data for domestic equity securities received shottly after
the MYSE Clase and do not namealy take into scoaunt trading, dearznoes o
setilements that take place atter the NYSE Close. H market value pricing is
s, & Toceign (mon-U0 5§ eguiry secunity madied on @ I'-:n'i:]n enthange o o
e than ane exchange is typecally valued wiing pricing infarmation fom the
exchange cansidered by the Manager to be the primary exchange. A foreign
[ricri =Ll § ) oquity ity viill b walued a5 of the dose of ".|.1r.irr|| an the
fereign exchanigs, or the NYSE Clase, if the Ny SE Chose oooars before the end
of trading on the loreign exthange. Domastc and foregn {non-L.5 ) fied
income securities, mn-eachange traded detivatives, and equity options ane
nadmally ulliisd on the Bads ol gastes sbamed fom bickerd and dealeé of
Pricing Services using data reflecting the eaflier ciosing of the principal
markets for those securities. Prices obtained from Pricing Services may be
basd Gn, armong cEher things, slermation pioaded by maike? makeds or
pstimates of market vakies ohtaned tom yiekd data elafing tn nvestments o
securities with similar charactedatics. Certain fied income seouities
purtkaded an a delayed-deivery badid &'e marked to maiket daidy untd
settlemnent at the ferward settfement date Exchange-traded options, except
equity options, fituwies and opSons on fubunes, am valoed at the sefilement
price determined by the rikvant Sxchange. Swi sgndementd 3o vilued oh
the basis of bid guotes oblained from brocers and dealers or marker-based
prices suppiiad by Pricing Senvices of other pricing sources. A Fund's
imeestments in open-end management iveestment oompanies, olker Bhan
exchange-traded fumds [“ETFs"), are valued 21 the NAYS of such investments
Open-end management imvesiment compuanies may indude affiliated funds

If a foreign (noen:L S ) equity secarity's value has mateially changed afer the
closz of the security's pimary eechange of prnopal market but before the
NY5E Chirse, the security may be valued at fair value based on progedures
etabilhed and approved by the Manager, Foreign (non-L1LS, ) equity
serurithes that do not trade when the NYSE b open ae also valued at fair
value Wih respect to Torelgn (ron-U5 | equity secaibes, a Fund may
duterming the fair value of ryestments based on edormation prowided by
Pricing Seivites and other thisd-party vendors, which may recomemend fair
value o adpustments with reference to other securities, indices or assats. In
cormidering wiwether fair valuation & required and in determinng fair

values, & Fund may, amang other things, conskder dignifacant svers fwhich
may be corsdered to inchade changes ia the value of U5 securities o
scurilind inchioet) that ocos after the dote of the melevast markel and before
the MYSE Clode A Fund may utilipe mode’rq 1ol provided By thed-pany
vendors 1o detemrene fair values of foregen fnon-UL5 ) seowrities. Foe these
puspesEs, any mevemant in the applicable nedesence index or instiument
["zera trigger”) batween the eadier close of the applhcable foreiga market
anc the MY5E Close may be deemed 1o be a significant event, prompting the
apglication of the piidng model (effeciedy resulting in daily fair

valuations), Faneign exchamges may permit trading in fareign (non-U 5.3
equity securities on days when the Trust is not open for business, which may
resull in a Fund's porttolio mvesiments being atiected when Unitholders ame
unebie to buyor sell units

Senior secured finating rate Joans for which an active secondany market exists
to a refiable degres will be valeed at the mean of the last availsble bidfask
prices in the markes (oe such loans, &% provided by a Pricing Service. Senior
secured foating rate koas Tor which an actae secondary market does rot
exisl b a refiable degree will be vakeed at fair value, which is intended to
approxmate marked valae In valung a wnior secired foating rate loan M
fair value, the Factoes considered may inchode, but are nat limited to, the
folipwing: {a) the creditworthéness of the boercreer and any intermediate
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participants, [b) the terms of the loan, {c}recent prces in the market {or
i loand, i army, and (d) resoent prices in the market Yar Sstraments of
simiar quakity, rate, peeiod uritil nest inteeest rate reset and MmalLniEy

Imvestments waluwed in curencies other than the functional osrency

af & Fund are comverted 1o the functonal currency using exchange tated
abtaeed from Priciog Senvioes. A & result, the value of such imvestments and,
i tuem, the NAV of the Fund's urits may be affected by changes in the valee
al cutrencies in relation to the lunctional currency. The value of invesiments
traded in foreign markets of denominaled in currencies other than

the functional currendy may be alected significantly on a day that the Trust is
nnt apen for business, As aresult, to the sxtent that a Furd holds foreign
{noe-Ll 5.) imesiments, the value of those imessments may change af times
whien you cannct perchase, tedeem or exchange iméts and the value of sach
immnesiments wall be redlected in 1he Fund's neadt caliulated MAY

Frvesements for which mukel guales of mivker bated valualiant ane nof
reaillly avalable are vafued at far value & determined in good faith by

1he F.I.mm]gr of perion actng at their direction, The Manager has adopted
nethods fioe vilaieg securities and other assets in croumstances whee
market quobes are rot readdy available, and has delegated 1o PIMCOD the
respornibility far apalying the Lair valuation methods. In the st that market
quabed o market based valastions ae not reacily available, and the secutity
of #54el canhol be valued pursaant 10 a Manacer aposoved valuatian
miethad, the wialue of the secunty or asset will be determined in good faith by
he Valuaton Committes Makel guiles se oomideed nol readdy available
im ciroumstan ces where thene i an absende of curment or reliable manket-
based data (2.9, trade information, bidlask information, indicathe market
gquatations {"Eroker Quoles ™). Pricing SEVIES priCesh, rstluding where
evenis ocoul afien (he dose of the reevant matket, But piice to the NYSE
Close, that maserially aftect the vabues of the Fund's securities cor assets, In
addiion, market quobes ane consicensd not neadily avarlable when, dug &2
extraord inary cirumstances, the enchanges or markets on which the
securities trade do rot apen for trading for the estire day and no other
market pices ae avalabie. The '.1.1n.}gfr n repamnsibe for manilonng
significant events that may matenally aflect the values af the Fund’s securities
or zssets and for determining whether the value of the applicable seounites or
anawi 1% should B reewaluabed in light of sach sigrificant events

When o Fund wses fair valuagion 1o determine the value of a portialo LUy
or other asset for purposes of caloclating its NAY, such investiments will not
e priced on the basis of quotes from the pematy mariet n which they ae
traded, bun rather may b peiced by another methed that the IMarager o
persons acting at their divection believe reflects fab value. Fail valuabon may
requing subjpctiee determinations about the value of a securty While

the Trusts podicy i intended 1o tesult in a caloulation of a Fund's NAY tha
faitly reflacts senmity values as of the time of pricing, the Tast cannot ensure
thas fair values detormingd By the h-"aﬂ.'-gr'l o persons acting at their
diection would accurately sellect the price that a Fund could abtain s a
security # it were to dispose of that security as of the tme of pricing (for
stance, in a foned or distrevsed sale). The prices wwed by & Fund may differ
fram the walue chat wodd be realized if the secuirites were sold

{b] Fasie Visline Hiernnchy U 5 GAAF desaribes Bzl value as the price that

a Fund would recehe b0 <ell an 3482 or pay 1o trarsler 2 Fakeity in an Giderly
framsaction between marke] particpants a1 the meaieenent date, I
establishes a falr value hieranchy that priaritizes inputs to valuation methods
and reguires didosune of the lar value Meraickhy, w:uralnllu for each major
categan of asets snd kabiives, that weqregales Lek vl measurgments iikd
lerls {Lewvel 1, 2, o 3). The inputs or methodoloqy used for valuing seowites
aie not recessanly an indication af the sk associated with isvesting in those
secunities, Levels ¥, 2, and 3 o the fair value hietarchy are defired a follows:

= Level 1=—_{Juoted prices in active markets of exchanges for identical aswets
and Babilitics

» Level 2—Signiicant other nbservabie irputs, which may incude, but are
nod limited 10, quoted prices for simila assefs or liabilsies in markets that ase
acthie, guoated prices lor identical or similar et ar Babilies in markety that
are nat active, inputs othir than guoted prices that ate obsenable for the
assats o lizbii ties {such as interest rates, yield cunves, volatilities, prepayment
speids, babs severfies, credit ks o delaal rates) o other markit
toerabaraled inputs

= Level 3—Signdicant unobservaile inputs based on the best infomatian
avalible in the droumstances, 1o ihe exient obwervable inpats are nok
avalable, which may include assemptions made by the Manager or persans
acting at their duectian that are ied in determining the fair value of
Imeesiments

In zocordance with the requinements of U 5 GAAP, the ameunts ol trandders
Inared out af Leel 3, i maderial, are desclosed in the Notes to Schedute of
Investmaerss kar sach respective Fund

Far fair valuateeers using signilicant urobsenable inputs, LS. GAAR requites
to dischose translers imto and out of Level 3 of the far value higranchy and
purchaes and msoe of Level 3 avsels and liabiigies during the peviod
Addiganally, U5 GAAP requites quantitative lormates regarding the
significant unobservable inputs wsed In the determination of fae value of
dssets o liab ties categorited a5 Level 3 in the fair value eranchy. In
acgmidance with The reguiiements of 1.5, GAAR, a Lir value beetaichy, and il
materal, detals of signficant unobservabde inguts, have been induded in the
HNates to Schedule of Investments for each nespactive Fund

|eh Walustion Technigues and the Fair Yalue Hisrarchy
Level 1 amd Livel 2 irnding assets and teading Babilities, ot lair value The

valusiior methods for “techniques”] and significasd inputs wed in
determining the far valees of portinlio securibes of pther assets and liehbies
categorized as Level 1 and Leved 2 of the v value hiecarchy are s fofiows

Foued ingame securitied including cocporate, comeertible And municipal Bands
anc rotes, U8, goverment ageacies, LS. treasury obligations, sovereign
issues, bank Inans, convertinle preferred seowites and nos-LU' S bonds ae
nosmally valued on the bags ol quotes obdained ‘i ke and dealen or
Pricing Services that uie hnobed-desler quotations, repoited irades o
valuatior estimates from thewr internal pricieg models. The Pricing Senvces’
internal model wie inputs that see obsersable such a4 Bsus details, interpst
TaEs, 'rdl.i Culves, prepayieenl speeds, el raksiyp sady, cefauli rates amd
queted prices for semiar assets. Securities that wse similar valuation
techniques and inputs as decribed above are categotited & Level 2 of the
tair value Pigraichy

Fined income secuities parchaved on a delayed-celivery bassor s a
repurchase commitment in i sale hu,r!tqi fransaction are marked 1o market
diily watil seftbement 5 the lovaid Letthement date and dré categod thed ad
Lewel 2 of the fairvalue hierarchy

Maortgage-related and asset-backed secur fties are wsually issued a5 separate
ranched, or clatees of wecuiigien within cach deal. These securities ane ako
nosmally valued by Pricing Services that use beoker-dealer quotations,
reparted trades of vakaation estimates from thelr internal pricing models. The
pricing models Tor these secutities usally consider Tranche-level antikutes,
oarent market data, estmated cash fiows and market-based yeld ypreads Tor
each tranche, and incorporate deal colateral perlormance, as available
ongage-related and assel-Backed Securiies Thar use similar valuation
technigues and inputs as describad above are cabegorized 2 Level 2 of the
fair valye higranhy
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Commaon stcchs, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and financial dervative
imtruments, sach as fulutes. contracts, rghts and wamants, of options on
futures that are traded on a national secwrities suchange, are stated at the
Lt reported sale or settlement price on the day of valustion: To the extent

These securithes g actively traded and valustion adpsiments are nol appled,

thay e categonzed o Level 1 of the falr walue herarchy

Imvestments valued {denomirated) in currencies other than the functianal
curiency of & Fund are convemed 1o the lunttiong curency using exchange
rates {cutrency spot and fonwaid rates) obizined from Pricing 3ervices. A a
result, the NAY of 3 Fund's units may be aflected by changes in the vale of
cumpncies in relation to the fanctional curency  The vallue of sedurities fraded
4] [-:fe:gn martets or denominated in ourencies other than the funiticesd
curiency may be affecied sigrificantly on & day that the Trust s not open fo
Bugness. Valuation adjustments may be applied 1o certain securities that am
salely traded o a foreign exthange to acoount Tor the market movement
between the clase of the forelgn markat and the NSE Clese. These securities
e valged using !F'ri.':nrl Lervioes that corides the cormelation of the tad Ty
pattedrs of the Teeeign secusity 1o the intraday trading in the LS markets foe
imvestments Sequnties using these valuation adsiments are rabegorized as
Level 2ol the far value hierachy, Prelered seoutities and other equities
traded an indclive markets of valued by ieference o similar instruments are
ako categonized as Level 2 of the fab value hierarchy

Equity-linked secmites ase valued by relerencng the ks reported sale or
skltermn] price of the linked redprenced eguily on 1F & iy cf wiluatin
Foseign exchange adpsiments are aoplisd 1o the last eparted price 1o
convert the inked equity's trading curmency to the contract's settling currency
These ivvestments &g canegonped as Level 2 of the Tair walue hierarchy

Ervessments o fegisteed ooen-end Emestiment Comparmes (other than ETF}
wall be valued based wpan the NANS of such immestments and ase categarized
s Lewnd 1 of the fair varue Bierarchy . Irvestments in unregistered open-end
irvestment companies will be caculated based upon the NaNs of such
levvestments and are considered Lewed 1 provided that the NAVs ane
abservable, calculated daily and are the valoe 51 which both purchases and
sales will be conducted

Equity exchange-traded opticens and awer the coumtet finsnnal derivative

wotruments, sach a3 loraand I'arr'iql' cuinercy conkacts and oplions contrach,

desive thelr value fram wedetying et prices, indices, reference sates, and
otter inpists o & combination af these factors. These conbacts are ru;||ma|l_l|l
valued o the bass of quates ablained tram a quatation neparting system,
establishad market makess or Priciog Sendces [rormally determined as of the
HYSE Close) Depending on the product and the tarms. of the trarsactson,
financial derivative instiuments can be valsed by Pricing Serdiced using a
seties of techmiques, iIndudng simulaon pricing model Tre piricing models
e inputs that are observed from actively quotad markets sech as quoted
prices, suer dedads, indices, budfask spreads, interest rates, impled
wolatfite, yield curdes, dradends and eschange rates Financal denathe
mstruments that use similar valuation :Khl'lll:f..ﬁ&'\ﬂ Inpuits as descrbad
above are cabegonized & Level 2 of the fairvalue hierarchy

Centially clearsd waps and oved the counler fwaps derve they value from
uniderhing asset ices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs of 3
combingtion of these lactors. They are valued wing a broke:-dealer bid
quatation of on market-based pricss prosided by Pricing Services {normally
determrened &5 of the NYSE dose). Centrally deared swaps and over the
counter swape can be valued by Pricing Setvices using a senes of technigues
e luding semulation pricing models. The pricing modeb may vse inputs that
aie phaerved Trom actvely quoted maskets juch a5 the overaght index swap
rabe{” (015", London interbank Cffered Rate ("LIBOR") forward rate, interest

rates, yeld curves and credit spreads. These securitees are categorioed as
Leswed 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Loval 3 trailing meaets and trading Habilsbes, s fair value When a fal
valuatior method is applied by the Manager that uses significant
unchisenable inputs, insestments willl be prced by & method that

the Managed of persons acting a1 thes dinection bl sefeces fai value and
are categorized a5 Level 3 of the fair vahue Feerardry. The valuation
technigues and significan inguts wded in determining the e vl of
portiolio assets and liabilties cotegorived as Level 3 of the fair value hieraschy
are as Tollovs:

Pramy pincing procecures et 1he bade piice of & foed incame seurity and
subrequently adjust the price proportionally To market value changes of a pre-
determined secutity deemed bo be comparable n duration, gensrally a U %
Treasury of toweneign note haied on courdry of smuance. The base price may
be o Benker-deales quate, transacton prce, of an intsenal vk a5 denved by
analysis ol market data The base price of the security may be reseton a
perodic bass ased on the avaBability of market data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Committes. Sigrificant changes i the
uncirenable inputs of the peoxy pricing process (the base price] would result
i direct aad proportional changes inthe Lar salee of the security. These
secutilied gre categoiized as Level 3 of the far value hieanchy

IF third- paety ewaluased vendor pricing ks not avatlable or not geemed to be
indicatree of fair walue, the Manager may elact 1o cbitan Broker Queres
direcily hiom the Evoker-dealer of pinsied theoogh Inom & thind-party vesdor
In the evert that fal value s based wpon a single sourced Broker Quate,
these securities are categorizad as Level 3 of the Fair value hierardhy. Broker
Quotes are typically recenied fram established maske partcipants, Although
Indepencently recerved, the Manages does nct have the tanspatency Lo view
the underlying inputs which support the market quatation. Significant
changes in the Braker Quole wowld have ditect and proporticnal changes iny
the fair value of the secunity

Shert-berm debt instrumenis {such & commescal pager) having a remaining
matuiity of B0 days of bris may be valued ot snortited coil, o long o the
amastized cost vale of such shert-term deiat instiuenents 5 appranmatesy e
same s the fair value of the instrument as determined without the use of
amortired et valution. These secunifies aré categortied a3 Lewel 2 o Level
1 af the fair value heraechy depending an the source of the hase price

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|} Dedoyod-Delivery Transactions Ceiain Funcs may putihie o sl
seurilies on & delayed-delivery basis. These vansactons imvoke 3
coemmitmrent by a Fund bo punchase or sell secwities for a predetermined price
of yigld, with paymans and defavery taking place Beyond the cusiomany
wttiement penod. SWhen delsyed-defivery Tansactiong ane ouistandng

a Fund will designate or recerve a5 coflateral bguid assets in an amount
sufficiont to mpet the purchase prico or respective thl}:ﬂinr':. ‘When
purchathe] 3 secwity on a delayed-celivery bats, 3 Fund sssumes the rights.
and risks of ownership of the seourity, Incliuding the risk of price and yald
Muctuations, and takes such fluctuationd into account when determining it
MY A Fusd may deapose of of ienegotiate 3 deloved-delivery ansaction
after it is enbesed inta. which may result in & sealized gain oo loss. When

it Fund has soid a security on a celayed-delivery basis, ke Fund does nat
participate in future gaing and hosses. with respect to the secuity,

b} Imflstien-Indoxed Bonds Certan Funds may irvest in inflabon-indexad
bords, Inflstion-indmod bonds afe Bxed Hoome wduiities whote principal
value i periodicaly adjusted by the rae of wflation. The inersi rane on
these bones & generally fined an lssuance at 2 iane bowes than typical bosd
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Owver the e of an inflation-indexed bond, however, nterest will be paid
barsed on 2 principdl value, which is adjusted ler inflation, Ay increase o
decrease in the principal amount of an inflation-indesed bond will be inciuded
at inferest income on the Statements of Operations, even though immestorns do
il receive their principal unlil matwity. Repayment of the criginal bend
principall upon maturity (as adjusted for inflanon) i quarsnteed n the case of
U5, TIPS, For bonds that de not provide a similar guaranies, the adjusted
ptincipal walue of the band repaid an manurity may b beds 1ban the original
pitncpal

{e] Lean Participations. Asaignments and Osiginatiens Cerain Funds may
sl in dinect dieb instruments whach s inderest, in amounis osed o
lenclers or iBnding syndicates by corporate, govemmental, o other Domgwers.
A Tuewd's Investments ir foans may be in the form of partidpations in loans or
askgnments of all o a partion of laans from third parties or imasiments in or
afiginationg of lnant by the Fusd A loan & aften administired by o hank o
other finandial imstitution (the *lender”) that ads &s agent for all holders. The
agent agiministers the term of the loan, a5 specified in the lgan agreemend

A Fusd masy ievcest in mutziple seres or ranches of a bean, which may have
warying terms and cary different associated risks When a Fund purthases
arknments loom lenders. it acquings dinect rights agairn| the bormowers of the
loans. Thess loara may include participatian in bridge loand, which are loans
taken out by barmewers {or a shart period {iyplcally less than cre year)
;1m-21|n|; amangemend of more permanent fingncing through, dor esample, the
auance of bords, frequenty high yield bonds saued fou ghe purpose of
SIS DTS,

The types of loans and related investments. iniwhich the Funds may imvest
imclude, among cehers, senif ans, subondnaled loans (including second
Ty hoare, B-Motes and mezzanine loans), whoke loans, commercial seal
estate and other commercial loans and structured loans. A Fund my
aliginate koans or acguie dinsg imjengsts in loar theough primary kean
distributions anddar in privaie ransactions. in the case of subardinated koans,
there may be significant indebtedness ranking ahead of (he borowe™
ablgaten o the holder of sch a loan, inclyd g in the event af the
barower's insolency. Mezranne laans ane typecally seosed by a pledge of
an equity interest in the mortgage bormower that owns the reel estate rather
tham an inleresl in g mongage

Ervessments i loans may indude unlunded loan cammimments, whach ane
contractual obiigations for funding. Unfanded loan commitments may inchade
mevalving credit facilities, which may oblbgate a Fund 1o supply additiorad cash
1o the besrorver on demand. Ustunded hosn commitments regresent & future
abligation in Tull, even though a percentage of the committed amoant may
rat b witilied By the bocower When investing in 3 laan particpatan,

& Fund has 1he right 1o recehve payments of grincipal, inmenest and sy fess 1o
which it is entitled only from the lender seling 1he loas agreement and caly
upon receipt of payments I:r' the lender from the borower. A Fund may
recehee a commisment fee hased on the wsdiawn pammion of the underying

lime of credit portion of a loan. I certain drrumstances, a Fund may receive a
penalty e upon the prepayment of a loan by 2 borrower, Fees eamed o
paid are recordied a5 8 component of iNDeEs] MCOME oF inleni=t expenie,
respectivaly, an the Statements of Operatioss. Unfundad lozn comesements
aie reflected a5 a Kabdty oo the Statements of Assets and Lablites

{d] Mortgage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Secerities Certain Tunds
may invest in mongage-relatec and other asset-backed securities that direally
or indeectly repeesent a participation in, or are secured by and payabie from,
ligatrs on real propedty, Morigage-refated sequrities ane creatid from pook of
residential o commencial mongage ieans, including mangage baars made by
savings and loan institutions, mortgage bankers, commencial hanks and
athers. These seoufities provide a monthly payment which conaists of bath
Imenest and principal. Interest may be determined by lxed o adjustalie rales
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The rate of prepaymments on |.rdr\.'lp'||; mgages will atfect the price and
volatility ol & excrtgage celated secutity, and may hawe the effect of
shawtering or extending the effactive dusation of the sacarnity relative to what
vas antkipated at the time ol porchase The timely payment of princpal and
interest of certain morgage-elated secunties i quacanteed with (he lull faith
and eredet of the U5 Govemmaent Pook created and quaramped by nan
gowinmmental issuers, Induding goevemment-sponsored cofposations, may be
suppored by varioin farms of irurande of guaramees, bug thece can be no
asdurance that private Rauiens of Guaianoes can mest thei cblgation uhded
the insurance policies oo guaraniee arangements. Masy of the risks of
|m~n.!iru_'| in margagesntlated secuities secured by commtial martgage
Ieans reflect the effects of lacal and other economic conditions on real estate
markets, the ability of tenants to make lease payments, and the absdity of 2
property bo dttract and retain benants, Thede securitics may be bess liguid and
iy Enhilet greater poce valstlity than ather typid of mongage-relansd of
other asset-backed secarities Cther asset-backed secsites ase oeated from
many types of avsets, including, but not lim%ed to, auta loans, accounts
edemable, fuch at aedit card iecevablis and hanpital scoount nedemabled,
hoeme equity loas, student lnans, baat lasrs, moble kome lnans
recteatanal vehice loans, manutactured hoasing loans, ainoal leases,
conputed labded and yndicated bank loasd The Fund msy invesl in drwy el
of the capital strecre of an ksuer of mangage-backed or asset-backed
securities, ncluding the equity or ™ frst loss ™ tranche

|} Colkateralized Mortgage Dbligations. (" CMDs™ | are detit ablications. af a
legal entisy that are coflaseralized by whole morigage lnans or private
maetgage bonds and divided into classes. CMOs ane stnachured inbo multiple
clusses, often referied 1o a8 “manchis”, with each cliss beansg & diffesent
staied maturity and entitled o a different schedule fee payments of prindpal
ang interest, incuding prepayments, CMOs may be less liguid and may exhibit
greater price valatility than ather types of mortgage-retased o mietbached
segibes

i} Stripped Memgage-Backed Socurithes ["50B57) ave desvative muhi-
chags mangage wowites. SMES aie wually sruciured with two cladses that
recewve diffesent proportions of the imerest and princpal detrbubons on a
pocl of martgage assets. An SMBS will have one class that wil recerve all of
the imberest (the intevest-ordy o "107 class), while the other class will receiere
the estire principad {the principai-anly ar “PO° class) Payments recehed for
10 are inciuded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Because
e uincipel well be received at the maturity of an 10, adusiments are made
1o thee cost of the secwrity on a montly bass unt] maturity. These
adjustments are inchuded in interest income on the S:atements of Operations
Payments meceived for PO s reated a6 reductions 10 the cost and par valus
6 The LaciEties

[g) Coltnteralized Dol Obdigations ("CD0s") indude Colfatealized Bond
Obligations {"CHOs" ), Collateralized Loar Obligations {CLO5"] and other
umilarly stractured sezuriies. CBOs and CLOS are rypes of assel-backed
septities A CBO s a trust which & backed by a diversified pocd of high sk,
below investment grade fived income securites. A CLO is a trust pypleally
collazerakized by a pool of loans, which may include, amang others, domestic
and foresges seniar ssoured boans, sesnet pnasoured boans, and subordinate
corporate koar, including loans. that may be rated below investment grade o
equivalent unrated koans. The riscs af an ivestment ina CD0 depend qulf
on the type of the collateral secunties and the dass of the CDO in whidh

a Fund irsests In ackdition tn the normal iisks sssociated wish Bxpdd income
senaities ciacussed eluewhens im this seport and the Funds’ Offering
Menarandum (e q., prepayment sk, crecit tisk, ligudty risk, markeq ik,
stuctural risk, legal risk and interest rate risk (which may be enacerhated
I imenest rale payable on a stnactured financing changes baded on
midriles ol changes in imenest iaes or imeersely 1o changes in innerest
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rates]h, CBOs, Ci0s, and other (D05 cary additional risks imchuding, but nat
lamited o, (i) the pessibility that distributions from collateral seourities will not
ke adequabe 10 make irterest or other paymenis, i the quality of tha
collateral may deciine in walue or defaul, (i) the risk that a Fund may invest
m CBO4, CLOW, o othes COOs that are subordinate 1o other clasies, and iv)
thi complex structune of the security may not ba fully understend a7 the time
af investmant and may peoduce dispuses with the tssuer or unespected

I omEnt el

{h] Payment la-Kind Securities Cerain Funds may invest in payment in-kind
securities [*PIKs"). Pis may give the issuer the option at each interest
pargmend date al makng sl paymmenis in fther cash andios additionasl
et secuithes, Those addional dabt secwities usually have the wame tems,
imcluding maturity dates and interest rates, and associated risks as the
ariginal bonds, The dady market quotations of the priginal boncs may indede
The aconosd atenst (iefered b A% a “dimy pace” ) and raquins @ oo s
adjustment from the ureealized appeeciation or degredation on vestments
10 inferest recesvable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

(i) Restricted Secwrities Cemain Funds may hold mestments that ae
subject to legal or contractual iestnctions on resaie. These seounities may be
wold privatedy, but may be required 1o be iegistered o peempied om wuch
regestration beloee being sobd 1o 1he public. Private placement sequrities are
genenally corsidared 1o be restrcied. Dispesal of restricted mestments may
rveive Tme-consaming negotiations and expenses, and promgit sale 31 an
atcephabie price miy be dflicult 1o schieve, Resoicid immestments held by
tha Funds at May 31, 2079, as applicable, are disciosed in the Notes ko
Schedule of brestments

1] Structwred Notes. Cenam Fonds may imes] in strotieed males and atfves
elaled mstruments, whech aee prvatety negatiated debt oblgations in which
the principal and! or interest is detemmined by reference 1o the performance of
& benchmack asset, markel or intérest rabe (an "embsidded ndex |, wath a5
sefecied securites. an index of securites or specified intesest rates, or the
ditferential pedomiance of two assets of markets, such as indenes reflecting
bands. Stnectured instruments may be issped by corpomations, |'rI||r|in5
barks, as well as by goverrrrental agenches. The tems of such structured
imstruments normally prowide that their principz] and/ior intesest payments arz
10 be adjusted upwaids of downwaids {but ondinarily mot Belcw 2ein) b
reflece chamges in the embedded index whils the stacheeed instumenits ae
outstandng. As a result, the interest andior principal payments that may be
made on a structustd prodect may vary widely, depending on a variety of
fectors, includirg the volutility of the embaddad index and 1he effact of
changes in the ambedded index on principal and'or interest payments.

(k] L5 Gewemment Agencies ar Government-Speasorad

Enterprizes Certain Funds may invest in securities of LS, Govemment
agencies or gowernment-spansored enterpeises. U5, Government securitied
ity cobgatang of and, in cerain Cid, guarantésd by, the U5, Gavernment,
its agencies or imstrumentaites. Some U 5. Government securities, such as
Teeasury bills, notes and bonds, and secunities quarateed by the Gavemment
Hatonsl Medtgige Adsoastion [TGHMA® af "Ginne Mae®), aie dsphored
bry the full Faith ard credit of the U5, Govemmant; others, sudh as those of
the Fegeral Home Loan Banks, ate supported by the right of the isswer o
Boiros o the U5 Department ol the Teeasury (he "0 S Tieruy™); and
athars, such as these af the Federal Natonal Momgage Association (“FNMA™
or "Fanmie Mae”), are supported by the discretionary authosity of the U5
Gover Ament 1o pirchase the Sgency s ol gibiond. U5 Goveinimel ieiuliteg
enay inchecke 2eio coupon secutives which do not dstibute intsest on a
cursent basis and tend 1o be subject to a greater risk than interest-paying

secuittied of simidar matunted

Governement-related quaramioes (e, not backed by the full facth and credit o
the LS, Gowvermment) inglude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan ’-m:tlr,\:-gr
Comporation [“FHLMC " or "Freddie Mac” ). FNMA is a gevemment-sponsoned
corporation. FHMA purchases comventional [ e, nof insured or guatamieed by
any government agency) residential moncages lram alist of spproved
solleeiservicers which Include sute and federally chanened savings and loas
associations, mutual savings barks, commercial banks and credit urscns anc
mrnghge bankers Pais=iheough secusites miwed by FNMA ané quardnioed as
te Hirmely payinént of pindapsl and interest by FNMS, But aie hat Becked by
the full faith and oedt of the LS. Government: FHLMC ksues Participation
Cortificates {"PCs "), which are pas-theough securities, aach |r'prf-:ar.1'mr; an
uncidded inteest b a pool of residernial morgages. FALMC quaramess the
tiemsedly pagmeent of interest and utimate collecton of prindpal, but PCs are rt
backed by the full faith and ceds of the U % Governmen!

Linder the dirscion of the Federad Hoiging Finande Agsncy, 1he Fedenal
National Martgage Association {"FNBA™) and the Federal Home Loan
r."n".llrp;r Corporation {™FHLMC ™) have entered info a joint initiatie o
develing & comenan secatitization pletfeem far the iss=ance of a infom
mistgage-hacked security (the " Single Seanity Initative”) that algns the
characieiistics of FbA and FHLME certificates, The Single Security b e
was implemented on June 3, 20719, snd the effmcry it Py b o The marie
fer morigage-backed securifies are uncertain

Pl teming strategies can be wed whene a Fund seeks 1o extend the
eagirabon o maturily of & position, such as a TE& securily on an undelying
assel, by closing out the position before pxplation and opening a rew
posstion with respact to substantially the same underdying asset with a Eater
eapErabon date, THA secutines parchased or sokd ane eflecied on the
Stasements of Assets anel Liabdites as an asser o babslity, respectively

{1} When-laawed Tranasctions Ceiain Fundd may puichass ar sl seaiilted
on 3 when-issued basis. Theds transactions are made conditionally because a
secarily. although sahodiped, bk not yet been isued in the

marksl Tramsactions bo puschase oo sell seouiites on a when-ssued bass
Imvatve a commitment by a Fund to purchase or sell these securities for a
predeteimind price of yiekd, with payment aod celreery 1aking place beyond
e ¢ustomary sentlement perod. A Fund may sell when-esesd Seuf tes
beloae they are defivered, which may result in a iealized gain or low

|m] Bomlk Obligakioes Eank obligations in which a Fand may imest induds
certificates of depesit, bankers' soceptances, and fied time deposits
Certilicates of depasit are negotisble certificates issued against funds
deposited in a commercial bank for a definile period ol time and ¢aming a
specified tetuin. Bankers’ acceptances ane mogotioble drafts or bils of
enchange, rarmally drawn by an imporier or exporter to pay Tor specific
menchandise, wiich are “accepted” by a bane, meaning, in effect, that the
bark wtonditionally agreest o pay the face value of the instrument on
maturity. Fiwed time deposits are bank okligations payable at a stated

maturisy date and begring interest at a faed rate. Fioed lime deposits may be
withcawn on demand by the immstor, but may be subjec 1o sarly
wilhrawal penaliies which vary dependirg upon market conditions and the
rermanng matutity of the cblgation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRHANSACTIONS

The feliowing discloures cantain indomeation on the Furds' abdity 1o lend o
bosrow cash o7 securities to the edent permitied wde: the Ofiering
Memorandum, which may be viewsd as bormoaing or linandng transactions
b the Furds, The location o these indiruments i described below, For a
detaded deseniption of cedi and counterparty fisks that an be assocated
with bomowings and ather rancing transactions, plase see Mot 7,
Prancipal Raks
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{n) Repurchase Agresments Certain Funds may engage in repuichase
agreements, Under the terms of a typical repanchaie agietment,

a Fund puschases an urderlying debr sbligation (collateral) subjedt to an
obligation af the seller to repuichase, and a Fund to resell the obligation at
an pgreed-upon price &ad time. in an open maturity repuichise agréement,
thare & no pre-cereimined repurchase date and the agreemant can be
termimated by the Fund or coumtemparty at any time. The market valoe of the
collateral must be egqual 10 o exceed the total ameunt of the fepofchake
ablgatess, intuding menest. Repunchaie sgreements, ncluding accrued
imterest, are included on the Statements of Assets and Lisbilties. Interest
eamied is recoeded a5 & companent of interest moome on the Statements of
Operatians. in pariods of increased demand far collsteral, a Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of collateral which may resubt in interest expense io the Fund

{b] Rewerse Rapurchase Agresments Cortain Funds may enter into reverss
TRt e AgteRments In & reverse epuichade xreement, a Fund delivees a
secunity in exchange Tor sh to a finandal instihution, the counberparty, with
a simultareous agreemend b repunchase the same or substantially the same
security 31 an doreed upon price and date. In an apen madunity revere
repurchase agieement, these i no pre-detemuned repurchase dade and the
agmeement can be ferminated by 1be Fund of counderpasty at any ime

i Fusd o entithed 1o receye principal Bnd interest payments, if any, madhe an
the secutity delkered 1o the counterparty during the term of the agreament
Cash recesved in exchange for secunties delvered plas accoued inferest
paymenty b0 be made by o Fund 10 counbesparties are rellechid s a Bability
an the Stabemerts of Assats and Liabiliies. Interest paymens made by a Fund
1o counterparties are recorded &5 a component of nkerest expens2 an the
Harements of Operations. In perods of increased demand for The Sty

a Fund may 1eceive a Tee for use of the security by the coumieiparty, which
mmary resull in intenest income to a Fund. A Fund will segeegate assets
detormmaned 10 be ligud by PIMCD o will othemwite cower 18 chigations
under 1everse repurchase agreements

{c] Sala-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter into finandng tansaction
releried 1o 34 ‘sale buybacks'. & sale buyback financing transaction consists
of 3 sale of 3 security by 3 Fund to a fimanclal institutien, the countemarny,
with a simuhtaneous agreement 10 repurchase the same o substandially the
e secuEily al an .rilq:'.'d upon pice avd date. & Fund i rol entitled to
recehie principad and mleredt payments, if any, made on the security soid 1o
tha counterparty during the term of the agreement. Tha agreed:-upon
proceedts e securives to be repurchased by a Fund aee refecied a5 a laddlity
an the Sanements of Assets and Liabilnes. & Fund wll recognize net income
represenied by the price dfferential between the price recetved for the
trarmfemed seowity and the agreed-upon repurchase price. Thit is cammonty
releEmad 0 a5 the ‘price drop’. & price diog consins of 0 the hl!l}u.‘l.- a gL
and inflationary income adjustments, if any, a furd would have othenwise
received had the security nat been sald and (i) the negotiated Fnancing semes
etweren a Fund and counternamy. Foregone interest and nflabianary income
adjustments, i any, are recorded as componenss of interest income on the
Hatements of Operations. Intecest payments based upon negatiated financing
e mads by @ Fund %0 countecpanties ane recoeded a4 3 companent of
Ieterean expense an the Stasements of Operaton: (m pedods of inceased
demand fof the seceity, a Fund may recehee a fee Sor wme of the seaurity by
1ha counterpany, which may result in interest isscomae 304 Furd A Fund will
seqiegate assets determined 1o be liquid by PIMCO or will othenadse cover its
I:lhln:||1|.n'.1. under sale-buyhack tramsactioms

{d] Shom Sales Cedram Funds may enter ino shor ks vansactions. Shor
saled aie andacioed in which the Fund sefis a secunty that it may ned awn
A Fand may make short sales of securities to (i) offet potential declines in
Iy poddtions ir samika secwritieg, (i) [ incneae The: fecibilty of the Fusd,
(1K) foe investmant retam, (] as part of a rkk arbitrage strateqy, and i) s
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part of its overall porticlio man agement sirategies |n-m|.|rq1||t e af
dorvative ertruments. When a Fund engages i a shoet sale, it may borow
the security sold sheet and deliver i o the courterparty. The Fund will
ortinarily have to pay a fee or premium 1o borow a security and be chligated
1o repay the lender of the ssourity any dividend of imerest that aconees on the
sorutity during the pesiod of the laan. Secuities sobd in shae sale transactions
an the dividend or interest payeble on such secorities, i any, are refiected 23
prybibe for shor wies on the Stanements ol Assets and Liabilities. Shoe sales
expase the Fund o the risk thet it wall be requited 16 covér iy shon pesition
at a time when the security or other asset has spoedated in value, thus
|Q1.|,|Ilin|] im fossers b0 they Fund, A short sabe is “agairst the box™ if

the Fured hiolds in its portfadio of has the night 1 aoquire the sacarity sold
shart, or secunties identhal i the seomity sobd short, at no additional cost

A Fund will be sobiect 1o additional risic 1o the extent thad it engages in short
wileg that Mé ot "agierdt the baa. ™ A Fund's o4 of & dhait ke coxild
theoreticalyy ba unlimited in cases whese the Fund is unsble, for whatever
reaon, b ciose out its short pesition

6, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thie fabowing disclosures conain infameation on how ard why the Fands use
Tinarcial dervative irstraments and heow finandial derhvativee instruments
affect the Funds’ financial position, iesults of operations and cash flows. The
location ard fair value amousns of these inslruments on the Statementd of
Assats and Liabities and the ret realized gain {loss) and ner chasge in
unrealized appreciation {depredation) on the Statements of Operations, each
:a'.rgm:.'rd by tvpe ol francial deivative cantract and related rsk expoung,
are included in 2 table in the Noses o Schedule of Investments. The financia
deryative instruments outstanding as of period end and the amaunts of net
reatized gain {hoadl and net change in unreakoed appeeciation (depregation)
on financial derivative instruments. during the period, as dedosed in the
Nates to Schedule of Ineestments, serve 35 ndicator of the vwelume ol
[inaricial dermvative activity for the Funds

{a} Forward Ferpign Cemency Cemtracts Cenain Funds miy engage
forwand loreign currency contracts in connection weth setling planned
purthades or sale ol secundies, to hedge the curtency papdiunhe Msociated
with some o all of & Fumd's securites or as pan of an investiment srategy. &
Torward lore g currendy contract & an agreement Between two paities i buy
and il 3 curtency at a sel price om & futune cate, The market value ol 3
ferwimnd Ionegn currency contract Hlutuases with changes in fonsign currency
exnchange rates. Forward lorelgn cunency oontracts are marked to matket
daily, and the change in walue & recorded by a Fund as an unrealized gain o
loss. Realized gairs or keases ane egasl 1o the diffeence between the value of
the contract a1 the time it was apenad and the value at tha time it was chored
ang are peconded upon delivery o eceipl ol the cunency, These contracts
iy irrwolve markeet fisk in gncess of the unrealized gai or loss reflected on
the Statements of Assets and Liablities. In additien, a Fund oould be axposed
to nsk if the counterparties are unable to meet the terms of the contracts or if
U walue of (b cunency changes unlavorably o the funclional cumency. To
mitigate such risk, cash o secutithes may be exchasged as colazesal pursuart
to the fenrs of the underiying contracts

Cerain Funds having 4 hidged Class may ab entes into hanward fonegn
cumfency contracts desigred 1o offzer the effect of bedging at the Furd lewel in
order 10 leave the hedged Class with an exposure bo curnendics ather than the
fumctional curnency. There can be mo quarantes that these Clags soeciic
forwand foreign currendy contracts will be successful

(b} Firtwrees Comtracts Cerain Funds may entes into futures contracts. &
futures coniract i an agreement to buy or sell o security of other avset for a
sot piice on a fulure date aod are taded on exchanges. & Fand may use
Tutunes contracts fo manage (s exposaie B0 the securities markets o to
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ety in inteest ales and currency values. The primary risks associated
with the use of futures conracts are the imperfed) comeltion betaeen the
change in matket value of the sacutites held by a Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the porssibility al an Wliquid market Futures contracts
atie valogd based upon their quoted daily settement paces. Upon entéring
it a futures contracy, o Furd i reguired to depasit with it futures broker an
amount of cash, U5, Government and Agency Obligatons, o select sovereign
detal, im accordance with the initlal mangin redguigements o The broke o
exchange. Fulured contracty aié mked b maiket daily and based on such
maerrents in the price of the contracts, an appropriate payable or recervable
for the rha.m]n_ m walue may be posted or collected by the Fund [ Fatures
Varlation Margin®}. Futures Yaziation Masgins, if any, are disciosed within
centrally ceared financial deshvative Instruments on the $atements of Assets
and Lisbilites. Game o lodaes ane necognized but not comicened npalined ontil
The confeacts Expee of civds. Fuluiéd SoNKacts ifwohe, 1 vanang deqiees,
risk of boss in excess of the Futures Varlation Margin induded within
exchange traded or centrally cleared fnancial derivative irstruments an the
Saatemints of Assets and Liahiatie

{e] Dptions Contracts Cerfan Funds may write oe purchase aptions to
evhance refyrms of 1o hedge an exisling positon of Tutue irwesiment, Cedain
Furds may write call and put options on securities and financial derivative
brstruments. they own of inowhich they may Irvest. WWeiting put optians tends
1o mprease a Fund's exposure 1o the underling mstrument Witing call
apticrs temds 10 decneaie & Fund's exposuee 10 the underlying irtrument
‘When a Fund weites 2 call o put, an amoust equal to the premium recetved is
recoeded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the current value of
1he colion winben These amoonls 26 indludéd on the Statéansnts of Asgaty
and Liablites. Premiures received from wiiting ogtions which espire are
treated as realized gains. Premiums received fram wiiting options which ane
exmciued or closed are added to the proceeds or aflget Qa1 amouniy paid
on the underdyng futures, swap, seculity or cumendy transaction to datermine
fihe reafed gain or hoys. Cerlain options may be wiitten with peembums o be
determined on & fubaie dase. The premicerrs foe these aptions ane based upon
iemplied wolanlicy parameters at speciied terms. A Fund as a writer of an
opbon has no control over whether the underyng Fstrument may be sold

(" cal™) or puichased ("pn™) and a3 & resolt bears the marke! risk of an
urifavoratle change in the price of the instrument andeilying 1the written
aption. Thene Is the risk a Furd may not be able o enter inte & closing
Tramaction because of an iliquid market

Ceriain Funds may aln purchase pot and call eptions. Purchasing call optioes
tends 1o increase a Fund's exposure 1o the underiying instrument. Purchasing
put apticns tends to decreate a Fund's exposse 10 the erderying imlrumans
A Fund pays b preericen which & included a5 an asset on the Statements of
Axsets and Liabilities and subsequently marked to market ta reflect the
cunient walun of the option. Premisens paid for p|.|d1m.in|; options which
eaplie are eated x realired losses Certabn aptions may be purchased with
premiums tobe determined om a future date. The premiums for these options
ale based upon implied volatility parameters at specified terms. The risk
ssnciated with purchuring pun and call options i limited 10 the presium
paid. Presmiums paid far purchasing aptines which are esercised o dosed e
added to the amounts pald o olfset against the proceecs on the underdying
irestment iramack an 1o determine 1k ralived gain oo L when the
underlying transactian i esecuted

Cradit Mﬂtswium Certain Funds max wite or purrhese cedt detaull
Lanliond 10 hidge eapoture 10 the credil ik ol an imvesomint wighout
making & commilment i the underlysg nstrument, A cragdit defaut swaption
b5 an option bo sell or buy credit protection ta a speafic relmence by entering
o a pre-detined swap ageement by same specifed date in the huture
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Farsign Currency Opflems Certain Funds may wiite or purchise foveign
CastnEnicy Oplions 1o e used 0% a short o boag hedge against podaible
variations. in fareign exchange rates or 1o gain expose to foreign curmencies

Inflaticn-Capped Options Certan Funcs may weite or puschase mflation-
agped options to-enhance retams of for hedging opporiuniies. The purpose
ol [II:II.'ih]'IIrH_] rilation-cappoed opSans is %o probect 2 Fund from inflation
sicuion abeve a certain rale on a given notional exposure, A loar can be
ugeed 1o getve dowmsede proEeion 10 wvesiments o inflaton-linked produCs

Imimeast Ran-Capped Options Certan Funds may waite o1 purchase interest
rale-capped options 10 echance returms od for kedgirg opportunities. The
purpose of puschasing intenest rate-cappéd optiom |5 b protect a Fund fiem
Hﬁé[l'lg rate risk ahive 3 CEMAm rate o & gven notanal expdsure. A flet
can be wsied to give downside probection 1o irvestments in merest rate linked
products

Imtarest Rats Swaptions Cortain Funds may wite o purchase inSerest rate
wraptiont which ae ogtions 10 enter in%o a pre-didingd Swap ageement o
1o shorten, exdend, candel or othersise modify an exsting swap agieement,
by some sgecified date in the futwe. The writer of the swagtion becomes the
counierpaity to the fwap if the buyper execcises. The inlerest rate swaption
agreerent will specily whether the biuyer af the swaplon will b a foed-rate
recerver of i fied-rate payer upon exerdse,

Optiens en Exchange-Traded Faturea ConBracta Certa n Fusch may weile oo
purchase oplions on exchange-paded futures cantracts (" Futures Optien™) ta
hedge an exdsting position or future imvestment, for specsiative purposes of to
IMaEGE ExpoLsE Lo market movemenis A Fuluees Ogtion f an option
ecaitract n which the underying irstrument is 2 single futures contract

Optlens &n Secodties Cerman Funds may waitz or puichase oplion
weowites 10 enhance tebutrs or 1o hedge an exsting paition or fuluee
imeestment. An oplion on o security ises & specibed security as the uncerling
Instruementt for the option contract

[d} Swemp Agrasments Certan Funds may invest in swag agreements. Swap
agreements ae bilaterally negotianed agreernents between & Fund and a
counterpany to exchange or swap irvestment cash flows, assets; foeeign
cumrgnciek or market-linked refums at specified, hutwe intervals. Swap
agrisments my be privately neqotisted in the OTC market o may be claared
thwoagh a thind pary, known &s a cendral counserparty or derivathves clearing
organization ["centrally deared swaps™). A Fund may enter into asset, oedit
defaelt, cross-cutrency, imenest rate, total retuen, varance and other foems cf
SWAM AGIEEMENtS 10 Manane it exposure ba credit, currency, infenest rate,
commodity, equty and inllation risk. 1A conmeclion with thise agieements,
seurities o cash may be identified as collateral ar mamg n in accordance with
thee e of the respectiae Swap agreements 1o provide sssets of value and
mernirss m e event of default or bankruptoyfirsnbmney

Centeally cleared vwvaps are maried to marke? dadly based upen valuation as
distesmined from the underlying contract or in accordance with the
reguirements of the central counterparty or derivatives cleasing cvgarization
Changes if maiket value, if any, &e reflecied a4 2 companent o net changs
in ureealzed appreciation {depreciation) on the Starements ol Opesations
Daily changes in valuation of certrally deared swaps (" Swap Variation
Margin®™}, it any, ame discloved within centrally cleared Bnancial dervatave
Instrumenits on the Mataments of Assets 2nd Lisbilziss, OTC SWap psyments
tecewved or paid at the beginning of the measuiement penicd are indleded on
the Staterments of Assets and Liabilties and represent premiums paid o
eceivid upon enlerng inlo e Swap agreement 1o (oTpEale fai
diffzrences between the stated terms of the swap agreemens and prevading
markel conditions {credit spreads, cunency exchange rates, mlenest rates, and
other redesant factors], Uplont premiums received {paid) are initially recorded
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s labilities {nsseis} and subsequently marked to market to reflect the cunent
walye of the vwag These up"l:,n'l premiums ano ecorded 25 realined g.1irr. ar
fosses om the Statements of Operations upon tevmination or maburity of the
swap, A liquidation payment received or made 31 the termination aof the swap
mreconded & realized gain o |ods on the Stazements of Operatians. Net
petiodic paymints recewied of pald by a Fund are included 2 part of realized
gains of lpsses on the Staterrents of Operations

Fot purposes of applyng certain al a Fund's imestment policices and
tesmictiony, wwiap sgieements, like gtk derivative insiruments, may be
valued by a Fund at marked value, notional value or hull exposure value. In the
cage of a crodlif defauill swap, in apphyng certain of the Fund's investment
policies &nd restrictices, the Fund will value the credi default swap a1 is
notional value or fs full exposure value [l.e., the sum of the notional amount
{or the contract plus the market value], bt may value the coedit defadll swap
Al market value Tor purpeses of appiieg cemain of e Fund's other
Imvestment policies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value oedit
dedault sevaps at Tull exposure value for parposes of she Fund's credis quality
quidelieses {if 2vy) because such value i general berter reflects the Fund's
artual evonorrec exposure dueing the teem of the oedit default swap
ageement, As a resull, a Fund may, at times, kave rotlonal esposure toan
assel class (before recting] that & greater of lesser than the stated limit o
reswictian neted in the Fund's Offering Memarandum. bn this coniest. both
the rational amount and the market 'walme may be posstve or negatve
depending on whethers (he Fund & seling or buying protectian thioogh the
credit defaudt swap. The manner in which cerfain sequiites or ather
irstruments are valued by the Fund for purpases of appling imestment
palicies and resiricton. may diffier fram the mannar in which thoe
evesinenis aie valosd b ather tydes of investots. Enleneg Into swap
agreements imchves, bo vanying degrees, elements of infenest, credit, market
and documentation risk in excess of the amounts necagnized on the
Staterents of Assets and Liadivbes. Such risks involve the possibiity that

there will be ro bguid marke e these agreements, that the vounterparty to
the agresments may default on its coligation to perform o disagree as 1o the
meaning of conracisal tems in the agreements and that there may be
unfavoraole changes in inderes: rates or the values of the asset upon which
the wwap is bined

A Fund's maimum risk of lovs from counterpasty eredit rak i the decountied
et value of the cash flows 1o be received fiom the counterparty aver the
consiact’s remaining e, 1o the ecent that amount is pesitive. The risk may
e mitigated by haning a master nering arrangement between a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collateral to a Fund 1o cover a Fund's
exposre b the counleipasty

To the xtent a Fund Bas a policy 1 Emis the nel assount owed 10 of 1o Be
ieceived lnoem a single countérparly under exivting vwap agresirenty, such
Femitation only applies to counterparties o OTC swaps and does rat apply to
centrally deared swvams where the countesparty is & central counterparty or
At vatnes Ciiad i) e gurLEalion

Credit Default Swap Agresments Certain Funds muy enter inta

credit defauk swaps on cosporate, lean, soveieign, WS munidpal or U5
Tenasury issLaes 1o provide a meakure ﬂl'plu‘t-rllnr.aqnimtdclaulln al the
Haues Le, bo reduce rak where o Fund ownd of hag exposure 1o the
referenced obligation) or to take an active long or shart position with respect
1o the likefibood of a parficular issuns defawt. Credit defaclt swap
agiesments invohe ane party making a sream af payments {relered o &
the buyesr of protection) o another party (the selier of proection} in exchange
for the right 1o 1eceive a specified return in the event that the ieherenced
enity, obigatian of index, = specified i the swap agieement, undergoes a
ceraimn credit event. As a seller of protection on credit delault swap
agreements, a Fund will generally ieceive from the buyer of protection a fied

rate of income throughout the term of the swap provided that there s no
ceedil evenl. As the seiber, o Fund would r1|'|'|::r-'|:lg,l add leverage o i
postiolio becasse, in addition to its 10%al ret assets, the Fund would be
subgect to Investment exposute on the notional @mount of the swap

Il & Fured 13 & seller af protection and a cedit event oo, ga defined under
the e of than partiosar swap agresment, a Fund will either (] pay 1o the
buryes of prolection an amount equal ta the notiona! amount of the swap and
takg defivery of the refenenind cbiigation, ather defreerable obligations o
unciechying secarities comaiising the refecenced index oe i) pey & et
setilement amount in the form of cash or securties equal 1o the notional
amownt of the swap lets the recovery value ol the wiesenced obligation o
unideshying secdrities comarising the refesenced ind2x if 8 Fund is a buyer of
protection amd a medit svent ocrues, &5 defined under the terms of that
particuiar pwap agreenent, a Fund will gisher () receive Trom the seller of
pralecTion an Amount aqual o the notens] anoont of the owap and delier
the referenced cbiigation, other defrserable obfigations or underhying
secuites compresing the referenced index or il receswe a net setflement
amaut im the form of cash or securities equal 4o the notonal amount of the
swap less the recovery value af the relerenced ebligation ar underying
seorities gomprsing the relenenced index, Recovery valpes ant estimaled by
markel makers consiceésing eiker indusiry standard monny rates of entity
speciiic facioes and conshderations untl a credt event ocours If @ credit event
has poourned, the recoveny walue i5 debermired by a taciliated auchon
whereby b minimum number of aliowable beoker bids, wopether with a
specified waluation method, are used o caloulate the setdement value. The
ability 1o defiver ceher obligatiors may rewult in a cheapest-to-deliver aption
[the busee o protecsan’s right 10 choose The deliverable obligaticn with the
lowest value foliowing a cred event)

Crediz defaw't swap agreements on credit indices imvalve one party making a
siream of payewnls 1o anather party in eschange for the nght 1o receive a
speified 1etum m the event of a wiite-cown, priscpal shoedzll interest
shartfall ar delault of all or pan of the referenced entites comgrising the
coedil index. A credil mdex is 2 basket of credit instrumentd or exposures
desigred 10 be represestative of some part of the credt markes as a whahe
These indites am made up of relerence credits that are judged by a poll of
dealers 1o be the moat lguid entities in the credit delault v market based
on the seciod af the index Companents of the indices may Include, but &e
ot limited to, investment grade secorities, high yield seouwities, asset-bacied
seriarities, emerging markets, andion varicuk credi® ratings wishin each seclce
Credit indices are traded using eredit default swaps with wandardized terms
Inchudirg a fixed spread and standiasd masuriey dates. A index credit default
srap eelenerces all the mamis in the index, ad il thee is a default, the oredit
ever i6 sertled based on thar name's welght in the Bdeg. The composizian of
the indices. changes perodically, wwualy every six months, aed for most
indices, each rame has an equad weight in the index: A Fund may use credit
default wwaps on credit indees 1o hedge a pertinlio of cred defacl swaps e
bonds, which is less expensive than t would be ta buy many credit default
swaps 1o achieve a similar effect. Credit defasl swaps on indices are
ingzrurmests for prodecting imaeston owning bonds agirt delauli, snd
traders use thism to speculste an changes in credit quali

Implied credit spreads, repeesented in absolute terms, utized in determining
the market walue of coedit defaull swap agreements on cofporate, loan
soveteign, U5 munidpal o U S, Treaswry kssues as of pencd end, If amy, are
dischosed In the Mates to Schedule of lvestments Thl}II serve as an indicador
of the current status of payrenvperiormance eisk and represent the Eoelihood
of ilsk of defach for the elerencad entity. The mplied credn speead of &
particuiar rederenced enity refiects the cost of buyingfsalling protection and
may O lude updront paymisnts requined 10 be made 1o enber inta he
agreement. Widsr credit speeads represent a deterioration of the eferenced
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entity's credit souncness and a greater lielhood or risk of defaw or ather
credit event occurting as defined under the terms of 1he agreement. For crodit
default swap agreemeants on asset-backad securithes and oredit indizes, the
quobted market pices and rewilting values serve as the indicator of the oarrent
s1atus of e pa',.m:n'."pﬂ‘.mmalxr bk, Inereding macke] waloes, in abdalute
terms when companed 10 the natienal amaant of the swiap, represent a
detericeation of the referenced entity's oredit soundress and 2 greater
teelibood af rivk of deliul of other credit enent pEcuiring a5 diefined uncer
the termia al the sgreement

The maximum potertial amoent of future payments (undiscounted) that

& Fund] 4% & wilier al peatecins could be requined 16 make undes & ered
default swap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement
Haotional amaunts of sach indwidual cedit defzult wwep agreement
outitandng at of petied end lor which a Fund & the selier of protection ang
dicloted in the Maoted 10 Schecule af Investmsnts TR potential amounis
would be partialty of fset by amy recovery vakies of the respective referenced
abligations, upbont payments recefved wpon entering inio the agreement, o
i armounis teceived from the settlement of buy protection medit cefadl
swap agreements entered info by a Fund for the same referenced entity or
enilies

Interast Rate Swap Agreements Certain Funds ae sobyect to infecest rate
fhsk exposure in the nomal course of purasng thelr mestment abjectives
The vahue of the foed rate bonds that a Fond holdy may decrease if imterest
b dise, To hedp hedge againgd this tisk and 10 maintain s ability (e
generate income 3t prevailing market rates, a Funid may entes info interest
rate vivap agreements. Inerest rate swap agreements imvolve the exchangs
bry @ Fursd wigh angther party for their iespeciive ommitmen to pdy ar
tecene intefest o the notlonal amounl of principal. Ceram loms ol inteest
rate swap agreements may include: [} intevest rate caps, under which, in
retorn for & precmius, ane party agrees 1o make payments 10 the other 1o the
extent that imterest rates exceed a specified rate, or "cap”, (i} interest rate
floors, undes which, in et Tor a premium, ore party agrees to make
payments fa the ather to the extert that inserest rates fall below a spectied
rate, o “oor”, (i8) imerest rate collass, undes which 2 party sells a cap and
purchases a floor o vice versa in an attempt 1o protect izsell against intecest
rabe meyements exoeeding given minimum o maxinum levels, i) callabhe
irerest tale swaps, under which the buyer pays an upliont fee in
oonsideration for tha right 1o eady terminate the swap fransaction in whols,
al rero cost and at a predetermined dale and time peiod 16 The maturity case.
{v) spreadincks, which allow the infeness rate swap users B2 lock in the
foroaed differential {or spread) between the Intesest rabe swiap 1a%e and a
speified benchmark, o () basis swags, under which fwo parties can
exchange varisle imerest raes based on dfeent segments of money
markets

Total Retern Swap Agresmsents Certain Funds may enfer into total retum
WD M MERMEns B0 gHn O Mimgate expasure 1o 1he underlying relenenoe
Tottal return swap ageesments imalve commizments whese single or multiple
cash flows are excharged based om the price of an underlying reference asset
and on & looed or variakle interest rate. Total return Swap agreements may
Irtlve commitments 1o pay inserest in exchange fee a market-linked rebun
One counterparty pays out the total return of a specific underdying refevence
aiel, wiich may mclude a '|.r\-g|L- wecunty, & haske! of securities, of an index,
and In return recewes 3 feed or variable rate. At the matunty date, a met cash
Hlow s enchanged wheee tte tntal reteen is equaalent tn the retum of the
uncerlying refitence diet s a fl'li:l{il‘ll‘, rare, i ang. &S 2 recERer.

Fumd would recetve payments based on any pesithes tofal retun and would
awe payments in the event of a negative fotal retum. As Bhe payer, a

Furd would owe payments on any podithee tatal return, and would ecere
payments in the even of 3 net n2giive 1ol rensn

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Funds (or Acquired Funds, if applcable)
rade Imandial imsiryments and emer io linandial nsschont where ik ol
potential loss exiss due to soch things as changes in the market (market isk)
of failure or Inakefity of the other party to a arsaction o perfoim (oedit and
counterparty risk). See below lor a detailed descrption of select principal
Tiles

Fume of Funs T the extent that certain Funds imest substantially &l of e
respoctive assety in Acgured Funds, the risks associated with imesting in
these Funds will be closely related to the risks associated with the securities
and other investments held by the Acquired Funds. The ability of the Funds to
ichievr their respective investmeni obiectives may depend upon the ability of
th Acquired Funds (0 achiess ther réedpactive mvestmisnt ahjectives. Thete
ran be no assurance that the imvestment objectve of any Aoguied Fund will
be achieved, The HAY of an Acquiting Fund will Tictuale in response 1o
changes in the respective NAY of the Augaied Fund in which il invests

In thee normal course of business, Acguieed Funds trade financial istruments
and gner imo Financial transactions whiess sk of potential loss exists due to
changes in the markes (market risk], of falure or inabilty of the e pamy 1o
a transaction 1o perfoem (oeds and COuniepasTy 1sk)

Markot Riska A Fund's ivestments in finandal derivative instruments and
othier tnanoal instiements exposs the Fund 85 vanbus sk sach a5, but fBat
limited o, intefess rawe, hreign (nan-L0.5 | cureency, eguity end commodicy
s

IriBeress rade fisk if the isk that Ticed income secuities 35d othel mitruments
held by a Fund may decline in valuee berause of an increass in interest ates
s nominal interest rates rise, the value of certain Sxed income securities heid
by & Fund i likely to decredde. A nominad ikleest rate can be descnibed a3
the sum of & real imerest rate and 2 expected inflation rate. Intesest rate
charges can be sudiden and urgpredictable, and a Fund may hose money if
these changes ate rol anticipated by Fund management. A Fund may not be
able to hedge aqaimd changes in interest rates ar may choode rof 1o do 4o fior
ot or other reasons. In-addition, any hedges may not work as intended

[huration i o measune vied to determine the tensitivity of & Secunty’s price to
thanges in inbesest iates that inmmpedates a securitys peld, coupan, final
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Conveity 5 an
adcitional measuee used to underitand a security's or Fund’s inbenetl rate
sty that meeasures the rate of change of durslion i iedpanse t
changes In interest 1abes. Foted income securities with fonger dwiatkans tend
to be more sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them mom
volatle than securities with shorer durations. A wide variety of faciors can
raurse iierest rates to nse le g, central bark manetary pofioes, inflation
rates, geosemal econcenic conditions, elc ], Unde! currenl economic qonditions,
Interest rabes e near histarically fow levels. The Funds currently lace &
heightened level of inferest rate nsk, especialy sinoe the Fedesal Reserve
Baand has ended its quantitative easing program aad has begun, and may
poETlinue, 1o rabe interes! rates. To the extent that the Federal Reierve
continues 1o rafse interest mibes, 1hene ks a risk that rates: acrass the finandial
system may rise. Further, while bond markets have steacily giown over the
past thiee decadss, dealer “markel makirg™ ability has not kept pace and &
soene cases has decieased Given the mportance of nlermediary “market
making™ in creating 3 robust and active market, fieed income securities ane
carrently Eacing increased volatility and liguidity mics. All of these facions
collecthvely andior individsally, could cause a Fund 1o lose value, ¥ the Fund
lost enough value, the Fumd could face inmeased Unitholder redempbions,
which could force the Fund 1o iguidate imsestments at -:I':;nr!m-ﬂarp:u{:. times
of prioes, thereby adveriely affecting the Fund. Ao, the Fund may be
adversely sffected when a lange Unitholder perchases or redeems large
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amounts of units, which can occur at sy time and may ‘mpact the Fund in
the same manner & a high volume of redemption mequests. Lange Uratholder
transactions may impact the Fund's ligudity and net asset value. Such
tramsactions may ako increase the Fand's tramsacton costs or othensise
cause the Fund to perdorm diffesently thas intended. Moceaver, the Fund is
subject ta the rick that ather Unitholders may make Fvestment decsions
hased on the chalces of a lange Unithoide

The Fumds may irmnesd sgnificantly in securities thal are ecoromically ted 1o
Aggenting and thus subgect 1o vanous ks, such a8 palitcal, scoromic, lagal,
markat, and ourmency risks. Cumently, investreents in Argentna are
patticularly subject 1o elfects from the country™s high inflation, economic
ratabslity, and pofitical st

A Tund may have significant esposune 1o ssuers in the United Kingdom. The
Uhnited Kingdom’s decision 10 kave the Ewropean Union may impact Fund
retand This decision miy cluse Substantial volatfity in Biegn exchangs
markats, lead toweakness in the exchange rate of the British pound, result in
a sustained period of market ancertainty, and destabilize iome or all of te
ather European Union member countries andior the Ewozane

Foepign (non-U.5 ) secunities in thes eport e dassifed by the cowniry of
N ol & hodding. In cevlain Emlarce, o secuily's ountny ol
irconparation may be different friom s country of economic expodute

H a Fund imvests directly in foreign {non-U %S ) comendies or in securities that
trade in. and recenve revenues in. foseign fron-U 5D cumrencies, of in Snancial
demvetive instiumerts Thal provide expmure 1o foiegn {noceU S | (eende,
it willl be subject to the risk that those curencies will dediee i value relathe
o the base curvency of the Fund, o, in the case of heaging postions, that
The Fund's base cutrenty will dacling in value relatve 10 1he cuitendy Bivg
hedged. Curiency rates in forelgn countiles may Tuciuate significantly awer
short periods of time Sor a number of reasons, induding changes in interest
tates, intacwention [of the: falune 1o merene] by LS. of Madeigh conmimenent,
central banks or supranational enttizs such as the International Monstary
Fursd, or by the impostion of cavendy controls or other pobtical devecoments
i the Uited States or abroad. A5 8 regalt, 3 Fund's invesimaents in farcign
curtency-deraminated secuities may reduce the Fund's returs

The market values of equities, such & comman stocks and predemed securities
of eguity relsted investmentd sach as futwres and opEicny, kave historically
thsen and fallen in perodic cycles and may declne due fo general marked
condiions which are not specifically related to 3 particuar company, such &
teal of perceived adverse economic conditicen, changes in the general
outleok lor cosparaie eamings, dhanges in imersst or curtency rales of
atverse mwestor senfiment gereraly. They may also dedine due to factors
which allect & partitular indssny of industries, weh as Lo dharages o
ircreasad procultnn (018 and competitive condtions within an indusiry
[efferent types of equity seourities may react differently to these
developments. Equity securities and squity related investments generaly have
qeates marked prace volatilty than foed income secunties

The Funds may invesd in certain instruments that rely im some fashion upon
the Londca interbank Céered Rate (LIBORA™). LIBOR is ar average interest
rate, determned by the ICE Eeschmark Administration, that hanks charge
ane anacher for the use al sharm-tem maney. The United Kingdom's Financial
Conduct Autharity, which regulates LIBOR, has announsted plans 1o phase out
the une of LIBOA by the end of 2021, Thene remaing uscetainty rega M.'Im:j
future utilization of LIBO# and the nature of any replacement rate, and any
potantial effects of the transftion away from LIBCA on a Fend o on certan
wntrumants o which & fond investa aee not knmyn

Credit and Coumtarparty Risks & Fund will be exposed to cred 1 ik 1o
parties with whom it sades and will ako bear the rk ol stiement delaut

A Fund minimizes concentratom of credd rsk by undertating transactions
with a lame nember of costomers and caunterpartics on recognized ard
reputable exchanges, where applicable. OTC dervative trandactions are
sulpedt to the risk that a counterparty to the tramsaction will nat fullill s
cortrectun’ abligations 1o the other party, & many al the pratections sfforded
to centrally deased derivative ransactions megitt not be sadable for OTC
derwative ransactions. For dervatives traded on an exchange of theough a
cantral countisparty, crtde risk regides with 1t creditwcethiness of

the Fust d'itlrurlnq Beaki, af the deanaghoiss i, rather tha 1o &
counberparty in an OTC denvative fransaction. Changes in requlation relating
o -a Fund™s wse of denivatives and related imsruments coukd pu’.-'.ﬂnllﬂ"" lirmit
of nipact the Fund's ability to ewest in deriatives, limit the Fund’s abiiry 1o
employ certain strategies that use derivatives and'or adversely affsct the valee
or performiance of derivatives and the Fund, A Fundi could lowe money i the
IRkuef of Guaranton of A loed Benme Wiity, o the ¢ouflBipaity i A
finzmicial detivative instruments contract, iepurchase agreement of a loan of
postiolio securilies, i$ unable ar umwilkng 1o make timely principal andior
Interest payments, e to otheswise honce its obligation:. Securities and
financial dermvative instruments 2 subgact o varying degees of oredit risk,
which may be rellected in credi ratings.

Sirmilef 8o credif ritk, a Fund may be expoded to counterparty vk, or the ik
that 4n instifution ar other entity with whch a Fund has unsetiled of epen
transactions will defaull. PEMCDL 25 the Marages, minimipes countemparty
1ikes, 16 the Funds hrough & numbsss of ways, Frion 10 emlening inlo
transactiors with a new counterparty, the PRMCO Counterparty Risk
Commistes conducts an exdensive redit review of such countesparty and musst
approve the use of such counterparty. Farthésmeore, pursuant to the 1eimed of
the underlying coniract, i the extent that unpad amousits cwed 1o a Fund
exgeed a precietermined threshald, such counterparty shall advance collateral
1o a Fund in the ferm af cach or securities equal in value ta the unpaid
amouwr owed fo 2 Fund. A Fund may invest such coliateral i secunties or
other instruments and will typkally pay smieresdt to the counterpanty on the
toflateral received. If the uapaid amownt owed e 2 Fund subsequenily
decreases, a Fund wauld be required to retumn to the countesparty all o 2
postn of the collateral previously advanced. FIMCO's atternpts to mmze
counlenpaty risk may, hiwever, be unsacoestul

Al irarsactions m Eted seourites e sentledipaid for upon delivery wsing
approved counterparties. The risk of default is considered minimal, a5 defwery
of securities sold i only made once @ Fund has recenmed payment. Payment is
made on & pusthase ance the seturities have been deliered by the
counterparty. The trade will il f either party fails 10 meet its obligation

B. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject 1o vanoas nelting anangemesis (" Master
Agresmenis”] with sefect counterparties, Maiter Agreements govern the
terms of certain transactions, and are intended to reduce the counterparty risk
assotiated with relevant transachions by soecthyrg credil protection
mechanivms and providing standasdifaton thal i mended bo improve legal
certainty. Each tepe of Master Agresment govens certai fypes of
transactiors. Ditferent types of tansactioes may be traded out of ditferet
legal entities of allilistes of 3 pasticylas prganization, risulling i the: reed oo
midtigle agreements with a sngle counlerpanty, &s the Masies Agreements
are specific 1o unique operations of diflorent asset fypes, they allow @ Fund o
ot out and net its total exposerd b0 & countenpaity in the ovent of a defaws
with respect ta all the transactons govemed under a single haster
Agreement with a coentenparsy. For financlal reporting puiposes the
Statements of Awsets and Liabilities generaly present dertmtive 25wt and
lishalies o & groas basis, whach reflects the ful risks and exposiees peior 1o
natting
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M asier .-fu?'l'--nl-:l'ﬂ. can also help limit counterparty risk by specifying
collateral posting amangeme pie-aranged coposune bevels, Under most
Master Agresments, coflateral is routinely transferad if the total met axposure
o oertain ransactions {net of exsting collateral already in place) govemed
undef the pelevant Master Agreement with a counterpany it & ghven sooun]
eqcoeds 3 spedified theshald, which typscally ranges from 2ero ta §250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of M:
Sates Tredrsury Balls aned U5, callr cish ang gereral
collateral, althcugh other fore ol A0 fated paper of stnvereign securilie
may be wsed depending on the t2rms putlined in the appli
Agreement Securities and cash pledged a5 collatesal ane r
SLETS on the Satements of Aszets and Liabilmies a5 aithes 3 componant of
mestments at walue {secatities) or Deposits with Counkerpary Cah C
mpceivied & nat typicaly held in a seqgregated acoount and as such is rellocied
Ty oh 1he Sintemants of Asiets and L i il epotins feom

arty. The market vabse of any securities receved as collateral & not
meflected a5 @ component of NAY. The Fund's overall exposune to
courteiparty sk can changh subdtantally wathin & thon peid, a5 i i
attected by each transachon si hiert 1o the relesant Mas:pr Miypement

Wagiet Repurchase Agreements and Global Mash
(individually and cofectively “Master Repo Agr gomern repunchase
reverse repuichase, and safe-huyback transaclions between the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repd Agreements mairgain provisonsg for
among alher things, init n, income paymeents, events ol delaul
maintenance of collateral The market value of transactions usder the Masier
Repo Ageement, collateral pledged or recerved, and the ret exposure by
countpany i of period end ane ducloted im the Notes 1o Schedude of
TVestmEnts

qreeeits

basier Sec 3 Forward Tramsaction .ﬁl;'rc'r.rﬁl".l:'r.‘im.lnr- Farwaid
Begreeme ) gowern certain lonwvard setling bansactions, such ay TBA
secunties, delayed-deinery or l.ahﬁ-l:u,ua:h. trarsactons by and

between (e Fusds and select countenparties. The

collate hedged o ieceived, and the net eapo
peetiod end are dicloted in the Nows 1o Schedule

i ColE
fIveLImants

Customer Arcount Afreemaerts and related addenda govem cearnsd
derivatives trarsaction such as tubues, options on fuluses, and deared O1C
derivatives. Such ramactions requiee posting of initlal margin as detemaned
by mach mlevant deanng agency which & seqregated in an acoount at a
{utures commission mechant {"FCK™) registened wath the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission (TCFTCT). i thie Unitid S120es, counmespamy tisk
mary be reduced as creditors of an FOM cannot have a claim to Fund assets in
the segregabed account Portabilty of espasure in the event of an FCM
detault seenara furiber redaoes ek 10 the Funds Yariation miat
chaniges in mareat value, a8 eahanged da ly, burt miay naot be retted
between futures and cheared OTC derratives unless the parties have agreed
10 & Separate steangement in resped of fond margning, The masket value ar
atomulated urdealzed appreciation (depreciation), inMal mangin posted, and
any wsettled wariation masgin a5 of period end ane disclosed in the Kotes to
Schedule of Freitment

Imternationsal Swaps and Der ves Assocation, Inc. Masier Agreemenis and
Support Anrexes {1 Master JIII;'I!Pﬂ'PI'llkr:hT.-'UI n hilatera OT(
difvalve Barcticr eflered inla by the Funds with Select courspates
FSMA Blasted Agreements maintain provisions for general obligat
representations, agreements, collatenal posting and events of default or
1emmination Bnents af Temmenaticn icclude condiions that may entitle
counierpariies 1o elect 1o teiminate ealy and cause sett

r

outstardd ng trarsactions under the agpbicab e 1504 Master Agreement Any
electon 10 termerale carly could Be matersa 1o the hinandial shsement In
limited ceoumstances, e DA Master l".glélllr'!l"'. May Contan additonal
provisions thal add counterparty protection beyand caverage of existing daily
experiune i v courtemparty his a decling in credit quality below a peedefined
lewel, These amaunts, i any, may be sagregated with & therd-puwty oostodlas
The market valuz of OTC financial dervative struments, collateral received
of plidged, and net exposure by courterpeety a5 of period end ane divchosed
i thee Netes by Seheduls of Imetiments
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to Financial Statemen

8. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund ks subject to the Follwisg Tees payable at the Tollowing anual rates (stabed as a percentage of the average daily ret assets of each Fund, or Class, #

anplicahle, taken senaratsly)
Fimim
Fuesd Wi gt Rirsary Bisisanativy Ageriy Tt balion
MMCD Bermuda Fareigs Low Duration Fund I7E%
PIMCD Bormsads U5, Low Duratsas Fusd 07%6%
MMCD Eurn Tetal Ratem Fend nas% 025%" 0% [k
MMCD Rzal Return Fund oan%" 025%™ % [ilef i
PIMCD Sharl-Tam Sirstogy
. ALD 035 %° 0m%" 032%"
. J LAY
. o (UED|
. Jr 135 %™ ™ o™
. UED 035 ™ il 5 ik Ly
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The managemant, ﬂ\“_\q‘l'j' andl adminstrative bees, il appicable, are paid monthly in amears to PIMCO or providing or arranging for the prowision of advisory,
ardministratioe and thind party seneces indudig audit, cusodal, oo, portiolio accounting, routing legal, transter agent and primting senices. The agency and
distribution fees, iF applicable, ane paid monthly in arrears to reimberse finandial imtermediaries that provide senvices and distrution relating to the units of the
applicable Fund (o Class thereol, 35 spplicable). In the case aof the PIMCO Bermuda Foseign Low Duration Fund and MO0 Bermioda U 5. Low Duration Furd, PIMCO,
aut of its managemerst fee, will bear the oot aisocaied with sdvisory and sdministratie seraces, 0. 1% ol which i dedigrated 10 cove sdmirmiiralive expenses. i
eqchange Tor this fee, FINCO will baar the costs of cerrain thind-pasty senvices required by the Funds, including audit, catodial, tnustes, panfelio accounting, legal,
transfer agent and prnting senvices. MIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benefit fram any price decrease in the corst of swch thind-party services, induding decrezses
esulting from an imfhéase in ol assets. In addition, with respect 10 Fusds thal dre subject o an adminigtashoe fee, PIMC O generally mates & poolit on such a fee

A nofed in the table above, cerain Furds and Clasass of Funds s not subisct 1o management, advisory, sdminiicative, agency of distribution fess. AMCD lapan
Lid, PIMCO's affiliale im Japan, is paid a fee from the Japanese investment Trusts or otfer investmert vehicles that irvest in swch Funds or {lasses and a paition of
such bee & then aliocated 1o PRCD 1o compensate if for s services

T Fumds {or Classes thereof, as apolcable) may bear ccher expenses related o thes operaticn that ane mot oovened by the managemient, advisory, adminsirative,
agenty o datribution {ees, includag but not limited to: (1) tases and governmental Seex; [ji) beokerage fees and commessions and other portiofo Tansaction experdes;
{in) coits of berming morey, inchuding interest pperies {iv) extracedinary exseries, including couts of [itigation and sndemnificatsan experriaes: and () any expenses
afecited o allocable to 4 spealic Clats of urits, as agpbcable. FIMCO had paid, o wall pag. the anganizanenal expenses adsocraded with PIMCD Shat-Term Sirateqy’s
irtial set-up

PIMCO andior its affliates wil iritialy advance to FIMC O Shart-Term Strateqy a costs and expenses, inchiding lega! expermes, inoamed in connection with the initial
public n‘!r'-nq of she IPY and USD Classes of Units of the Fund in Lipasy 1= 0# Eapetrega”) AL Of fas B COMmantBmEnt ol the Fund's aaerations, the Fund will
reimburse PINMICO ancor its afiliates o the Ofering Expenses advarced and will amonize such Ciferng Experdes oves the first Bscal year of its cperations. Howeser
PIMCO has agreed o wawve reimbarsement of the Offering Experses to the extent that such experses eaeed 0.05% per annum of the sum of the @Y and LSD
Classes Net Asset Value (the “0ffesing Expense Limitation®). Ay Ofiering Expenses waieed due to the Ofering Expense Limitataon may be ecouped by PINCO andior
its affiliates ot @ period rot ecceeding Bve years from the commencenent ol the Fund's opeations; provided, the amount recouped by PIMCO andior its affiSanes shall
not ddceed 0 05% péd Snnum of the wim ol the IPY and USD Claced” NAV, If enker ol the IPY and USD Clastes of Units of the Fund & teiminatsd ghior 10 the ful
reimbursement af all Otfering Experces, FIMCO andtor s affiliztes shall not seek reimbursement of any remaining uneeimbursed amounis from that Class.
Turthesmore, if both of the IFY and USD Classes of Units of the Fund are terminated prior 1o the full reimbursement of all Offerng Dxperses, FIMCO andor its afilates
thill it seek rismbursement ol any fembining unesmbunisd EHbunts liam this Fund PIMCO S5 pued, oF wall pay, all eodts and espensed, ndluding legal sxperdet,
mcurned in connection with the initlal public offering of the AU Class at Ursts of the Furd in lapan As ol May 31, 2019, there were no recoverable Offering Frpenses
T FIMC D andior its alfiliaes

PIMCO has appoined SMBC Micko Securitie Inc. 10 act as Acen| Company and Ditributar for the distibution and senvicing of units of the PIMCD Euro Totel Retum
Furd, FIMCO Real Retwn Fund, and the i1 ard USD Classes of PIMCO Short-Term Strateqy to retail iveestors in lapan. FIMCO has appointed SMEC Nikko Securities
nc 1o act as Agent Company for senvicng of units of AUD Class of PMCO Short-Term Strateqy. No agent companies bawe been appointed for 2y of the other Funds.
PIMED has pad the crganizational exgerdes associated with the ceation of the Tiust o furiber Funds are launched, sech oosts directly artiibutable to the ielevard
Furd may be bame by the relevant Fund

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imvestment Advisar 15 a refated party 1o the Funds and ts @ majosity-owned subsidiary of Allanz Asset Management Al Fees pald to the related party, if any, ame
disclosed im Note 9, and accrued related party fee amounts, If any, e disciosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

Alliang Asset Maragement AG. a related party of the Trust, owned 0.054% of the net assets of the PIMCO Shart-Term Strateqy as of May 31, 2015

Certain Funcs ate parmitied ta purchase or sell secusities rem of to cevtain eelated aflilated hunds under spectied conditions autfined in procedures adapted by the
irrvesement Achiser. The procedunes have e designed Bo emsure that any purchase of sale of securities by a fund Tram or 1o another fund that is of could be
comadened an aflikae bry Wit tue of hanirng & comman adviser (of sllilisled imvestment sdvees), is sllected & the cunient ket price. Duiing 1he period ended May
1, 2019, the Fundis) belaw engaqed in porchases and sales of seoulites among aflilated Funds (amounts in theusands):

Ferel Purchases faley
PIMCE Barmrogtia Fodmags Low Dutingn Fung I '] i1
PIMCT Berrraia U5, Lowr Dusstion Fund 1] Z.188
ML Emergeag Matkets Bord Fund W} =1 57 658
PIMCT Byrp Tatal Beten heng 2] [F ]
MDD Ze Rrivm Fad (] 189
FMCD Sz Tm Srategy T TEaE

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Under the Trust"s ceganizational documents, cerfain padties (including the Trustes and PIMCO) are sgemnified against cariain Eabiites that may arse out of
peiformance of thelr dutles to the Funds. Additanally, in the mormal course of butiness, the Funds enter inda coniracts that contain & varety of indemnifcation clauses
Thee Funck' miimum exposaee under these arangements is unknaws as this would invohe fute daims that may be made sgainst the Funds that have nof yet
ocoumed, Howeser, the Funds have not had prior cams or losses porsuant to e copiacs
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Notes to Financial Statements «

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

ssued wit
it " - e creale and 3 g 355 o Classes of unigs of any d

Changes in urits of beneficial inbeest were a5 follows (units and ambunis in thousands® )

Viear Dneed Toar Lnded Viear Lnaed Toast mdad
May 11 208 ey T, 3R May 11,203 ey T8, 3000
Unita Bt Uniu Amcins Uit Roviianl Unity Aciim
Eimcagrs b e s . H | 1408 a 1 Lo Mmoo M [ M
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Notes to Financial Statements «
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13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATHOMN MATTERS

s are nat named as dedendants in any materiad lisigation or arbliration proceedings and ae not aware of any materizl itgation or diam perding or

egaing spedks only i of the date of the repant

14. INCOME TAX

Trust Is subject to Bermuds L
ary Fung
As a result, B pre

respet o its tax shatus. L

the T

U5, GAAP provides gu
2019, ¢

recoed any

My remain sutsact fo exgim
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atements

1. ORGANIZATION

Farh Fund disnssed o this report (each a “Fund™ and collactively, the “Fungs™), whirts also ndliades aach dass of unis of that Fund [sach a *Class™ and collactively,
the “Clagsas™), i & wehie rrust of FIMCO Beemuda Teust {ihe “Trust™), &3 open-erded wni irust estabishod under the laws of Bermuda as a mult-se e most PUTLLAR]
(o & trust deed executed by Winchester Global Trust Company Limited on Augusi B, 2001 (a1 amended from time 1o time, the =Trust Deed®) Eflectve a5 of the dose of
business {Eastem fime) on November PR, 2006, Winchostor Glofall Trst Company Limited netmed and was dwﬁa'l]n:l a5 trusten of the Trust and Brown Brothers
Hamiman Tz Compuny |nr11an| limited wias appointed a5 new trusies of the Tt for the nveners of onits of tha Funds (ke “Linishodders® ) Flective as of the rose
al Busingss [Eassern tme) on September 29, 2017, Brown Biothers Hatrman Truil Compafy (Caymany Livsted e#tired and wixs dischaiged a5 tustes of the Trust ahd
Waples Trusbes Services [Bermuda) Lissted veas appointed a5 new trustee of the Tt As used in this repoct, all releences 1o the “Trustes® shall mean the pesson
then senving a8 rustes 1o thi Trest. Paclc imnestmant Management Campany LLC (*PIMCD," the "Manager™ of the “Imeabment Advise ™} 15 B sporat cf ard was
responsible for sineciunng the Trust

The Trant o5 subpeil b rexuila lion aned Lo ioh & jioanded fai il T Ivestminl Funds At 2006 and selatesd dules ielating bo standand fuiils

The terms of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trusiee, with the consent of e Manager, the power, in the future, 1o establish further funds in addition to the Funds
cumently in operaton s al tee cate of (b repoit

The Funds presented m this repen are listed bedow:

Funit
PRI Bormwata Foraign Low Duration Furd (iffreed oaly in lusds with o *Fusd of Fends™ strectum,_as dafined in tha sdles ol Sa |
PKICT Berrrvads U5 Low Duration Fusd Eresntmet Triats Asvoxistion, Jepsn. of S fords with & sirmilar structure in sty ofhe
PAKICD Emerging Madets Bond Fund (AT prdiction

PMCD) Emerging Mavrts Bond Fung [YanHodgady
PMCD Emarging Madkets Bond Fund 11
AKICD Emerging WMadkcets Bond Fund

" AKICD Eurn Tatal Ritern furd | ifered o el imeton i Jepan b vesy of publc ::l‘-':lm] hiosgh a Aatrbdo |
PRGN Henl Pt Fard Japan, ard may be offerd o other investors al B deerchon of the Manager |
" NICE) Short-Term Sty | Ot 92 il irvmstons i Jepsan by wea of pebic oifaring Sough @ Sistribglor and/w & |
£aie) harelling eormpary in Jepan, and muoy B0 oflosed B3 ather imaeglom of B dacretion
&l the Maruagii.
] HHE‘DErrmurr;iM.-'rHlaE;.ll.lfuﬂhl'll I |]||'E|NG|11|'II.IU|HIIIIJIJ:I i e e under hpig revestinen] wetiches bor such Py I

“ P LIPPP el T e o P PR S o i o i vy et et i o ' el o, i s oy i ' Py iy’ ooy ooy bt o O it wil® i el shwSry o ey e i

Units of 1he PIMCO Eurg Tedal Retum Fund, PRACO Real Reben Fund, and 8% ang USD Classes of the PIMCD Shor Tem Strateqy have been registered urder the
Financial Instrumenis and Enchange Liw of lagan. Urits of each of the remaining Fundis and the 1 {IFY]) and | (U500 Claddes of tha PIMCO Shaa-Termn Strategy neve
nal been and ane not currenly eapected o be negistened water The Francul Inseuments and Exchange Law of lepan Accondingly, such Units ol these Furds may nos
e, disectly or indicectly, olfered in lapen or to any resident in lapan, except in compliance with applicable lapanese laws and regulabions

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

T hliowsing i @ summary of significant accounting policies consistently followed by t5e Trust in the preparation of its Fnandal statements i conformity with
socounting principhes gengrally sccepted im the United States of America (U 5 AP Each Fund i treated 25 an inmvestment company undest B reportirg
requinemints of U %, GAAR. The peeparation of financisd statements in accoedance with U 5. GAAP requires management ta make estimates and assumptions that
allect the neporied smaints o assets and hehdites and distlosure of entrncent atets and |atalties Al the dste ol the hnasosl Walements and e iepoibed amoonts
al increases and decreaes in net asiet from opecations durng the epoding peviod. Actual eeiats could differ from those estimabes

{nh Uneibertying Fumd Tha Trustes and the Manager misy apply all or a portion of the assets of PIMCO Emerging Markets Bend Fusd [ITF), MACO Emenging Markets
Hord Fund (Yen:Hedged), PIMC O Emernging Markets Bond Fund [, 3 PIMCO Emyqim] Maricats Bond Fund (1 {each referred to bersin 25 a “Fund of Funds® or the
“hegurng Fusd” which invests o ather Fundsh io the nespectie credit ol the FIMCD Ermengng Markets Band Fusd (W) Oeleimed 10 heréin a3 an “Underhang Fund™ of
1he "Aoquiced Furd®) Any assers so applied will be held in suth Acgquired Fund as i recerved directly. Whese ssets are 50 applied, the Acguired Fund wal recoed the
esue of units o the nelevant Acquiing Fund 1 t5e bawe price s unit of sach unity and will repunchase wwth units at the repurchase price pes unit of such arts at the
time of regerchase. Aroedingly, the abifty of the Amuiring Fund to achieve its imestment objective will depend upen the abdiny of the asplicable Aoquired Fund 1o
achiswe 013 imvesiment abpecine. Theve can be no asiurasce that the imsettment objectye of the Acgmined Fund will bo achired

b Secwrities Treesactions and levestmend Income Secaitios. ramegtons ane reomded a3 ol the ede case for Sancial ieporting purposes. Seoailios puichaed oo
sl on & when-ssued o delayed-delivery bass may be settled beyond a standard settiement pericd for the seaeity afier thes irade dave. Realized gaies and losses
{rom seourites sold ane moceded on the identified cost bass, Diwdend ircoms 5 recorcied on the ex-daidend date, sxcept cortain dvadenchy froem foresgn spcunties
wieEne the ex-tvidend date may have Dassed, which &e reconded a5 000 a5 a Fund i§ informesd ol the ex-dividend date. Inberest income, adjusted fior the aceretion of
discouniy ard amoutization of premiums, & meooided on the acoual basis Trom settfement date, with the exception of weowities with a Torward starting eflectie date,
whire inderest incame is iecorded on the socrual bess froe eflective date. For comertible secunities, promisms attributable 1o the comarsion feature e nat
amoitred Fiumaied fax kahibties on ceftam kaieigh securitied ane recorded an an accrusd bide and see iollected a5 components of intered! income or net change ©
uneakized appreciation (depreciation) on ivestments an the Matements of Operations, & sogropnate. Tax Kabil ties reafized as & resut of such seowity sales ane
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reflected as 3 comporant of net reakaed gain (loss) on Ewvesiments on the
Statements of Opecatinns. Paydown gang and lostes on mongage-relstod
and ather assét-backed secuntes, if amy, ame recorded s components of
sntereat inoome on the Matements of Dpenstons

Dbt obfigations may bo placed an non-agoneal statys and related inbenest
moome may be sediced by oeasing curvent accruals and writing off interest
recenibie when the collactan ol 2l of a poitioh of inbérest has become
doubtul baved on consistently spplied procederes. & dedd obligation i
remived Fom non-aocnaal status when the issues revumes inberest payments
af whan collectabilty of interest is prabebie

{eh Cash and Foreign Comency The finandal statements of each Fund are
presented using the cumency of the primary econcmic emacanment in which
apentes (the “furctional cumency™] The functional currency Ror the Funds is
hwe S, dollas, excesd lor the MIMCD Eurd Tatal Retierh Fuss which & the
Eire.

The market values of foseign seauities, cumency holdings and other assets.
and Rabilities an trarslated ndo each Fund™s funciional currency hased on the
cursent enchange rates each business day, Furchases and sales of seqwites
and income and expense femn desommated in boieign curencies, d any, are
translased brin each Fund's espective fundiional cunency at the exchanige
rahe in plfect on the transaction dste. The Funds dio nol separately repart the
eflscis ol changes in foresgn exchange rates from changes in market prices on
secunities held, Such changes are included in net reafited and net changes in
unmealked gain o \oxs from Evvestmants on tha Statemants of Operations

The Funds may mvest o (aregn turfendy démdimabéd Lecadiniel Shil may
engage in foreign quirercy ransactions either on a spot (cash) bashs at the
rate prewading in the cumendy exchasge market 31 1he tme or through 8
Inravard {oreign curmncy cantrsn (s Frascal Denvatsm bninrmenty
Realkzed foreign esthange gains ar lasses arsing from sales of spot fareign
turencies, curendy gaind of bosues resfined betvesn the rade and settlement
dates on sacutiet Transactions and the dfferenoe Betaeen the reconfed
amounts of dividends, irterest, and Toreign withhalding taxes and the
Tuncticnal currency eqamakent al the amounts actualy received o pakd ae
incuded im pet realived gain o loss on foesgn curmency ransadtions ca the
Statements of Operations. Met unrealived forewgn excharge gans and losses
atiying lhom changes in foresgn excharge exies on loregn Serominated asiets
and Rakilities other than imvestrrants in seowities hedd a1t end of the
tepaiting period are included in net change in unrealized appeeciation o
depreciation on foceg currency assets and Gabistes on the $atements of
Ope abgn

T Feat Adsey Wadue | “HANV™) and 1otal retuens of cerlam Fusd (or Classes
thareaf, & apphcabla) are peetented in the currendy for whach the NAY i
reparied (the “NAV currenoy™| as detailed in each Fund's Offering
Wemaoransdum (the “0fferng Memorandum®), For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the potal tetum in the NAY tunesdy, the
hegnming and ending MANs are converted using the parod beginning and
enchng exchange ranes, sespectively, and disributions are comverted using the
exchange rate &7 the tme of the datrbition See the fallowing table for the
NAV curmeniy and fundtional cumency of aach repedtive Fand:

_FIMCY Byt Fetiogn |=w duantiss ford | dparectyén | U5 dodt

£ dodar

FIMICD Bavmats U5 Lave Duranon Fan
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ML) Erecgpen) Markess Bond Foe | Tas-Haogad |
_PMICID Ervassgpng Markata Bood Fued 1|

| W5, doller
| daganesnyen | LS. dellar

= JIBAL
Ll 408
«  J|IKRI
«  JIMONI
#  JiTRT
| - J [ZAR |
| PAMED Ermseging Markstz Band Fond 11 | ganmeyem | LS. dellsr
o JIBAL
«  JIEHY
« AR
s JIHRI
[ o A0 !
| PRMCD Eurs Feeal Funarn Fand
| PO sl enen
| PAMCD Shert-Toem Statagy | B
| s AN LLS: dollar
«  Jish LLE: dollsr
. Jaganesnven | L5, dolir
& |ED A

fdh Multicless Dporatioas Each dass of a Func offered by the Trast has
righta to the asasts of the Fund equal to that of other classes. of the wame
Fund, exoept for specific assels and gains and losses designated to a dass
relating 1o cutrency hedgng operations. Income, non-class specific expenans,
ansdd mon-chass specfic seafized and enrealived capital gaims and kosses am
ahocated to eath class of usits based on the relutve ret assets of each dass
ol the respective Furd Chass specific expendgs cumandly inclace
management, adviady, adminisiratie and distribution Fees, where spolcable

o} Distribtion Palicy The foliowing fable showns the anbiopated frequency
ol distribastions for eath Fund Diatibubond hom each Fund may be declaed
e dstributied to Unitholders only upon the autharzation of 1he Marager,
which authoririteos may be withiteld at the Manage:'s deiceetion

U5, dellm

Ooelared Duily ind Faid Mosthiy

MDD Fur Toits! Aetum Fund

Deelernd and Pald Menshiy

PAADD Ermamging Markts Bond Fard WITH

PRACT Ermingang Marks Bond Fund £ en-Hacgad)
PNCD rmemging Marionts Band Fund i

PMCT Emeging Markets Bond Fard 1l

FAAC0 Shert: Tarm Siriagy
& 197
- J IUFED)

PO Bermuda Foregn Lew Durdon Fund
PAICD Beymuda U 5 Low Danption Fund
Deelsred and Pald Annuilly
PG Raad Ratuen Funt
PMCT Shert- Tam Sussgy

" JPY

= LS
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Tha Managee doss sot avgucl 1o dechare dissibutioss vwilh isagae! b th

Fund (oo Claawed th {, # mpplicadin}, bed may, o e @ retion, dec

FIMCT Ermecgng Marke ts Bond Fund (W)

Disstributecrs, # amy, vl genemlly be mede from the rebevarn Fund's (o
Claas"s, fl apphcablo) ngt Pwettmont income, In addition, the Managor may
sihorine the pargrrient of sed realined capnal gand ausdable Ior detnbubon
Addnianal detibution may be dechared i the Manager deerm apoiopiate
Disaributiers pand with respect to any Fund {or Class theresd, if applicatile)
el reduce the MAY of soch Fand loi C lags theread, if applcshle] At the
discretion of the Unithokders, cash distribations from a Fund for Class theneed,
| applcatie) may sthen be iervested in additional umits of & Fund doi Class
therect, i applcableh or pad 10 a Unithalder in cavh. Cath payments will be
pasdd i the NAY oumency of the Fund Each Fund [or Class thereof, i
apgrlcable) may dedars fustheer dbstribomions. if consioered necessany in odes
10 maintan a reaonshls level of dimtnbetions (or & Tund (o Claw thereod,
FD{ILL’-\IHH Irs thie #¥enT thal e | INacequale neL inome and nel reared
capial gars 1 pay & ditnbutcs of @ Fend (or Class Bweeol, d applicabie)
requited by the Offering Memorandum, the Manage: may pay 3 distiibution
condistng of & partion of the: capstal of such Fund [or Cless thereal,
applcatle) Distributions not collegied within six j'ﬂil'i‘il":f' thewr due daip
will lapse ard will 30cnae o the benefit of the selevant Fund (o Class theeof,
| applcatis)

1A Now Ac:counting Pronosscemants in March 2016, he Financial
peninteg Seanduidd Based ["FASE™) mused an Accernting Standards
Update ["ASU), ASU 201605, which provides guidarce related 1o the
rrpact of derria i coniract novations on certain melationshigs unded
Mocounting Stardaeds Codification Tapic (*ASC™) 815, The ASU i efecie
Ioe il oo becinning aftes Decemiss 15, 7017, and intem peraods
within frscal years beginning atter December 15, 2015 At thisime,
msnagemeil o evalsatsg the implcatons of these chamges o the hnantial
slatements

In August 2016, the FASH issued an ASLL ASU JO16-15, which amends A5C
230 to claily guidence on the clasification of ceiten cah receipty and cah
payments oa the Statement of Cash Flows The AS5U & effective for annual
peviods beginnieg afier December 15, 2018, and isterim periods beginning
Afer December 15, 2009 AT this 1ime, manusgement 5 evaiuamng the
mpbatcns of these changes o the fmancial stabements.

tn Movember 3016, the FASH wiued an ASUL 250 2016-18, which amends
A5 130 (o peovide guidande on the dassification and presendtation of
changes in testricied cash and sesusiied Cash equivalents on the Stalement of
Cash Flowa, The ASU 1 effectnee for annual peniods beginming after Décember
15, 018, and interim periods begnming after December 15, 2019 At this
1ime, manajement i evakiatng the imphianons of these changes on the
linancial satements

in March 2017, the FASE Erued an ASLL, ASL 20T 0F, weich provides
;uﬂ&"{f ielated o the amorteation perod for cestain purchased cakable
ol secunilies beld at 8 premiss The ASU 1 ellectve loi anmssl peiods
beginming after Decomber 15, 2019, and inferim periads. within fiscal yoars
begresng afer Decemmber 15, 2020 This ASL was sdepaed by the Funds. The
mpkementation of the ASU did not have &5 mpact onany Fund®s Snascial
slatements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASLUREMENTS

|a) Investment Valuation Pelicies The price of a Fond's units is based on
thae Fund's NAY. The MaX of a Fund, or sach of its classes, as applcable. n

determined by dividing the total walue of portfolio imvestmants and other
argets attributathe 1o that Fund or class, less amy Babilities, by the total
marmber ol uriit oulstardng of that Fund of Clins On ssch Fund's Dealihg
Dy firs desiribed in the cument Offering Memmceandum of the

Trust), Fund units ste ordinanily velued as of the close of reguiar rading on
the Mew Tork Siock Exchange (WY SE Clode™). Infeemation that becomes
lnovwm to the Funds o ther agents after the ime as of which RAY has been
afulated on & paitacular day waill nog generally be ised o sroacively adjust
the price of & security oo the HAV determined sarer that day. Each Fund
teserves the right 1o change the trme as of which ity respectve MAY 1
caboulated i the Fand closes eacher

For putposss. of cakiulating & NAY, porCoko secuiies and olher sty (o
which market quotes are readily available are valved at marked value, Mariat
walue i genaally determined on the basis of nffical cosing prices o the last
eeponed wales prices, of H no sales are reponied, based on guones obtained
from estabbshad market makess er prices {including evaluated prices) suppled
oy thee Funds’ approved pricing senvices, quotation ieportisg systems and
giher thed-perty wuces doqether, “Frigng Serdoes™] The Funds wall
naimally ik phcing tats for domestic ety serurites peved shivtly afp
the NYSE Close and da not normely take inta atcount trading, dearances of
sefilenents that take place afier the NYSE Close. IF maruet value pricing
uied, & foresgn (non-L 5.} equity securty Maded on 8 foregs exchange of on
moie Lhan pre eschange is typicaly valued wing pricing infoemation rom the
exchange considered by the Maneger 1o ke the orimany exchange. & foreign
non-U 5 ) equity security well be valued as of the close of rading on the
Soigion dickange, of the NYSE Clase, f 1he NTSE Clode ooturs bidoie e anid
ol trading on the loregn exchange. Domwstic and forsgn non-U 5. foed
ool Se0tities, non-eachange raded dervatnies, and equity aptions ane
nimally valued an the bati of quates ohtainad fram bimkes and dealers ne
Pricing Services using data reflecting the earlier closing of the principal
rarkets for those secunties. Prices obtained from Priong Senvices may be
brad on, among ather things, miormation provided by markel makers or
estimates of market values obtaned tom yeld data relating to mvesiments oo
secirilies with similar chaacterntics. Tertan foed intome Sedatbes
purchased on a delayed-delsmory Basis ane macked to market daily until
spfilement at the Snrwarnd setilement daie F-rﬁ_:urql <fracded ogitinns, Exoepd
aquity apticns, luluned sod options o Launes (attich e dncussed below),
are valued a1 the settiessent price determined by $he eelevant exchange. Swap
apeements ae valued on the basis of bid guates obtained from brokers and
dealers o markei-based prices supplied By Pricing Sevnced or ather pricing
sources. A Fund's vestments in oper-end management ivesiment
companies, other than exchange-traded funds ("ETFL"), ate walued al the
blAVs of such irvesbments. Opan-end masagement investment (ompanies
ry inclucle affiiated fundy

i a foreign (mon-U. 5. equity security’s value has matenally changed alter the
e of the sacuriny’s prmary exchange of princpal market but belore the
MYSE Cloie, the secunity may be waloed ad fair valie based on procedumes
#statsfhed and approwed by the Wanager, Foresgy (non-U.5 ] egquty
securities that do not frade wen the NYSE is open e also valued at fair
wako With fespect to foreign (non-U 5. | equity setuhised, & Fund miy
detzemine the Rair vale of ivestments basad on infeemation proided by
Picing Serces and othed thind-party vendiors, whoth miy recornmend ler
valoe o adiustmanty with reference to other secunties, ndioss oo assets. In
considering whether fair vakuagion is requined and in deteimining fair

walued, & Fund may, among ather thngi, consider sgaificant ewets (which
maiy be considered 1o incluce changes in the valee of U5, securties o
secwries indices] that oeeur edesr the close af B relevem maiket ang be lore
the NYSE Clowe A Fund may wtifize modelirg tools provided by thrd-pariy
woredan. 10 determing fair veiues of forsgn (mon-Ll 5 ) secoritied, Foe (hede
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purpoces, any mavement in the applicable reference index or Estament
|"2e¢0 igger™) betwoen tho eadber dhose of the applicable Boreign matket and
the N¥SE Close may be deemed to be a sigrificant event, prompling the
applicaton of the pricing model {etfectiady revulting in daly Lar

villuations). Foreign eachasced may peemit Dodisg in Toreign [Ron- U5 ) equity
sequnities on days when the Trast i not apen for bunsiness, which may resul

n & bund’s portioba irvestments Being alfacted when Unitholders see anably
10 By 08 9l Linwis.

Seenior securpd Noating raie e 1or which an active secondary markel i
lo 3 refiable degree will be valaed at the mean of the fast svadable bid'ak
prices in the markar for such loans, &5 piowded iy & Fllt'llq SEnvee. heniat
wecured foatimg rate loary for which an active secondany market dogs not
st b0 & relizole degroe will be valued at fair valug, whick is intandad to
appioaemabe marke! walue |0 salung a sefood secuned Bosting rabe laan at
tair v, the lactory. considered may include, but e not imiled b, the
Tollowing: (2] the cred twerthiness of the borrower and any intermediale
pencpants, [b) the tenmd al the |oan, () recent prices in tse market for
wimiar ke, @ any, and {d] recent prices in the market for instruments of
similar quahity, rabe, perid until rest eetest rate esel and maturity

imvestrants valued im curmercies ofther than the funciionad oumency
al a Fund a0 comaenied 1o the lunctional custency wiing enchange rates.
abrtained from Pricing Services. A5 a result, the valkee of such immestments and,
n furm, thee NAY ol te Fund®s units may be sffected by chinges in the walue
of carmencies in relation to the functional urmency. The valee of invesiments
racded in daieigh mithets or dencsmmated in curiencied ik Than
ke funitional cumency may be affacred S-l;l"i-fll:Ef‘-‘.'r on & day that the Trus 5
rot e o buminerss. Bis a e, 10 the extent that & Fund helds foregn
{nan-L5 ) investrrents, thie value of those imesiments may change ot times
wien you) cannat purchase, redeem or sochangs units and the value of wuch
rrredtmEnt will be deflected in et Fubd's neat caloulsied NAY

Irrvestmaents for which macket quotes or marked based valuationa are not
eadiy available e valued at tair value as desermined i qand faith by

the Manager of pecions Jting o this dimection The Manaoger Bk adopied
methods for valuing securities and other assats in ditumstances where

matcel quotes sre nol readily avaslable, and has delegaled 1o PIMCO the
responsibility for apphying the fair valuation methods, I the et that market
quites of markeq based valuations are not readily availabée, and the seconty
ar et cannat be valued pursian o a Managet approved valuation method,
the vadue of the socurity or asset will ke debermined in good faith by the
Vialuation Commitoes. Matke! quates are consdered nat resdly svslahle in
circemsiances where there is an absence ol cument o refiable market:based
deta g, trade information, bidiask inlormation, indestie market
quataticns {*Brokor Qlaotes™), Pricing Seneoes” prices), induding whem roents
ooy afrer the dose of the relevant market, bat pioe o the NYSE Clode, that
materialy allect the values of the Fund’s securilies of assets. In addition,
malker quotes are eonsidersd nat reachly avarahle when, dus 1 exiraordinary
cittmrratances, Ese axchangie of maskots on whick 1ho securities ¥ ado da not
open for trading for the entise day and na other market prices are avafable
The Mansger & tesponsible for monstoting significant events thal may
materially affect the values of the Fund’s securities or assets and for
detmmining whethes b vk of the appleable secunted & aidet ihauld be
reewaluzted in light of wuch significant events

Wi a Fund uses lan valustion (o determire the valur of a portiolio weouity
of other asset for purposes of calodatng its NAY, such imvestmants will not
e peiced on the bads of guotes lsom the prenary market in which they &0
iraded, bl rather may bo priced by angther method 1Faf the Manager oo
persnns acling Al their deeciion believe reflects tair value. Tan valuston may
equine subjective deberminaticns about the value of a sequnty, Whie

the Trust's poly o enlented 10 resultan & cakoulation of o Fund's NAY that
Haiely reflects seqwity values a5 of the time ef pricing, the Trust canndt ensure
that far values deteemined Sy the Maniger or periai acting a1 ke
drection would accuraiedy ieflect the orice that a Fund could obiain for a
security il it were 10 dispose of that security a1 of the time of pricing {for
irstance, in & Toroed oo disteevsed sabe). The praces used by & Fund may défle
4rom the value that would be realzed d the secuntsss werp soid

{b} Fair Valoe Hierarchy U5 GAAP desaribes lak value as the price that
aFund would teceive 10 s2ll an aiset or pay 1o ranaler a kability in an onderly
transaction between market paricpants at the measuement date. R
eszabishes, & far value Beranchy that preritizes inputs 10 valuation methods
ared roquires disclasune of the fair vales hierarchy, separasely for each major
categary of assets and Babilitias, that seqregates {ai value meaurements into
levels (Lewe 1, 2, of 3} The inputs & misthodology wisd ot valeng securdies
are gl necessanily an indication of the ks associabed with impessing in those
secities. Leveds 1, 2, and 3 of the fair vakae hierardvy are defined &5 Tollows:

& Ll | —Cuectind piicet 1n aEbve markes o l:l.-'.'nE1gH1EII wentical aets
and Rahilties

= Level 2—Significant cther oleevatie inputs, which may include, but ane
it limied 1o, quated prices for similar assots o labiltics in markets that aee
artive, quated prices for dentical or similar ausets o Labilities i markets that
& fol Ao, nputs other thas guoted piices that are otrsrsable for the
aipets or linbiites. (wuch a5 inberest rates, yirld curves, volatfities, prepayment
Speeds, 4l seventies, chedil fks s delmult rates] of other mariet
daindbitaled inguts

= Level 3=Significani urclrervable inputs based on the best infprmaticn
avabable m the croamstances, fa the cxtend obsenvable inpuls are nat
aahis, which may inclode avomptions made by the Manage: or persoms
SN a1 thew diaction that ane wiad in detsrmaing the (e valus of
riesiments

in accordance with the requirements of U 5. GAAF the amounts of ranslen
berween Levels 1 and 7 and ransders in and ous of Level 3, d matenal, aie
el in the Moles o Schoele of Framiments bo each repsective Fund

For fak valuations: using significant unobservable inputs, LS. GAAP requires a
econiliation af te beginning ta end ng balances for reparied falr valoes that
prewets changes aftributabie bo malsred gain (koss), unmakioed apprrciation
{depeeciation), purchases and sales, acousd cisomants (presmiams], and
transders in and out of the Level 3 categary duting the pericd. Tha end of
perad wakue b5 wsad for the transfers benween Leved of the Funds® assets and
fiabifties. Additiomally, U 5. GAAF requires quantitative informaticn regarding
the significant unobsersable mpuds used in the debermiration of fair value of
aitets or liabiites categorized ot Level 3 in the Lar value hisrarchy in
accordance with the requvements of U 5. GAAR, a tai value hierarchy, and
fstensl, & Level 3 ieconcliation dnd delsh li!"!-ll:l alicant ol eivabe
irpats, have been included in the Hotes o Schedule of Imvestments for each
eespective Fund

{c| ¥aluation Techaiques and the Fair Value Hisrarchy
Lavol 1 and Level 2 wadisg nssets and tading liabilitios, stlair valee The

walustion methods (o "tecknigues™] and signdicant inputs used in
determining the fail values of portfolio securites or ather assets a~d Babilnies
categorized as Level 1.end Livel 7 of the fai value hiesardhy are as follow

Foed incomrg secuniters including conparate, convertiale and muynicipal bonds
arad rertes, L § [oVermimEn] Agenoies, US measury nhl:}minm. SIHEFFIGN
maa, Bank loans, torreibble prefeired secunites and noa-US. bonds ame
normally valued an the basis of quotes obtained from biokers and dealers or
Picing Serviced that use broker-desler quotations, repored trades or
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vatluation egimates from their mternal pricng madels. The Pacing Seraces’
miminal modak use mouts that ae chrenable pach an Buer dolails, intenest
rates, yield ourves, prepayment speeds. oredit msks'spreads, default rates and
quated prices bor timilar assaty. Securities that uie smiles veluaton
tochniques and inputs a5 Seacribed abowe am categorized as Lewel 2 of the
Vi v Riedandhy

Figd incoie Ldiuited pulthaded on & el ayed-del ey Bese of as 8
repunchase commitment in a sale-buyback bransacion s marioed 1o markst
iy wenil settement at the forward sertlemsent date and are catigratined as
Level 2 of the Tair valon hisrardhy

Mortgage-related snd siet-bacced securisies ane waplly isumd a3 separate
{ranches, or classes, of secunites within sach deal. These sequnities are also
aoimally wilied by Fricing Seraci il use brokei-dealer quotiions,
meporied (rades or valuation estrmates fiom ther intenal pricing modiels. The
pricing models Tor these sequrites wwlly onsader tranche-leved atirbates,
curtent market daa, ettimated eash fows and market-hased yeld speends for
each tranche, and incorporate deal colaters’ perfomance, as avaifable
Wongage-related and saset-backed setuiines that use sender valuaton
techniques and inputs a4 described above am categerised o Lewel 2 of the
{air vadus hierarchy

Cewneron sincks, ETFs, exchange-vaded notes and Tinancial devative
srstruments, such a4 futures contracty, right and wairants, of oplions on
{utwres that am tradec on a national seourities eechange, are wated at the
Lt reponied sale o setslement peice on the day of valuation. To the extent
therae sscurithes are actively (raded and valustion adjastments are not applied,
1hay are calegorired as Level 1 of the far value Kerarchy

Ireesiments walued (denamisated) in curencies sther than the funcianal
currency of @ Fund ane corwerted &0 the functional currency using exchangs
tabes Geunercy spot shd Torwand fated) cbilained from Pricing Seraces, As a
rasull, 1he NAV of a Fund's erafs may bo atfected by changes in the value of
cumsenies i pelation 1o the functonal cerrency. The velue of securities traded
m loreign markets of denominated in currenes other than the Tunctional
curdency may be affected sigrabcanily on a day that the Trust & Aot open lor
business. Valuation adjustments may be appled to mertain s ities that are
wolidy tradied on o foreagn echange 1o socount or the market mavement
between the glowe of the omsign racket and the WY SE Close. These seounities
are valuad using Pricing Sendces that convder the corelation of the trading
pataers of the fowign secunisy ta the miraday tracing in the U 'S markeds for
mastminty. Securities using these valuation adjustreents ate calegorined a4
Level 2 af the [air valise Hieranty Predesied securnse and cther squities
iradec on mactive maikets cr valued by referonce to similar ingtruments ans
aho categonized as Level 1 of the far value heerarchy

Equity-Enked securites are vadsed by 1elerencing e lask reported safe or
settlemeni price ol the linked releserced equty on the day of aluation
Foreagn exchange adpstments ars applied 1o the bast mported price to
conven the linked eguaty’s ['idll'll] CUMBRTY 10 1he conTract's S8 Curendy
Thesa imvestements e cabegoeired o Level 2 of the faie vahue hisrarchy

Insestrents in registered open-end mvestment companies {cther than ETF)
wall be walued hated upan the NAVS of siuth irmesiments and Ane calegonzed
ay Level 1 of the lair valer learchy, Investmenits in uniegisterd openrend
rvestment companies will be calodated based upon the NAYS of sich
rresiments &5d ate corsidered Level | provided that the MAWS e
abservakie, calolated dally and are the value at whick both purchases and
seies weill b coraducted

Equity exchisnge-traded oplions and over the courter financial devatiee
nstrumenis, such as Torwarnd Ramign cumesey contracts, ophions contricts, of
ywaD dgreements, devive thell valee from underlying asset prices, ndices,

rederence rates, 3 other inputs or @ combination of these “actors. Other
than swap agroements, which e valued uting a broker-deafer bid guotation
o on raret-based rices provided by Pricing Sansioes or other pricing
soirces, these coniracs ane noemally valusd cn the bask of guotes obiained
from & guotation reporting syilem, dablahed market makers or Prcnig
Serviced {nomeally datermined as of the NYSE Clowe]. Depending on the
produtt & the teems ol the wandstan, inancdal detnate Ratumens o
be valued by Pricing Senices using a senes of techniques, induding
simudaticn pricing models The pricing models wie inputs that ase obsenved
from scineely quoted markes such a5 quoted pides, suel details, indses
bdsak soreads, intenest rates, impled volatilties, yrld oorves, dividends and
exthange tates Fnsndial dermative ingiruments that use simiar valuation
fichmguis Sfd il il diiirbid abowe &'o calegonfed & level 7 o the
Hair value hierarchy

Centraly deared wwaps listed or iraded on a multlateral o trade facilty
plarlom, such as.a requitered enchange, e valued &1 the daily seftement
frice determined by the respective exchangs (F avalable). Far centrally
dheared credit default swaps, the diearing faciity requires its members 1o
provide actioaasle pice |eveh sioss complete 1eim structunes. Thee keels
anng it axtpmal thind-party prices arm used to produce daily wtament
prices. These securities are cateqonized as Level 2 of the fair value heerarchy
Centealy cleared intesest rate swips &re walued wisng a pricing model that
rederpnce the ur‘.ﬁﬂh\ﬂ] rales ir..'l:.a‘qu the overss gl ingeE gvap rake and
London Interbank Cllsred Rae (“LIBOR") lerwand fake B piodiae the dedy
wetllement price. These secunities. ae cabegorized o Level 2 of the fai vale
et arthy

Lesinl 3 teading sssats and tradesg labilities, st laie valae When o tar
wwaluation method is applied by the Manager that ues sgnificant
wrathivervable sputs, nvetments will be prced by & method that

the Manager or persons acbng a1 their direction believe reflects: fair value ard
a'p categanred ad level ol the Lir vakie herarchy The waluaton
techniques and sigrificam inputs. used i determining the fair values of
portlolin assets and bakilitles coteqorized a5 Level 3 of the {ar value heerar chy
e v oliowa

Prowy peicing proceduies set the bate peice of a fued income socusity and
subseqeently adjust the price proportionally to market value changes of 8 pre
determined Lecurity deemed 1o e compacable in durstion, generally a U %
Tneasiry of scroeraign nobe based on country of isuance. Tha hise price may
B2 3 Broked-deales quile, TANSACeR e, OF & remal value a8 oeived by
by of matket data. The base price of the security may be neset on 3
penadic bass based on the amidablity of market data and peocedures
acyroved by the Valuaton Committee. Significant changes in the
wndlriervable mputs of the prooy praig process (the base price) would result
Ir direct and proportional dhangas in the far vadue of the seowity. These
securities Are cabigocted &t Level 3 of the Tair value hisancy

Short-teim deb sntioments {such & commertial pagper ) having & renaning
rtutity of B3 days or bess may be vabeed af amortized cost, 0 long as the
pretited eoat value of such shos-teem debt instruments (4 approsimately the
e @ the T value of the imtresent & determined withaul the use of
amarized cost valuation. These securibes are categoaized s Level 1 or Level
3 af the fai value heerarchy degending e the source of the base price

4, SECLURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

{n) Delayed. Delivery Tr Ceitan Funds may purchase o sl
secwities on o delaped-defvery basis, These transadtions imohee a
commitmisnt by a Fund ta punchare oe sell secorities Tor & predetemmined price
ar yiekd. with payment and delvery taking place beyond the customary
serilement period. When delayed-delavery irarsaiions ére oulstandng,
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& Fund will designate oo receive o3 odlatenl hgusd aysets in an amount
suffcant 10 meet the purchase price o mespective obligations. When
puithadng & tecerify on a delayed-dedvery by, & Fund asussws the fighis
ared risks of ovwnership of the seqwity, including the risk of price and yiekl
Muctustions, and takes such Boctuatons into sccount when detarminng its
HAV. & Fund may deipods of of nedegotuls & délayed-deleny tantiction
after it s entered inbo, which may result in a realized gain of boss. When

& Fund b 10ld & seowity om a delayed-delivery bensin, the Fund does nat
padtcipate ia fulune gains and lesses with respeat ba the sedutity

b Bnllation-ladexed Bonds Ceitas Tuncs may inwi? 1 llahon-rdexsd
bonds. Inflaton-indexed bands are Fxed income secorities whese princpal
vitlue = periotcaly sdjusted by the rate of inflation. The imerest ate on
1hese bonds is generally fived at Bsuance at a rabe lowe than typical bands.
Over the Ide ol &n ol lahon-rdeced Sond, Boaever, iiletest ol be piad
inerd on @ pincipal value, which & aciusied Tor mflation, Asy increass o1
decrease in the principal amaunt of an inflation - indewed bond will be indusded
a4 imenest bcame o the Statemanit of Operabosd, e though imasitets do
nol repeive ther principal until matywrity. Repayment of the oniginal bond
arincipal upon matueily tas sdunted Tor nflation) (s guaiartesd in the cae of
WS TIPS For bonds that da not peowad a similar guarantce, the acusbed
principal value ot the bord repaid at maturity may be less than the original
onnapa

{ch Loam Participations, Assignmonts and Origmations Certam Funds may
et in direct debrt instruments which are interests. in amounts owed o
encers of lending syndicates by coiperale, governmental, or othel barowers
A Fund’s veesiments i loans may be in the figrm of participations in lgans or
ausigreneats of all o & portion of laan fom thid panties of investments in of
arigenations of keans by tha Fund, A loan is often administered by a bank or
atfer firanciad insdumen he “kende) that sy a5 apend Tor all holders. The
ageot administers the terma of the loan, as specified i the loan sgreemens

A Fund may irvest in multiple serles o tanches of a loan, which may ke
ANy 1enes and caty different ssociated ricks. When a Fund puschases
svignments [nom bencen @ boguined dinecl nghts sgaml tse bosiowers of The
inans. These loans may include partizipations in bridge loars, which s loans
taken out by borrowers lor 3 sheet perod {typecally bess than cee year)
pindeng acfangemen] of mal permant Snancng thioegh, for example, thie
ssuance of bonds, Trequenly high yield bonds issued for the purose ol
SLusions

The types of loans and related immsiments in which the Funds may invest
nitlads, among gthers, senior s, subordinabéd ioans [nciadng woond
Fn loans, B-Motes and mezzanios [oans), whide lans, commential real
estate and cther commengal loans and structwred loans. & Fund may
angnate lpans or aoguee dicect imtecests in lnans fepugh primany lnan

dis bty andion in plivane amsactos 15 the cade of wubaedinated loany,
thare may b significant indebtedress rankirg atwad of the borowe's
obbgation to the holder of such a loan, induding in tee evens of the
Doirwer's insohency. Merranme loard ae ypically secuned By & pledge of
an equsty interest in the morigage bomower that cwns the real estate ather
ikan an interest in a mitgage

IrrrEstrmanis i boand may ilude writunded laan commitments, which are
contractul obligations for furding. Urdunded foan commitments may mihode
tevelving credil faclioes, which miy obligate a Fund to supply addiional cash
10 khe Bomower on denard . Uslunded loan commidlments regresent a hutwe
abligation i full, even though a percentage of the commisted amount may
nol B utiired by the boirtver. When investing 0 & ioan paeticipation,

& Fund bas the right to receive payments of princpad, interest and any fees to
which A i eatithed only fram the lender seling thee boan sgreement 20 only
upan recespt of payments By the lender from the borower. & Fund may
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receive @ commitment fae based on the undrinee porbon of the underying
finat of creddit portian of a loan. In certain cincumtances, a Fund may ieceive a
penalty fee upon the prepayment of 8 lnan by a borower. Fees aamed or
paad are recanded a3 & componend of miEned income of inberest eapense,
respectively, on the Satements of Cperations

s of May 31, 2078, the Funds had no imfunded nan corremetmerts
Gy tikifding

{d} Morigage-Relsted and Otfsor Asset-Backed Securities Certain Funas
iy irrerid in morigage-nelated and othet assel-backed vecurities that derecthy
o indirecty sepresent & participation m, or are secured by and payable from,
Iedns 0 il piopeity. Modlgege-elated seouibes aie credted lieem pook al
resadenticl or commenal mongage loans, inciudng mortgage loans made by
savings and loan institsions, morgage barkers, commescial banks and
others. These secunties prowide a manthly payment which consiis of bith
mierest anc principdl. Inferest may be determmed by fed or acfjustable rates
The rate of prepayments & undetlying morigages will affiect the price and
wolsity of & moilgage-felsted wecunty, snd may have the efisd of
shoxbening or extending the elfective duation ol e secuity selibve lo what
wins antipated a the sme of puickase. The timely paymen of principal ard
irterent of certain morigage-refated womitiet 5 queanteed by the ful lanth
@i aradin of e LS. Government. Pools meated and guatantzed by ron-
gvemmental issuers, mchuding gowsnmen|-sponsoned ocorporstions, may be
suppored by vanges fprms of imsurance or quatantess, but thee tan be no
U AR e Tt PivAe MALSEL OF uatahiot can meel thee ahlgatiam unded
the ivutance palicies of quarsioe arangements. Many of the tisks of
irversting in marngage: related securties secured by commercial merigage
foans reflet the efects of boced and ather sconomic conditions on eal esate
narkety, e abulity of 1endmd b0 make loake payments, and the ability o &
propety 1o atirec and retain lenanis. These seoulbes may e bess Iguad dred
mary exhibnl greater price volatlity than other types ol mogage-related or
athar asset-backnad securities. Ckher assat-hacked secwibies am created from
many types of assets, induding auto loans, oredit cand recehvables, home
ety kadns, and dhadent baded

{o) Collateralized Morigage Obligatsons (*C 05°) are debf abigations ot a
legal entity that are collaterabred by whole moitpage kaas of prvale
rraitgage bondh and devaded mba cdlasses, OM O are stnectured min muliiple
clitses, aften refened to &5 “vanches®, with-each class beacing 2 different
slated materity and entiled 1o a different schedule far paymentt ol princps
and imterest, including prepayments. CAMOs may be less liquid and may exhibit
greser prace volalilty than ather types of morlgage-related ot asset-backed
wCwEities

() Stripped Mortgage-Backod Secorites (“5WES) are dervatne mul
Elarid maitgace wbturitiel. SMBS aneé usually struttuied waith (e chisies that
recevr different propartions of the ndeest and principal distributions oo a
pock o mongage atsets. An SMES will "uve one dis that will iecene il of
the imotest {the inbarest-oafy of "0 o), whils the othar class will neceve
thie eirdine princpal [the pintipel-only o “PO” daia). Pagments secered lai
15 ate included in imecest incomee on the Scatements of Opeations. Because
o principal will be received a1 the maiutity al an |0, afjuitmiseds ale made
10 the aost of the secutity on a montity bass umil maturity. Thewe
adusaments are included in intenest ingome on the Satements of Operaticrs
Pwymects recanved fon POS are treated as reductions ta the cost and pat valce
ol the seturties

ig) Collstoralized Debi DbEgatsons (*C00s") indude Collateralized Bond
Diibgatom, | “CB0s"], Colateralimed Losn Oblgatons {"CL05") and other
similarly seructuned secunties. CB0% and CLOS ae types of ased-hadked
secuiilied. A CBO 14 i bust wiich i Baceed by & dowiriihed poal of high mk,
Exlowy imvesiment [ atu fioed income sequrities. & CLOD 5 @ trs typacally
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cellsievaliced by a pool of loans, which may indude, among others, domestic
and loneign senior secored baarr, wesaoc unsecuned |oany, and whoedinaa
corporate loars, induding loans that may be rated Below Fwestment grade o
ecuvabent undated loans. The risks of an investment in a (DO depend langely
an o type ol the collaberal secumtiey and the class of th CDO i which

& Fund invets. In additon i the normal rkis associated with lined income
securities discussed alsewhene in this repoet and the Fonds” Cffiering
Iemoransum (e o, pre payment risk, ofedn rik, lqueddy sk, masker nsk,
stricteral risk, legal risk and interes rate rick fasich may be exacerbated if
the interest rate payable on 8 stuchered financing changes based on
mullipkes of changes in inieiest aies o rresely i Changes m ntesesl
sabes]l, CBOs, CLOs, and other COOw camy additional risks including, but nat
brmited 10, [} the possibity that dainkton {ravm collazesal securities vl nat
be adeguate 1o make nseseit or other payments, (17 the guality of the
celletesal may deching in valee oo delaull, il & Fund mayp invest In CBOs,
C10s, or gther {005 that are sabordinale bo other classes, and () the
comple structiune of the security miy nat be fully undersiood a2 the e of
mroerstmient and may prodoce disputes with the issuer or unexpected
meestment iesuhs

il Paymaont la-Kind Securities Ceitsin Funds miy invedt i paymest in-kind
secunities [*PIKS™) Plks may gve the msuer the option at sach imemest
adymes dabe of making intened] paymenty in gither cash andfor sddtionsl
delrt secunties. Those additional debt secueities usually have the same termes,
ol ud fg maturty dabes and inberest rated. bod Siofisied ks 48 e
angmnal bonds. The daly marke! quatationrs of the cagnal bords may inchode
the acorued eeest (elemed 10 a5 a “diity pice™) and 1equire a o iata
adptment from the urreslized apprediation or depredation on mvestments
o interest recevable on the Statements of Assets and Lisbdities

(i) Resiriched Secmrities Cenain Fundd may bold invesiments that are
subjec b0 hg.jl or conlractual nestrictices on resake TRese Securities. may be
sold privately, but are regquined 1o be registesed o maempted from such
regisiration belong being sold tothe publs, Privese placement secutities ans
qererally considered 1o be restricted Disposal of restricied secuities may
etk Defflad- COMSUM TR NeQobationd and expendns, and prampl sale al an
auceptable price may be diffas®® 1o achiave. Restricted securities outstanding
at My 31, 7018 are cisclosed in the Nates 1o Schedule of Investments
i1 US. G Aguancees or G g d Emtarprises
Certam Furiy may imvesd in socorities of U5, Gosernmesd agonciet ot
:Jlilﬂl"'ﬂi""l’-‘o{}ﬂl"ﬂl:l'liﬂ st 11 Goweinment secuifies are
ablgation of and, in oerain cases, guannbeed by, the U5, Gowernmin, it
BOEACE of instrumentalizies: foma LS. Government securited, such as
Teemiiny blls, notes and bandh, and secuntes guaraieed by the Gowernment
Habonal Mortgage Assooation ("GHMA® or "Ginnie Mae™), are supporied by
1k fig] faith and credit of the U 5, Govesnment; others, tuch a4 those ol the
Federal Home Loan Bends, are sopporied by the right of the sauer to bonow
freem the LS. Depariment of the Treasury (e =U5. Treasuny™) and athers,
such as thorse of the Federal National Morigage Sssociation [*FRMAT or
“Fammme M}, dre suppailed by The didiebonary aul nllg.'u-| the LS
Government 1o purthase the agency™s ablipatiors. U Government seculilies
may include e coupon secwities, fmn coupon securites do not distribatn
nitefest om @ curmend basis and tand 50 ba subject 10 .a graater msk than
fleiest-payiing sl

Goversment-telabed gascanton (e, not backed by the lull Taih and ced ol
the LS Goveenment) include FRMA and the Fedeal Bome Loan I'.'rrh_‘,..-n}p
Cooepodation {“FHLMC™ of “Fraddie Mac™) FNMA £ 2 govemmeni-sponsoeed
corpatation. FHMA prchases corwenironal §i e not insured o quaranieed =1
BNy government agency) resdential margages from a k51 of approved
sellentierncens which mclude itate and {edevaly chartened Skaingt and loan

ansociations, mutedl savegs banks, commercial barks and credit endons and
motlgage bankers. Pass-through securitsss Biued by FNRA a0 quaranteod as
1o Bmaky payment of principal and inbarest by FRMA, bt are not backed by
the full faith and ereda of the US. Goverrement. FHLWC (ssues Paitiipation
Coribeates [*PCs"), which aen pass ‘.hm-\_';" seountties, pach mpresenting an
undnaded misedt in & pool of fesdentisl mortages. FHLME giaraatess the
fimedy pymend of inberest and ultimate collection of jpringipal, but PCs ane not
baoed by the Full faith and coedit of the U5 Govermement

Aoh-aming sUanegies cam be used whire & Fung seets 10 edend the
eaguration or maturity of & pention, such as a THA seoumity on an underhng
ansel, by Chosang ool the poriton vefirs expiaton amd OEENITH A New
paation with respect 1o substantialy the same enderlying 2t weth a lader
egeation cate. THA securities purchased of sold are iefiected on the
Seatements of Aiiets and Liabilieed 05 2n sddat of llatslity, espectely

(Kl Whvon-lisued Transactions Cemer Funds may parchase or sell securtes
o0 awhen-sued basis These ransactons ane made conditionally betause a
ey, although authorized, has not yet been saued in the markeq &
commimint B made by & Fund 10 puichase of sl thede tecuntes fof a
predetemined price of yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
the customary seftkement pediod. & Fund may seil when-issuod socurities
bafiora they are dalivered, which may rewuit in a meakzed gain or loss

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The f-oc'l:lw:ng divchoeps contain information on the Funds' akdity 1o lend ar
Bovmens cash or sequrmies 1o the axtent permitied under the Offering
Memorandum, which may be varwed as bomowing or finanting ramactions
By thee Funds. The bacation of these instruments is described below, For a
ditaded discnpteon ol eredt 27d counterpadty miks (hat can be ssotated
wwith (bormewings. andl ofther financing transactons, pleasa see Note 7,
Prncipel Risks

{n) Repurchasc Agroomonts Cortan Funds may engage in repurchasn
ayeemants Lndes the '.rmmfa'.gp-tal repunichese agpeemant, & Fund taces
paisesaeon of an undeilying dehbt obligation {collatesal) subject %o an
oingation of the seller (o repetchase, and a Fund 10 resell, the oblgaton at
& HFocd-upon prede and time. In an opdn matunty repurchate ageemant,
Thee | na ﬂlfdjéli?ll'll"?ﬂ TBUITAEE £318 and the Afresment fan be
terminated by the Fund oo cosnterparsy at any time. The market value of the
wollaneral munt be equal 10 of exceed the tetal amoant of the epuntese
ahlgations, .'v.'burgnr'.rrr-ql Fegurchase agroemsnts, |rr|:|ur||'1:l| accrued
imbevest, ane includied on e Statements of Assets and Liahibess Impspst
warnid B eeooidied a4 & component ol inberesl income on the SLatements ol
Operations. In pericds of increased demand Tor collsteral, a Fund may pay a
few for recript of collateral, which may et in mieest expensa to the Fund

{bh Reverse Repurchase Agreements Lertan bunds may enfes into revense
seputchane agreements. In & revense (epunchase agivemend, a Fond delers &
security in exchange far cas® 1o 8 frandal institation, the ooumemanty, with
& Lrruliasdta aqreement 10 repurchase the same of subdtantially the sama
weCwily o an agreed upon price dnd dane. In B0 Gpen MAlURty nesTse
fepuithade aqieemant, thede & no pre-deteimingd iepul e date and the
ageement can be terminated by the Fund o courferparty at any time A Fund
s entitled 1o receive principal and interest payments, i any, made on the
et ity deinerad b0 the coumieipany duresg the term of the agreement. Cash
veceived in exchange for securities defvered phuy sccroed inteeest payments o
e muade iy & Fund to counterparties are refected &5 2 Babibty on the
Sratements of Assets and | ihilties Imteres) payments made by a Fund i
counterparties are recoeded Bt & component of imenest expeme on the
Scatements of Operations. In penods of increased demand for the sequrity,
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& Fund may recerve & Tee for we of the seounity by the counterparty, which
may result im inferest income- b3 a Fund. A Fund will spgRgate assety
detemined o be bguid by FINLCD of wil obherviase oo (13 oblgatons
under reverse repuichase dgrements

leh Snhe-Buwybacks Certain Furds may enter inta financng trarsattions
telmined 1o a8 “wabe-bohadn” A sale-buypback trancaction comrls of a sale of
a sequrity bry a Fard 1o a Bnarcial mstitution, the counterparty, with a
simultaneous agroemend to reprarchase the same or subsantally the same
SeCunTy at an agréed-upan price and cane. A Fund is nat esitlod 1o recene
principal and miemst payments, iF any, made on the securty sold to the
counterparty duting the tem of the agreement. The agreed-upon procesds Tor
secuifitned. 1o be tepunchesad by & Fund are rellecied i a kalshity om the
Statemenis of Assets and Liabdiies. A Fund will recognize met intome
represented by the price differential between the price received faf the
transiemed securing and the agreed-upan reperchase price This is commaonly
tefeired 0 aa the poce diog”. A price drop conssiy of (i} the hlegﬁrr il el
and iflationary income adjustiments, it any, a Fund would have otheraise
eecenmed had e secunty nod beem sold &nd (i) the negobiated fsaning lemms
betwenn @ Fund and countespanty, Foregone el and inflalionary incoma
aduistmants, if sy, are redorded i componentsy of iierest msoame on the
Hatements of Opevabons. InSerest paymarts based wpon negatiated financing
IBms mace b'_f & Fund to counberpartes ame recmded 5.8 component of
mipiest eperie on the Matemenh of Qpeations. In peood of mireaied
demand lor the secutity, a Fund may iecedve o fee for e of the security by
the coustwparty, which may resalt in nterest income boa Fund. & Fund wil
SHgingale AtsE1L deteirirsdd 80 be kjidd by PIMCO o wall athenwise cinef 28
abligations under sale-buybect transactions

{dh Short Salee Certan Funds may enter Into short sales bansactions. Short
sl ane tranractions in which the Fand sells a saomity that it may nat own

i, Fund muay make short sales of securies i (i} edfser posemial dechne n
kong positions in sim flar seguritss, (i) to increase ﬂ'.r"q:il;.lq:rrlr' thie Fund,
i) for bweestrment retum, (ivd as pan of & sisk ashiirage strategy, and {v] a3
pat ol ity vneall poetlal management Wrategies immbhiang the ol &l
desivative Instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it Py DD TR
the wercurity scid short and delnes it fo the courrlerparty. The Nend will
andinarily have 1o pay a fee or premiom 1o borew a secutity and be obligated
10 repay the lender of the wouwnity amy dividensd of interest that acciues on the
sexurity during the period of the loan. Securities scid in short sale tramsadtions
and ke dsidend of imtetest payable on such secantiey, iF any, are teflesciad os
payabile for thort wales on the Statements of Adsati and Liabditers. Short sales
expose the Fund 1o the sk that it wall be requered to cover s shor posinen
at a tire when the seouity or ather asset hes appeciated invaloe, thus
resulting in logses to the Furd A shott sale i “ageiret the koo™ #

ke Fund hoids in s portfolio or has the right 1o acguine the security sold
shaft ot ro addizicnal codr. & Fund wall be subject to additional fisks 10 the
ealenl thal & engages it 20r1 sales. thal aie nol “agaiint the b= A Fusds
ioss on a short sake could theonetially be enlimited n cases where the Ford is
unable, for whatever reason, 1o chose oul (15 shott pestion

6. AMNANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

T fiafipawing dischosures comtain information an haw and why the Funds use
trniniial desteative instruments and how frandal dietivatvn mitnesents
affact the Funds” financial posiion, results of operations and cash fiows. The
kocation and Fair value amoumts of these instiements on 1he Statements ol
Aasets and Liabdites and the net realized gain {loss) and net change in
unteakized appeeciation (depreciation) an the Statements of Operation, each
calpgorined by type of financisd dedvathid contract and relsted ik expodune,
am ncluded im 2 tabde in the Notes to Schecide of Ievestments The financial
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derivative instruments cutstanding as of period end and the amoants of net
roalred gain [losi) and et change m unnealised appeeciation {deprecation)
o financial derivative instruments during the period, as disdosed in the
Hales bo Schedule of Imvestments, serve & indeaon of the volere of
finarcial derartng activity foe thae Funds

n} Forward Fareign Comeacy Comiracts Certam Funds may enter mio
Sonwiid lafegh Cuffishly CoMIaon |n connactash with Serting planned
paithases or sales of securities, to hedge the CUITENCY BRpUne atnociaied
withy some of all of & Fund's seourites of 5 & part of an imvestment sraiegy
A Sorwiard Farmign cumesnty contract 5 an agreemsent between twa parties ta
By and sell & cunency o8 set poce on @ futue date. The market value of &
forward lareign curency contract lluctuates with changes in foreign cumency
enchange rates. Forward foreign curmency oontracts are marked to market
daly, and the change & walue & recomded by & Fund as an uneealized gam of
g, Realzed gains or losses are el o the differeroe between the value of
1he contradt &1 the time it was opened and the vaue at the fime il weas chosed
ared e menrdad upon defivery of iecmpd al the cumesdy. Thisws contracti
rmay irenbve market risk in excess of the unrealized gan or loss reBecied on
the Matements of Aasets and Liabilities. In addition, & Ffend could be exposed
fto sk if the counterpadties am unable to meet the temi of the contracts or if
the walue al the cumency changes unlavotably ta the funclonsl curency, Ta
mitigale wuch ik, cash o1 securities may be exchanged as collaiezal pursaant
o the tevms.of the underlying contiaces

Cortan Funds havieg & bedged dlass may ko enter o brward fonegn
Culnesacy (onBiacts detgred Bo offiet the ellect ol hedging At the Fund level in
order to leavr the hedged dlass with an expoine bo currenges other tn the
funeticaal ammency. Trere caen be fe guarantee that these class specific
fanwaid lamigh currenty costract will be sucteditul

b} Fulwres Comtracts Certain Funds may enter into Fatunes contracts. A
futures conlract is an agreement 1 buy or sell & decuriy of ather aisel lor a
4t price on a future date. A Fund may e fulures comiracts B0 manage ity
eaposine fo the secuitses rrarkets of to momvements in inbenest ratzs and
guirgscy valurs. The primary riska sssotisted wich the use of lulures conlrats
an the impecfect comelaton betasen the change in market vales of the
secutiliees held by & Furd aned the prices of fulures eoniracts aad the passibilty
of an iliguid market. Futores coniracts are valued based upon their guoted
disly weitlersend mices. Upon entering nfo a futures contract, a Fond B
eequited e depasit with its Tturas broker an ameaet of cash, LS
Goveinement aned dgency Dhhigatians, or wHact smvensgh detrl, n sccoidance
with the initisl margin requirements of the bioker or eachange. Futunes
ooniracts ase marked to market daily and based on such meweenants in the
peice ol the coniracts, an appeoprate payable or recervable for the changs in
walue may be posted or cobected by the Fund {"Futures Variaton Margin™)
G o losses ang recogained bul not consideded réaked unil the contacts
wxpre of cose. Futures contracts ke, 10 vanng degress, v o o in
eneei ol the Fututes Variation Mangn induded within exchange eaded ot
centrally cheared financial devhiative instruments on the Statements of Assets
&wd Liabdiles,

o} Options Comtracts Coitain Funds may wite of puichaie dptiont 1o
enhancs reums of o FieGge an NSt polon of Fuiture inveiment. Cetain
Funds may write call and put oplions on secutities and financial derraltive
madivrrents they o of mowhich ey may imest Wriling pull oplions terds
10 increase a Fond's exposune bo the undedying instrument. Writing call
aatans tends 1o decrease o Fend's sxpoture 8 the undaiymg matmant
‘When a Fund writes 2 call of g, an amount &qual to the premium recened is
recoided a3 & habsiity and subsequently maiked bo market 1o pedlent the
curmesk walup of the codion wiittes. Thase hakdlities are nduded o0 the
Srammenti ol Aoteit god Linhidties Promiom setesed froe wr ting anliont
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wiech expre ane reated as makzed gains. Premiums received from witng
aplicrs whith ame exercied o coted ame added to the procesds or alfset
againal amounts paad o the undestying fugures, swap, securify or currency
transactian ba determing the realired cam or bosy. Certain options may be
avitten with presm 1 be determined on o furure dave, The premiums foe
1hasa nptions a0p hased upon i plied wclatilty parameters at speclied terms
i Fund as & witer of an aotan has no elind over wheshes the underiyng
nstrument miy be sold [Meali®) e purchased {"put™) and as & result bears the
marics risk of 3 erdaaorahio change m the price ol the instrument undardying
the waitien option Theee is the sk & Fund may not be able 1o ester inio a
chasing trarsadion because ol an dliguad market

Cerinin Funds may abo purchase pus and call options. Purchasing call aptions
tonds bo iscreate & Fund's expotu 1o the undmbying instrumesrt. Purchating
aul splions ends oo decnease a Fund © ecposue to the I..|II1I."|51I'g IREL UM
& Fund parys @ premiam which i includied a5 an asset on the Stasements ol
Mssets and Liabilies erd subsesuently marked 1o market 1o reflect the
currertl valuw of the aption. Prevmeems paid far purchasing options which
eapire ale reated as reatived krses. Leman optons may be purchased with
premium o ke determined on 2 future date. The poemanrs for thee options
am basod upon imphed woladfity parameiers af speciied trems. The sk
awnoiaied with purchasies gt and call optiors 5 limited o the premium
péad. Premiums pasd for paichasing optiord which ane eccised of choted are
aided 1o the amcunts paid or offset against the proceads on the underlying
frrediment ranasclion 1o Sebérmise the {eakned gain or kel whsn the
undehing trankaction m executed

Inberest Ruie Swapiions Ceriam Funds may wise oo purchase nderest rate
wwantiant which aie opbons to enet inta a pre-definad swap sgieemient ar
to shorten, sxtend, cancel or ctheete modfy an exmting swap ageement,
by some specified date in the futune The writer of the swaption becomas the
counterparty 1o the vwap if the buyer exercises. The infenetl rate vaaption
agreemant will spacity whether the buper of the swaction wil be a fixed-rate
recener of @ med-rate payer upon exescise

Credit Dofanlt Bwaptions Cetain Funds, may vrite or purchee oiedil delaull
FavaoTions o Redge sposas 1o the oredit risk of an mvesiment withcat
making a commament o the undeilying instrument. A ciedn delaull swaplion
o an option b0 588 or buy credi prosection to a specfic malerence by enbering
ritiy & pre-defined savap agreement by some specibed date in the futee

Fentign Cerrancy Dptions Cotan Fusds miy wiite of puichee feecn
cuEFency opticns 10 be usad as a short oe long hedge against possitle
vamatces i foheign exchange rases of 1o ghn expasure bo fordign curtendes

Dptions oo Secwwities Certan Funds may wnise o0 puichase aphions on
wicufities [0 enkunoe reluns of to hidge 4 exnting position of fubwe
myestment. Am option on 3 security uses a spedified secunty as the underying
fistrummend lor e oplon anlrad

Inflation-Capped Dptioas: Certain Fusds may weite or puschase inflatian
capped options to enhance ietums or Sor bedging opporunites. The pupone
ol purchasing infletien-capped eptions is i arotact a Fusd hom (nflagen
eosion above & certain rate on & ghven notional exposure. A oo can be
usied to gese diownide profecton o mvestments in inflatbon-lisked products

Intorest Rate-Capped Options T eriain Funds may wiee ar purshase interest
rate-capped options S0 enhanie returns of for hedging cpporunities. When
a Fund wiies am mievest rate-capped option, an amount equal ta the
premium recetved is recorded 5 a Bability and ssbsequently marked to
marcpt ha reflect the curment walun of the option seitten When a Fund
pulchades an inbenest rale-tapoed option, the Furd pays a premium whath i
reconded a3 am gt and 'illh'h’."l]ub'rﬂ:, maieed b markes 1o reflect the
cument value of the option. The purpose of purchasng interest re-cagped
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oatans i o pratect & Fusd from floating rabe ik above & Gelain rale ona
g notional suposune, A Sooe can be used to give downsice protection fo
Irpesaments in nberedy rane hinked producty

\Diptions on Exchenge-Traded Futures Contrects Certein Fandy mey wite o
prthase optond o exchange-traded lutuies contracts [“Futures Dedian™) te
Biexie an existng position of future invesiment, foe speculative purposes of 10
rdnage Epodires (0 martet mavements. A Pulunes Oipton 15 an opbon
goniract in which the unileriying inginament o a single Fagures coriract

{d} Bwap Agroaments Certain Funds may nvest im swap agreements. Swap
appements are blaverally neqetizied ageements hatween a Fund and a
COUNTBparty 1o excharge o Tvag iewesment cash flows, ausets, fonegn
umgnges or market-inked returns at speciied, fgure interal. Swap
ajeemants may be privately negotiated in the cver the counber marker [0TC
swaps”) or may be cleased throughy a thind pary, krossn as a et
Counbparty of dervafines chiaring onganitation | “oesdrally cleared vwam”™)
oy Fund may enter svlo asset, ohedil difault, CDSE-CLITENCY, mberedd rale, ol
relurn, warance and othes forms of 4wap sgreements. b masage s exposure
o reddie, cumency, insesest rane, commedity, egquity and inflation rak. im
Connection with thids aqréements, wurilies of cih miy be dendilied a4
wollaseral o mangin in accoadance with the serms of the respective swap
agreements 1 previde avses of value and recourse in the evend of default or
Barkruploymsghry,

Contraly cheaned waps ane marked to markel daity bawed upon valuations as
determined from the underlyieg contract of in acceedance with the
secyutinmers af the ceniral countepany of desnidbaes ceanng oigantabon
Changes i markel value, if any, see reflected ad & comgonent al net change
r nnkaided Apprécaton n:dap't-:-mml on the Satemesns of Operations.
Dasly changes in valuation of centrally Ceared waps (“Swap Vanaban
Margen™], if any, st declosed withen centally cdeated linancial derrcaine
rsinaments on the Statements of Assets and Liablities. OTC wap payments
ecind ol paid at the begnring of the measwement penod are indudad on
the Stalements of Aasets and Lisbilgies and repiesent promasns paed of
received upan enlening inio the swap agreement 10 compemate for
dfferances between the stated teoms of the swap agreement and prevaling
market conditions (credit spreads, cumescy mchange rates, inteoest rabes, and
athar redevant fartors) Updrong premiums received (paid) are ninally reqoerded
& habibties (avsens) and sthequenty marked 10 market 10 1eflec the umes
waker of the swap, These upbiont premium aie niconded i reabed gaina o
fesses on the Statements of Operations upon teimination or maturity of the
fwap A kquidation payment seisved of made a1 the tefmination of thi fwip
i tecoided a3 nealized gain oo loss on the Satements. of Cperations. Ket
periads papments received or paid by a Fund ame ncdoded &5 part of realized
gaans o7 losses on the Staterants of Operations

For puipeses of aoplying a Fund's investmens palicies and reststions, swap
syvemants me geraraly valkoed by the Fumd st market valis, In the case of a
wedit default swap, in applping centain of the Fund's investmend policies and
eesiractions, Ehe Fund well value the credit defaull sveap at ifs notional value o
2 Tull exposune vadue (12, the sum of the notional amunt fil e SomTradl
s the market value), but may value the oedit default swap at macket valus
for perposes of applying certain of the Fund's cthes investement polices and
seutritions. For exampde, the Fund may value medt delaft swees at ful
wapasuie value lor puipdes of 1he Fusd's credit quality guidelines (if any]
b wch value in general befler reflecty the Fusd's actual excnomic
exporung during the torm ol the coedit dolault swap agreeenent. As a rosult, 3
Fund may, at fimes, have noticesl sxpoure i an asset class belore retting]
that is greates or lesser than the stated fimit or restriction noted in the
‘I'uru!'sl]‘ll'ululg Memocandum. in 1k conmet, both the nalicnal amaunt and
iho marked value may bo positive of nogative depending on whether tha Fund
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e selling or bupsg pretection teough the oedit delault swap. The masaner in
which certain spcurities of ofher instruments aig valued by the Fund for
purperes of apphang ivesiment poboies and restrictons ray differ om the
mannet in which those imestments ate valued by other bypes of investens
Emeding inka These s sements vohes, 1o varying degiees, elaments of
Filoiest, ciadil, madat a6d dotumentaton rek m exteis ol the amoants
recognized om the Statements of Assets and Liahilises. Such risks imvoloe the
possibicy that there will e no quid market foe thew agresments, et the
counterparty to the sgreements may default on its obligation 1o serdam o
disagree & 1o the meaning of confractual termes im the agreements and that
there may e unfevorable changes in inlesest iates

& Fund's maarnam risk of loss fBom coumierparty credit sk i the discountsd
nied value of the czsh Tlows ta be recesed from the counterpany ove! the
contract’s remaiaeg e, 1o the extey that amounl & poisve. The etk may
e retegated Ly having & master nelting anangement betvween a Fund and
1 coumterparty and by the posting of collaterl 1o 3 Fund to cover 3 Fund's
wxposute o the oounieparty

Crndit Dofaslt Swap Agreamants Certain Fonds may use oedit dafauly
¥ on corpaiale, loan, severegn, U5 muncipal or U S, Treasury saues bo
proside o measure of protection agamt defauits of the ssuees (i e, 1o neduce
sk wehwre & Furd ovens or han exposure ko the referenced otdigaton) of ko
1ake an active lang or shor posibon with respecs i the Bkekhood afa
pieticuler miuer's default, Credit dedsl swap agieements inmbve one party
making a siream of payments {refered to a5 the buyer of prosection) to
anather party (the seller al protechon) in exchange for tho right %0 recane a
specified retum in the event that the refeenced entity, oblgaton or index, a5
specind in the ywap sgeesment, indergoes a cedan oedd event. As 2 eller
ol pratection on credit default swap agreements, & Fund vall genctally necene
fromn thie hiner of prodection a fived rate of income Beoughout the tsrm of the
T o Dviced ERET [here B A redit event. AL the selier, & Fund would
effectivrly add leverage to its portiolio because, in addition o its fotal ret
ety the Fund would be subga to swestment oapobun on B notional
amount ol the swan

i a Fund & a seller of protection and & cedt event ocouss, 35 defined unde:
he terrs of that particular swap aqerTEnd, a Fund will either {i} pay o the
buyer of protection an amount equal 12 the nobicasl amount ol the wwap and
take defvery of the mlemnced obligation, ofter delnerable obligations o
undelying seurities compeising the referenced incex o [§) pay & et
serternenil amount i the Teom of cash er secuntes equal to the sotional
ameunt of the swap bess the recovery value of the referenced obligation or
underlying securities commprising the referenced incex. il a Fund s & buyer of
protection and a oeds event ooouns, & defmed wrder tha terrs of that
piitculas swin screemant, & Fund will either i} recenve from tae seller al
proSection an amount eqisl bo the notional amount of the swap and delver
the refereniced obligation, other deliverable obiigatiors or urderying
secunities fomodning the teferenced index ar [} receive a net wetllement
amount in the form of cash or secwities aqual 1o the rotional amoant af the
vwvan less Ehe racovery walue of the seleenced oblgation or undeiysg
sicwtition comgenang the mlererced index. Recoverny value év mlimated by
market makers considering either industry standard seoovery rabes of eity
specific factors and contderations untl & oeda sent soturs. B & credit et
hirs ocoarred, the recovery value is determined by a facilitated auction
whereby & misimurm rusber of allowable broker bids, together with a
ipedied vakistion mothod, ane wued 19 caleulate tsé settlirrent value. Thi
atelity 1o delreer other obligations may el in 2 cheagest-to-delner ophbion
|2 busyer of profection’s right 1o chagse the deliverabie obligation with the
bermst ke foliowing o credit over)

Cred delauh swap AFFEETEnls On et mdoes involve ong prty malking a
stream of paymiects 1o arother party in machange for the righl o mcei a
specified refum in the event of a write-down, principal shortfall, interest
shertlall er defouht of 81 o pest of the refererced entities compiising the
ciedit index & coedd index i o basket of o ed? mitraments or expasunes
designed to he regresertative of some part of thie ceedit market as a whaole
These indees aie made uh ol refenence cradng el are judged by a pall of
dralers to be the mast Squid enlities in b coedst defoult swop market based
an tha sacter of the indaxe. Components of the indices may indude, Bt ane
nat limited (o, imestment grade secusities, high yedd secorities, asset-backed
securties, emerging markets, and! o various cedit ratings within each sector
Credie inchoes ace iraded using credit default swaps veth standacd eed 1eims
et i foed ipiesd and dtandind mihnty datéd An indes cieda dilalt
swap referenoes 28 the nares in the index, and 3 there is a default, the credit
event i setthed based gn that name"s wesght © the mdex. The compodition ol
the indices changes periadically, usualy every six months, and for most
ridces, pach name has an equsl weight in the sdes A Fund may uie cedn
dzfauit swaps on credit indices to hedge 3 portfolo of credit cefasdy swaps o
Bands, which i less epestove than it wauld be 18 buy many eredie dedah
swaps 10 achivws & simelar eflect. Credit defacdt vwaps on dices are
irstnaments Tor protecting invesstons owning bands agamst default, and
draders uie them 1o speculabe o changs & aedil quality

imghed cedit sproads, epresinted in abobote Yorms, usiired in deteimining
the marked value of cedd default syap agreements on corporate, koan,
sowereign, U5, munidpal o U5 Treasury iwsues 25 af penod end, If any, &g
didicied in the Mates to Schedule of Fnvestments. They seree a4 80 ndicaton
al the oument status of paymentiperfomuande rick and represint the foelihood
ot risk of defaul for the tefenended entity, The impled credit spread of 3
paticudar referenced entity seflects the oost of tuyingfselfing potection and
Ty inChade wphent payment reimnid 10 be made in enter imo B
aytement Wider aedit tpeeadt ispresent a detenceation of the relemncsd
entity's oedit seurdness and @ grester kelihood or risk of default or other
cedit event ocuiring as defined under the tems of the agreement. or crecit
diefaclt swap agreements on asset-backed secunities and oredit indices, the
qacted market proes and resulting values sene 3 the idacator of the oument
slahg of the payment' performanoe risk. Increasing market valkms, in absolue
s when eompaied o the nstiseal amount ol the swap, represnt a
deterination of the telernenced entity's credit sourdhess asd & greate
likelihood o risk of default or ocher cedin event ocosing as defined under
the tlerem ol the agreement

Tha masimum poseatial smaun of kiure payments (undiscounied] 1hat

& Fund as a weiler of MERCToN chukd S requeed In reake (nder a credin
def et swap agreement eqaals the notional smount of the ageement
Hatignal amours cf sach indaridusd credit default swap agresment
outstanding 25 of peviod end tor which a Fund is the saler ol protection ane
dedosed in the Moles o Schecade of rvestments These potental amounts
wwunuld be paitisly cflvel by @ recovery values of the nespecine refesenced
oalgatons, uphord payments receeed apon enting into the agroemend, o
net amounts receved fiom the sestlament of boy prosection cresiit default
AW dgreemiens enbired mdo by a Fund foe the same melenenced onlity ar
SRS

Crogs-Currency Swinp Agreemesats Cortain Funds may enter wlo crass-

CUITeRCY WWaAD AgPpements 10 pain or midigate exposune bo opmenCy ik
CIess-Camendy Swsd Myreements mvohoe WD partes exchanging twa diffenent
umenc# with an agresmont to reverie the sxchange at & later dpte 1
specified michange rates. The exchange of oavencies at the inception date of
he conbract takes place af the curent dped rate. The re-eachange at maturity
may take plice at the same Q'J:I,h.CIIIIJE rabe, o spadified rate, oi the then
curend spot rate. Inberest paymenis, # appleable, are made bebween the
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portaes based on interest rates avadkable i the two amendies at the moeption
al the contract. Tha term al cross-cummendy vwap cont:acts may extend foe
many yeans. Cross-cumendy ywags ace usually negotiated with commenal
and irvesiment banks Some choss-auimendy swaDs may not provide foe
enchanging prndipal cash Bows, Bt only far excharging intered? cash Flows

Intgrest Rate Swap Agresments Certan Funds are subgect to mberest rate
ik eRpadune 0 the poimal courte ol purtiang thes investment obesdtied
The valum of the fioed rate bonds that a Fund holds may deosase it interest
tabrs i To beip hedge sgenat B b and 10 maintain its ability 2
generate income #1 prevading market rates, a Fund may enier info mderest
1ale swap agiesments. Mleres] 1818 swvdp agreemienls imalve e eachangs
by o Fund 'with another party for their respective commitment bo pay or
teconm ininnest an the notesal amaunt of princpal. Cetsin faims of interel
rabe seap agreemends may include; ) imterest rate caps, under which, in
return for @ premium, one paty dgiees o make Dayments Lo the other 1o the
exiend that inderest rated eocoed 2 specified rate, or “cap®, (§) inteorut rade
floats, under which, in retuin for & premium, one party agrees o make
péyments ba e othet 10 the extent that irterest rates (ol Selow a speafed
rabe, of “floor™, (i) interest :are collars, undsr whnch a party sells & cag and
purchades & Hodr or wide v it an aftempt ba profect itell against intergit
Ale moweTanks esrpedng Qi IESMUIT £F mAKImum leeels, {w) rallahlp
anipest rale swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfon: fee in
condidenation for the nght 1o eacly termurate the swap trarsaction in whele,
&L rero 005t and ata Illﬂil.ﬂ"-l'led tate and Teme prid 00 1he matu l|:r AR,
il Spieadiocks, whith alonw g inDerel] ra1e Swap wiers 1o lock in e
{oraard ditterential {or spioed) betvessn the imteest rate swap rate and a
specified beachmark, or () basis swaps, under which bao pasties can
enchange varuble imetest rates basead on diferent segments of mansy
markets

Total Retura Sweap Agresments Cerian funds may ener inte 16480 retun
S bottemants 10 Gain of mdigale exposune to the undeilvng relesonoe
Total 1ethen swap agreements mmmhve rommitments whene sngle or maliple
cash Mows ae enchinged baved on the pice of an wrderbpng reference avse
sind on a fimed or varable imomest rate, Tatal retum swap agrecments may
mnhe cormmatrments. o pay i eest in euthangs o 3 market-Eeked mtum
One coundesparmy péys oul the total refurn al & specilic wdering refesonce
zused, which may indude a $engle security, & basket of securities, or an indes
and n reborn cores 3 foed or variable rate, At the matunty dade, a ned cash
Horey i exchanged where the todal retum i equivalent to the retum of the
underlying referendce et lesy 2 Snanding rate, If any. A% & iecehe, &

Fursd would receive payments based on amy positive botal nebam and would
owe payrmants i The event of a negative 108l refum. At tho payer, a

Fured would owe payments on any pasitive todal retum, and wioukd reeces
payments in the evend of a negative total retumn

Voluiility Swap Agreements Cerlan Tunds may ente inta volatlty swap
agreemenis, abio kbnom a4 forward volatiity ageemets and volability swaps,
whiath ase agreements in whech 1he counberpartes agqree to make payments n
connection with chirges m the volahlty (e, the magnitude of change owr a
specified pecicd of tme) of an undertying reference insrument, such as a
CimREnCy, FALE, index, secunty or atber fimancial instrument iolaibey Swapr
permil thee paties 1o attempt to hedge volatlity ik acdiar (e positons on
the pr pecned future wolatilty of an u"»;lerlrm.] spference instrument. For
eaample, & Fund may enber inlo & volatiity Sevap in ceder L2 ke the pasiton
thar the reference inst-ument®s wolatilicy willl incraase over a parsicular perind
af trese. i 1he refereno mstrument's volatiliy does increase over the specified
time, the Fusd will recem payment Bom it countenparty bhaied upoa the
ampunt by whics the ieference nstrumis’s realized volatiity level puceeds a
wolatifty bvel agreed upan by the parties. i the mierence nsbument’s
volatibty does ned increase ower the spediied tame, the Fard will make a

paymend o the ceunterparty based upon the amoant by which the refarerce
matromont’s iwakised volatilty lewsl falls below the volasiity kevel agreed upon
by the parties. At the maturity dade, a nat cash flow is euchanged, where the
payall amout 1 egunvalent 1o the difference betwesn the reslifed price
wariance of the underlying asset and the strike price multiplied By the notonal
il AL & recetve ol the realized phos vanance, the Futd wioold pedive
the payaft amount whe the realized price varance of the underlying asiet &
greaer than the stike price and would owe the payo! amournt when the
varianca is ks than tw wirike. As a payer of the maloed price warance,

the Fund would owe the payofi amourt when the realired price variance of
the undethying asset i+ greater tun the stiake price and would recena the
poyoll amourt when the vasiance is less than the strike. Fayments on a
wolatilty sveap wall be greater f they are based upon the mmhematical square
ol volatility (i 2., the meatured volablity makpded by itself, which is rederrad
1o-as “vartance™) This type of solatdiy weap & frequently 1elered 1o as &
SATINCE YA

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

in the nommal coure of busingss, the Funds (o Acguited Funds) bada
finanial insbrumenis ard enter mio francial ransactions where risk of
jpatential kit exists doe to wuch thimgs a4 changed in the market {market sk}
o Bailure or inatility of the other party to 3 transaction 1o perlom (edit and
SOLNEpATTY figk]. Ses Beliw for & deraled destiiptes of selet pincoal
ks

[Fund of Fasdls 1o the extent that certam Funis imvest substantially all of their
tipeInee assets it Aogared Funds, the tsks associated with mestng n
these Funds will be closely relabed to the risks asseaated with the securities
a%ud other investmants heid by the Acguired Fundd. The abilny of the Funds to
achueve ther respecive investment objectves may depend upaon the abiity of
the Acquite] Furds Lo acheeve theit iespecive imvestmest objetlives. There
wan be no assurance that the investment objective of any Acquired Fund will
be achivad. The NAY of an Acquiring Fund will fluctuate in response to
changes in the respactive MAY of the Acquired Fusd i which it imests

I the nomal course of business, Aegared Funds ade Tinanoal mayuments

and ender into fnancial tansachions whene nsk of potential koss exists dop to

changes im the market [market sk}, or falare or inahiley of the other party tn
& transscsian 1o perdoim (oredt and counteparty fk)

[Nimrioed Rl 4 Fund's investment in fnandal desivativr Batruments and
ather Rmsndial nsiraments axpode the Fund to vanous rks such as, b nat
imited fo, interest sate, foreign non-U1 % ) curmengy, equity and commodity
Highs

Irdevesit et nak s e mek that foed ncome tecurilied snd other matnments
tield by a Fund may decling in vales bacause of ar increass in interest rates
M4 norrenal inbenes] rated rive, The value al cermain lieed income seiuiites held
by & Fundl s ikely o decredse. A nominal interest rete can be described o
the sum ol 4 redl inlenest tabe & an expecied millation rase. livleiest rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money i
Thewe changes are not ansicpated by Fund menagement. & Fund may not be
atde 1o hedpe against changed i inbenedt rates of may choose ot 1o do 5o ol
cost o ather reasons. In addition, oy hedges may sol weik as inlended

Duation is a measure ised 1o determing the senctirty of a security's price o
Changes in NSl rates That enoDipotates @ secunty’s yield, coupon, nal
madurity and call lestures, smong other charactenstcs. Convenity i an
additional measure wed to understand a sequity's or Fund's inferest rate
ety thal meahungs the cale of change of duralon in rekponse 1o
changes in insesen] rates. Fed income sequrities with longer duration tend
10 be more sensitive 10 changes in nlerest fates, wsdally making them mane
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welitile than sacurities with shomer durateed. A wide varsety of Bxoors can
couso indenest rales bo vise {o.g., central bank mohetary polices, inflation
rabes, genaral economic conditions, eic ). Under current economic conditions,
risiest rales are neat historcally ke levels. The Funds currently face a
heaghienatd livel of mbarett rate mk, etpecially sinco the Federall Beserae
Board has ended its quantitative easing program and has begun, and may
CONSrusE, B0 faise miees rated. To the extent that the Federsl Resenve
contirae s bo raise wierest rabes, theee i3 & risk that rates acress the Erancial
vysoem muy rise. Further, while Bond makets have seadily grown over the
past thiee decades, dealer “market making™ ability has not kept pace and in
0 Cases his devieased. Given the imperiance of mossmisary “manoe
making” in creatieeg & robust and sctive market, Sned income seoutites e
curmently faang indreaved volatilty and |iquidity ks All of e faciom,
collecinely andior sndrndusty, could cause a Fund 8o lase walue | the Fund
bost encugh value, the Fund coud face mceased Unitholder redempticns,
whiach could force the F'und 1o igudste revestments o drsduantageous fimes
af prices, thereby schersely affectssg the Fued, Ak, the Fand may be
arversely afferied when a l.ugg Unithodder puichases o n,:l‘lpm!ar]:
amgunis of units, which can ofgur 8% any Gme and may impact the Fard in
the same mannes as a high voluve of rederplion nequests. Lange Unithalder
trarsactions may impact the Fund's liguidsy and net asset value. Such
trarmactions may also increxie the Fund's transaction costs of ofhervae
cause the Fund 1o perlom dflesenly than intended. Moreover, the Fund s
subject bo the risk thal other Unitholders may make imvestment decisions
based an the choites of & lege Untholdes

To the extert that eertain Funds may imesl mosecurtion and indtruments that
afe economically bed 1o Russia, the Funds aie subf o varsa isks such as,
but net limited 1o political, economic, legad, market and currency rivks. The
fikd include unceitan poltcsl and economic pohices, shor-1eim market
wolalildy, poat accounting standands, cosfuption and crime, an inadeguate
regulatory syidem:, anc unedictable taxation. Imvestreents in Russia ame
patoularly subject ta tha risk that further sconamic sandtions may be
mpased by the United States andifor other countries. Such sanctions, whech
MY IMmpact companies in many sectons, imchedng energy, financial services
ard deferse, among othar, may negatively mpuct 4 Fund's perfcemance
andion alslity 10 acheeve ils investment ohigctive. The Rudsan wecuries
marcel, as companed o U 5. markets, has significant price volatiity, lois
Biouadity, a smaller market capetalization and a smaller numbes of traded
secunities. Adverse cumency encbange rates e & risk ahd there may be & lack
of avaslable cumency he-dgng inatnaments. Irvestrents in Russia may be
siibjet bo the ik of nationairancn of mpeopnation of s i, nabital
gas, metals, and timber account for 3 significant poron of Russa’s exports,
beavingg 1he country vulrserable bo Swvings in word prices

Feooagn [nan UL % ) secaritnrs in this neport are classifod by the countny of
inooipeeation of & Rolding In certain instandes, & seauity’s country of
ehbbipoeation may be dilferent lrom s oty of BEOnOmIZ Expideie

H a Fund imveits directly in foreigm (non- U S ) curmerstses o in soqunitaes that
\rasche in, and receise Fiwnues o, Joreign (aee-LL S ) uirences, o n finasal
devivative instruments that provide exposure to foresgr (non-L 5 ) curmencies,
o vl be subyect to the mik thal thove guireross will dechng in walue ielitive
10 the base curency of #he Fund, o0, in the case of hecging positions, that

thie Fund's base curmency wil decling i vakse relative 10 the cwrendy beng
hedged. Cumancy rates in foreign countries may Suchzate significantly over
short periods. of time Tor a rember of reasons, incheding chasges in interes
rabes, ndevention bor the taluree fo nbervens) try LI.5. of ||:"zrg|| GOVETTITHS,
contral Banks or supranateral enbities sath a4 the Intemational Monatary
Fursd, on by the emposiion of turency conirols or ather political developments

w ane Lnded States of abvoad. A8 8 redalt, & Fund's ervistmentd i ‘c!'ei_:ﬂ
curmency-denaminated seourities may reduce the Fund's refurms.

The matksl vaimed of sostied, tuch ot common vincks and prefered soqunimg
o pguity retated avartments sk e lubores and optoes, heee hintoncally
risen aed falken in periodic cychs and may dedine due to general market
conditions which arm net tpeatizally related 1o a pariculst company, such a1
real or perceived adverse ecosamc conditions, thanges in the gereral
adilook lof cotpocate eatnings, changes in interedd or cufrency rates of
advrso imoestoe sertiment genevally, Thay may ako deding due to factors
which afledt a partitular industry or industriss, sach as |labor shartages or
riparved producton ol end compeliive conddsans wethim an ridasiiy
Diflerent types of equity secuities may react citieently so these
developments Eguity securities sad equity telated imesiments generally bave
geater market price volatility than fioed income secunties

Crodit mnd Coumtnrparty Rzsks & Fund wol be exposed to credit disk 1o
patics woth whom 1 bades and will akia bear the rek of sottlemeat default
A Fund minimizes concenirations. of oedit rsk by undenaking trarsactions
with a krge pumber of customens and courerparties on ncogrined and
seputable exchanges, where spphcable. OTC derrrtive tansactions ae
suipect 10 the rsk that a counterparty 1o the tansaction will nof fulhill i
cnniractsal abligations to the other pasty, a5 many of the proseaions affoeded
1o contraly cheaned derivative transactions might not be avalable for OTC
dermiative bansachiors. For derivabives traded oa an exchange o theough a
et peundaipanty, o et rigk retides wiehi (B rradnaatieness of

the Fund’s clearng beoker, or the dearinghouse sell, rather than toa
ounigparty o an OTC dersetive ressaction. Changes in tegqulstion relatng
104 Fund's use of darvatves and related instruments oould potentially imit
@t impact the Fund s abslity 1o imast i derraatned, bmit the Fund s ability to
employ certain sirateqies that use decwatives andion adversely afeq te valse
o peifmmanieof cematves and te Fud. A Fusd could lese misiey il the
wwer or guarantor of a fived income security, or the counserparty to a
finenoul dervaing mitrumnts contrsct, o purchine sqreemant of & loan of
paitiolio secacrities, i unable ce unwaling to make tmely princpal andier

e beiesl paymenty, of bo otferare honcr ds oblgations. Setuntes and
Fingrgial derriiee mstramenss ang b,b‘(\-d‘ 0 varying drqml:-i. of credrs sk,
wihich may be refiected im credit ratings

Similae 1o credit Mk, & Fund may be sxposed to counterparty risk, or the sk
that an inatdution or other entity with whith a Fusd has unssitfed of open
transactions wil default. FIMCO, a5 the Manager, mesimizes coeniorpaty
ritis To the Funds trough 2 numkee of wrgs, Prioe 1o enferiag inlo
iransaczions with a new coumerparty, the PIMOD Counterparty Risk
Commitiee ponducts &n extensive credit teview of such oountetparty and musd
appeove the use of such Conimparty. Furthermone, parsuant o the terms.of
the undeihphy coatfac, i the satent That irpsd amounts mwed 1o 8 Fusd
exceed a predetermined thizshold, such counserparty shall advance ol laveral
1o Fund w the form al cash o secuntes equal i value 10 the o
araurt owed 108 Fund. A Furd may iewest sy collateral in securities or
athet imstruments and will iypically pay intece 10 the countecparty on e
collageral recetved. H the unpaid amount owed % a Fund wireguently
dereses, & Fund would be requited to retum 10 the caurterpanty ol or &
paition af the collateral prescutly sdwanced. PIMCO' sttempls fo minimize
caunbipuarty mik my, haveeved, be uniucceiitul

Al ransactoos in lisbed seounties ae seftied paid for upon delrery wing
aproved ooorterpartien The rivk of dedault is considered min=nal, a5 delivory
al soturitses sold i only made once a Fund has receved payment. Payment 5
made on a porchase once e secur ties hawe been deliverad by the
counterparty. The trade will Tail if either party fails to meet i obligetion

ol B [ My 2, 7510 BT

263/380



; to Financial State

B, MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject o varous nEting aranqements "M aser

Agieements”) with selert counterpartios. Masier Agreements gowen the
terms of certan Yansschom, and are miended b3 seduce the Coenterparty mk
amgciated with relevant transactions by spedifying crodit protection

mernan s and oo, standardration that is insended to imgeove kegal
coitinty, Each Bype of Muiie Agreement governs Ceilain typed of
trarsactons. Differend types of transactions may be vaded out of different
woal entitaes or affilisset of a particuler organszation, tesulting in the need for
miultiple agreements with & tngle coumievpaity. As the Master Agsesmeants
ate specilic o unigoe operations of Sfeeal assel 5ty dllow & Fund io
chose out and et 25 potal Exposure 0o & Counterpadty in ewent of & defsun
with meapect 16 all the trencschons gowenad under 3 gingle Master
Agrepment wath a counterparty, For financial reporting puiposes the
Fatements of Adsets and Liabeahties generdly present desative asdels and
iahilities on a gioss bass, which reflects. the full rigks snd seposures peior o
nEthing

Master Agreemens can also hisla bmit counterparty risk by spelying
coilatenal posting anangements at pre-amanged exposung levek Linder most
Master Agteements, collateral s reutinedy traradesied il the 1atal net exposure
{o cerlain tramachons (ned ol oS rug Gollateral abeacy o gl gérenined
e thee refevar Masier Agreemest with a counsesparty in a g ien aocoum
ety a speafied threshold, which bypcaly tanges fnom pero to 5250,000
depend g o the counterparty and the type ol Masier Agreement. United
$ates Treasury Bifs and LS oofar cash am l}:'l'lE'i"'f the DIEJ." B foams ol
collsteval, akhough other forms ol AAA rated paper or soversign Lecarities
may b used dependirg on the terme: outlined in the appicable Magie
hg-w'nn-r_ Secufifies and cash |-Ier.-_||l..j B ol al e e Heried as

awets on the Ststements of Asaets snd Lishdites as either & component of
Irpestreenty ot value [1ecaritie] or Deposits with counterparty (cash). Cash
collsteval roconed & not typacally held in @ segregabed acoount and as such
rellected as & habiity on the Stasements of Aasels and Liakaliies a8 Degearist
fromn counberparty The market value of any securiies reossved an oobaneral i
nol feflacied & 8 componsil of MAY. The Fund's over sl eapcdute 16
countarparty nsk can charge substantialy wathie 2 short perod, as it is
affectied by sach rarsaction subyect to the refevant Masser Agieement

Master Repunchase Agreements and Glohal Master Repurchase Adpetrrents

dividualy and collectively “WMaster Ropo Agroements™] govam repurdhass,
reveria sepnrchase, and sale-buyhadk transactians betvwsan the Funds and
select counierparces. Master Reoo Agreerments manian peovsaons for,
amang ather things, initation, income payments, events of dedsull, and
maintenance ol collaieral. The market value of transactions ung 2 Masior
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged of and 1he net exposue by
counterparty s ol peviod end ars dechoed in the Motes 1o Schedule ol
brapsbraents

Master Securities Forwand Transaction Agreemants {"WMaster Foraard
Agreprents”) govem oertain foraard setting transactons, such as THA
secuiifies, deliped-gelvey or salis-buyback tansactom by and
between tha Funds and soledd comsterparties. The Masier Forwand
Bgpeements mainiain prowesceds for, smeng other things, inRistion and
confimatian, paymint and transher, events of defacl, term o, iod
makstenasce of collateral The market value of fanwand setthng transaction,
collsteral pleaged of necerwed, and the net exposune by counlerparty & ol
penod end s disclosed = the Mabes o Schadule of Investments

Cantomer Acopuni Agresments and related addenda govem clesred

deviv s Trananctian suck a8 funrel, aplions on faunes, and deaned O1C
derhatnes. Such traradtions require posting of initial mamgin as datermaned
try each relevant Cearing agancy which & segregated in @n aomouni 4t a
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Hurtures Cor meschant §°F O] regestered wath the Commaday Fulurst
Tradimg Commission (“CFTC®). In the United States. counberparty risk &
wgrfrant by reduced as ceeditans of an FOM cannat have & daim ba Fund
asets in the seqregated accoent. Additionally, portabiey of esposwe in the
et of an FOM default woenaria furthes reduces fnk o the Funds. Yariaton
maeqin, or changes in macket walue, afe mchanged daily, but may not be

ed between futures and ceared OTC dervatives. The markes walue of
acumulated unmealized sppeeciation |depreciation), mited mangn poated, and
sy unsetthed wanatdn maigin ad of peredd snd ane decioied in the Mabes b5
Lokwdule of Invesiments

Inipnatonal swaps and Derwathis Association, Ind, Mader Agreements and
Credis Support Arnexes (1508 Master Agreemwnits”] govemn bilateral OTC
dernalive Baniactions enbesed wio by the Funds varlh seledt coarleiparties
04 Master Agreempns maintain proyisices {or !]ﬂ"lFlﬂ chlinaticns,
IEDIESETIANONS, ageements, collmeral and evenns of dedeuk or iemination
[vents of termination include conditiona that may entile counlmparties 1o
BBl 10 Termaste ear :-'dn'-d cause settiemnesnt of &l Butsianomg ransachons
wiadied e applicable GOA Master Agreement. Any elechion 1o leiminale ealy
Could be mateial 10 e Toancil saipmends, In rd cilpemadanges, e
0A Master Agreement may condain additional provisions: that add
counlaparty i atection beyond coverage of eiing daily exposurs d the
counterparty has @ decline in oedit quaity below a precefined level These
ettty I dey, by be Seoregated with b thed-party custdian. The market
wwakow of OTC fmasos! denvatee mitraments, collaberal necowed or pledged,
aned ned enposure by counterparty as of penod end are cischosed in the Moles
10 Schedule of Investeseni
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nancial Statements it

8. FEES AND EXPEMNSES

Fach Fund bs subject to the Inliowing fees payable at the Enlloaing annual rates (statad as 3 parcentage of the average daily net asiess ot pach Fund, ar Class, it
appheatie, taken sepaately)

... B =

] . Advisary By
PIMCO B dn Foresgm Law Donstisn Fumd 11736 5%
PIMICO Barmiada U S, Lasw Disratian Fund 036 %
MMACO Earn Tatnl Retum Fund [ W 0.5 %" 0o % (kL
PIMICO Resd Retum Fund -1y 025" 1118 03 %"
PIMCD Sheat-Torm Straseqy
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The managemient, ddvssry and admintratnm feed, d applcable, e pisd monthly i aiears 15 PIBCO {or provcing o amangeig fof the pioveuon o adaoiy.
afmnstative and thind-pamy seneces induding audst, cusiodal, trustes, |:l]|1fﬂd'lﬂ BCICUSTING, 10UTna IEl}dl transfer -il;Eﬂ[E"d printing senioes. The agency and
distribustion feet, if applicable, are paid monthly » aerears 1o reimburse francial intermedianes thet provide serntes and distrisation relating to the units ol the
applicatlo Fund {or Class thereol, as applicable), In the case of the PIMCO Bermwda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PIMC O Bermuda U 5. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO,
aut of it management Tee, wil| bear the COSIS associated wilh Sy SO0y andl administrative seraces, [ 1% of whidh & dE"S.ﬁ;'-E'.Eﬂ‘.l} Co%eeT AOMINBIATVE Expenses in
exchange lor this fee, PIMCO will bear the coits of cerain thind-panty sernces requited by the Funds, indlding awdt, custodial, biustee, po'l‘:v O atcoarting, legel
tramifer agent and printing sensoes. PIMCO, and not Unitholders, vwould benedit from any price decrease in the cost of such third party senices, induding deceases
resuiliing from an increase in net assety bn addition, weith respedt 1o Fusds that am subject to an admieistrative fee, PIMCO géneraly mates a profit on uach & fee

The Funds (er Classes theseol, as applicable) may beat orher emperses relaed (0 thes opeea tion that are not coversd by the managemend, athisory, sdmmnisirstne,
agengy or detribution fees, inchuding bud not bmited to; i} temes and govemmensal lees; (i) biokerage fees and commissions and other portialio frandacton expensos;
i) costs of borowing money, including imerest expersa; (i) exraoidnary expenses, indhuding costs of ltigation and indemnification expenses; and [v] any expendes

ol R | b 17, 210
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Notes to Financial Statements it

aliocated or allocable 10 a specific Class of units, a6 appScable. FINYCO Pas paid, oo well pay, the omanizational expenses associabed with PIMCO Short-Term Sarasegy’s
nitial et -up

PIMCO andioe its aMiianes. will initially adwance i PRACO Sham-Temm Statogy all costs and dxpesies, mdladng Sgal expenses, incuimed in connisction with the iritial
publke affenag of the IPY and US0 Clasass of Unets of the Fursd in Japan {(=0fer g Eapenses”). Al o niesr the commencemant of ihe Fund's operations, the Fund wll
reimburse PINK D and'or its atfiliates for tho (Hfering Expeies advanced and will amortipe guch Ofering Exponses ower the firg fiscal yoar of ris operabons. Howower,
PIMCD has agread o waive rembarsesnent aof e |’fl||p||'1|3 Fugensss bn the sent that such axpenses enresd 1 05 % par annum of the sum of tha |FF and 150
Chagies's Met Addat VW, o *0fleing Expere Limita®as®). Ay Offersg Expeniet wabved dug 15 the Ofering Expents Limitation mday b ricouped by PIMCO
ardlior s affilistes for & penod = frve yRars freem tha mEntamenl of uned's Dperations; provided, the amsunt recouped by PIMICIO andied ifs
affiliztes shal not exceed 0.05% pet annum of the sum of the |FY and USD Classes’ N&Y 1T either of the 39Y and USD Classes of Units of the fund i serminated pogr
10 the full reimbainement of all Deeng Lxpanses. PIMCD and'or its afiilates shall not seek mimbursement of any remaining unteimbutsed amounts from that Class
Furthesmare, if both of the JPY and USD Classes of Units of the Fusd ae 1 nabed prige o the fll isimbusement of sl '\:'Irflllll_l Enxpenaes, PPALD andior its alfiliates
shall e remburiement ol any rermaining unreimbursed srouns from the Fund. As of May 31, 2018, the recoweiable smout of Oflering Expented to FIMED
andior its affilistoy was 549 268

PIMCO has appointed SMBC Nilks Secunities inc 10 act as Agent Company and Distibwior for the distributicn and servicing of wnits of the PIMCO Euro Tosal Retum
Fured, PIMCO Real Rebain Fund, and the MY and USD Clastes of PFIMCD Shon-Teim Steateqy to retal imeesbors in lagan. Mo distnButor heee been appoeited bof any
al the other Funds

A5 noted in the able above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds aee not subeed 1o mana gement, advisory, adminisiratve, agendy of distnbuton fees. PIMLCLD Japan
Led, PINOCO s affikans in Japan, 18 pand & bes from tee lapaneis vestment Trusts of otfer mveiment vehides. thag invest in s Funds of Clissis and & porton of
such bag 15 then allocated 5o PIMCO ta compendate i b s sennced

PIMCO has paid the crganizational experses asodiated with the reation of the Tnast 1Ffurkher Furds aee Laanched, such tosts ciredtly attnbutable tothe eleant
Fured may be bome by the iefevan Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A5 Fees paid to the related party,  any, are

be irvestment Adveer 5 3 celated party 1o the Funds and is a majonty-owned subsidiary of Aliang Asset Management
discloved i Mote 3, and sicrund related party foa amounty, # any, ane disclosed on she Seatomients of Asets and Llabils

Aliang Asset Managemens A, a related party of the Trust, owned 57.118% of the net aswets of the FIMCD I-""-'f' g Slarkets Bond Fared 1] arg © 1 39% of the ret
stz of the PIMCO Emaging Mariett Bond Fund 1] as of May 31, 2018

Certain Funds are permitted B0 puichase or sell secunibes from o o cevtain refated afffated funds under specified condibens outimed in peotedutes adopted by the
investrent Adviser. The picceduies have been designed to enware that any purchase or sale of securities by a Fand from: or 0 another fund that & o could be

considencd an affiliste by vtee of havng & comman adviser for afffated imvestment advisers), is effected at the curent market price. During the paricd ended May
a1, 7018, the Fund(s) below ongaged in porchades and saies of wourities among affilisted funds (smoomts in thourands):

fFandl Parchassy Sagp
PIMCD Berrvada Fovege Lew Darston Furd | 0 3 Ll
FIMCD Beresda U5 Low Dwraten Fusd ] 45
FINCD Emergng Maror Hord Fund 1 12 635 hlk T
FIMCD Eui Twsl Natum Fusd s -] EFp
FIMCT Fisd Retuin Ford 4ed 1]
FIKCD Shory: Do Sraipgy 44 558 B

11, GUARANTEES AND INCEMPMIFICATION

Under the Trust's nrgararational documents, cerain partes (rcheding the Trustee and PIMCD) ate mderrdfied agamst certain Babilibes that may anse out of
performance of their daties o the Funds. Addigionally, in the nammal course of business, the Funds enter into contracts that corain a varety of indemniication dauses
The: Funds’ mammm exposare undet these antangements is unknown a3 this would emrotve future claimy that mey be mede against the ['uch that haee not jet
occurred. Howeser, the Funds have not had poer claims o losses pursuant to these confracts

12, UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

T Trust may issue up S0 500,000, 000,000 units of beneficial imtevest. The Funds may have o significant corgentration of sk, as certain Unitholdens gwn meee than
1en percent of the et o ol each respective Fusd, Such concengration of Unitholcers” irterests codld kavr a maderial efloct on the Funds in the event thesa
Unitholders reuest in witheraw sulbsiantial amounts of capital at the wame time. Substrpilons and redemptions al units of the Funds are denominaied in the Fusds'
NAY cumency and converted oo the Funcs' functhona! oumency at the Spot rate on the transacion date. Unis of each Fund are issued withous par value. The Trusbee,
with the coraent of the Manage:, may in the fulure create and offer sn additional Fund or Class or Clatsss of units of sy Fumd

ol B [ gy 1, 7010 00
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Notes to Financial Statement

Evoed in unils of benelicied intesed] were &5 lollows [ il amaunts o Thousandd”)

Year aded N [odied LT ETT Feowe Lresed
LR ol Ny 1, =01 iy 1. My 11, EE
Wraty L L Amiaa LT L] it Aiui
Fpomeptn for wniz noid T ¥ 1116 i 1 6148 i 1 Wk L 1]
JPY had WA ¥ L] Wik " ] ar
[} Hid Wi L] L] Hik HE Eon (il EE]]
o5t of anty rstemend il L Ar LR ] W AR M L1
i ] Hi# L] WA il Wil L LLT]] 10
L2 Rk Wi LY LY L&Y Wa i 133,31
Mt | ety b
il L1 It | . ] (158 imn ] |8 ] {1} { | X)) FEOTh I P P
Yoarlmind Yuwar [uipd Yoar faded T Erctid
Wy I8, 208 Ny 1, 2000 My 11 11 My 11, 210
Rty Aravim [THT Anizem Ninshy Lt Umity Amsir
Exompta fer sty aold F L] 1582 WA L Hed Wa el 11 i |
L1 Wi n ] 1,16 5 | ] LY L]
h# WA Ha L) | 5 LA LY
i hid Wk 5 o8 H i L L
Ll i Wa b [ ¥sH) | 50 A L]
ToT Wil Wi W Wk | 50 Nk Wk
5] [ Wa i | 10 W, WA (T 53
|TRYT Kk WL g B | Kilk Wil MA L]
}EARI K L3 ) L] Wi L L Lt
Tt | rewvertmen of
dembysaen i (] NA Bk Wik WL ] n
|CN Hi# L] WA L] : 15 L] L]
J R LI Wi g by | z n N Fk
I ik L] a | ' -] L1 Rk
Rid Wa L A 2 31 L L
[Fir e IEE47E LEd L] Haik HA 28 .3
Rid LR M1 118,305 [ Al MA L1}
|CN¥ # W& Y L] | I A LL]
[ Rid LES L] oEn 1, Pk | A Wk
4 INR L H'E L] 5] o Fr ] L LY
L] Rk LR Y LT K 1 T4 MA [
J1MAK Lo WA I BEm Kk WA LA Lot
IR At HiL 3345 44 155 L0} L LY L
L W 1] WL L) Wi Hi L1
N itk | T
meweking o Furd o
Ewniaciens | TFT s b | i 408 (1] I 1150 13 R (¥ ]

sl Rmpry | Wy 11, 010
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Notes to Financial Statemen

¥ st Endwd Winir' Ennil

Wy I 3BT By 3, 2008
Rmomgpta o wretz ok -] i 1AM L L
13 Hik Wi 1550 § XA
[ Wi (] 0.
[T LY B ]
uzg ik WA ] 8551
Cem ol anmn reemnind - 1455 WE Lo
| ¥ Wik Wik T 1]
115D [ Wi ] LN
P Rk Wik 1] [# R 1]
1 Ri& WA ' 1] (A

Mot rcrease ewltng ban

Fuiad L i S 0 b 3 1T L]

13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

15 e nead named a4 defendants in afy malendl [gaton ar siraben proceedings ahd ane not saane of any matenal lngaion ar claam pending of thiesben

15, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

er has evnluated the pessibility of wutr #' Tinancia

b Bl

sl Rmpry | Wy 11, 010

268/380



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2019 )
) ( )
32,701 3,847
7,589 893
25,112 2,954
2,345,029
10.71 1,260
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) (2019 )
388,027,447 413 940
850,000 150,000 250,000 1,250,000
850,000 150,000 48,875.82

2015 324,930,646

2016 338,413,044

2017 308,558,334

2018 302,158,349

2019 388,027,447
@

(Managing Member)

( ) (limited liability company agreement)

®
2019

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Joshua Anderson

Andrew Balls

Jamil Baz

Ryan P. Blute

Philippe Bodereau

Andrew Bosomworth
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David L. Braun

Geraldine Brigliadori Walsh

Erin Browne

Elizabeth Cantrill

Rick Chan

Michael A. Cudzil

Joshua Davis

Craig A. Dawson

Ed Devlin

Pramol Dhawan

Chris Dialynas

Jennifer E. Durham

Mohsen Fahmi

Joachim Fels

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

Alessandro Gandolfi

Russell Gannaway

Michael A. Gomez

Stuart T. Graham

Sachin Gupta

Gregory W. Hall

Brent R. Harris

Jonathan L. Horne

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

Andrew R. Jessop

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

Alec Kersman
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Mark R. Kiesel

J
John J. Kirkowski

Kimberley G. Korinke

Ryan Korinke

Richard R. LeBrun

Matthieu Louanges

Laurent Luccioni

Dirk Manelski

Sudi N. Mariappa

Rene Martel

Scott A. Mather

Ravi K. Mattu

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

Mohit Mittal

Eric J. Mogelof

Alfred T. Murata

John W. Murrary

Roger 0. Nieves

Thomas J. Otterbein

Lorenzo Pagani

Stephen A. Rodosky

Emmanuel Roman

Jerome M. Schneider

Marc P. Seidner

Robin C. Shanahan

Greg E. Sharenow
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Adam Shukovsky

Cathleen M. Stahl

Jason R. Steiner

Christian Stracke

Peter G. Strelow

John J. Studzinski

Sung Hee Suh

Eric M. Sutherland

Eve Tournier

Qi Wang

Candice S. Whitten

Frank Witt

Mihir P. Worah

Robert 0. Young

1971 1940
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2019 325
721,749,205,558.73

113 423,489,684,990
21 13,040,807,086
12 19,709,999,120
65 188,009,250, 855
9 9,574,771,340
37 10,870,466,759
34 21,133,510,363
13 21,952,473,758
1 290,124,096
5 2,311,486,381
15 11,366,630,811
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2017 12 31 2018 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2019 30
106.46

277/380



EDINETOOOO
O00oo0oooooooo0ooO00o0oO00D0bO00D0bDO000OoOnd(ELS034)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

2018 2017 12 31

2018 2017 2017

2(c) 429,220,995 45,694,867 450,700,560 47,981,582 369,212,638 39,306,377
2(d),5 32,459,901 3,455,681 17,499,478 1,862,994 15,079,940 1,605,410
2(e) 552,952,116 58,867,282 594,774,505 63,319,694 528,155,825 56,227,469
2(e) 254,081,349 27,049,500 265,415,118 28,256,093 248,092,787 26,411,958
32,694,941 3,480,703 32,353,593 3,444,364 29,806,504 3,173,200
2(e) 25,166,878 2,679,266 31,706,344 3,375,457 30,734,619 3,272,008
2(9).9(f) 15,657,169 1,666,862 31,943,967 3,400,755 72,809,303 7,751,278
8 7,382,210 785,910 15,679,760 1,669,267 10,599,926 1,128,468
3,6 22,123,467 2,355,264 15,603,998 1,661,202
43,846,429 4,667,891 54,450,745 5,796,826 51,770,261 5,511,462
1,393,461,988 148,347,963 1,516,647,537 161,462,297 1,371,865,801 146,048,833
2018 12 31
292,930,004 2017 12 31
261,275,747 2(F),7 146,862,606 15,634,993 169,666,751 18,062,722 192,255,385 20,467,508
2(9).9() 460,075,450 48,979,632 331,335,997 35,274,030 217,492,628 23,154,265
2(b) 13,463,668 1,433,342 101,758 10,833 103,150 10,981
10 29,821,480 3,174,795 19,752,989 2,102,903 21,293,880 2,266,946
650,223,204 69,222,762 520,857,495 55,450,489 431,145,043 45,899,701

2,043,685,192

217,570,726

2,037,505,032

216,912,786

1,803,010,844

191,948,534
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2018 2017 2017
433,350,570 46,134,502 524,430,033 55,830,821 366,719,665 39,040,976
8 212,000,000 22,569,520 204,000,000 21,717,840 153,000,000 16,288,380
9 155,868,165 16,593,725 133,064,250 14,166,020 284,765,682 30,316,155
6 102,698,345 10,933,266 67,149,872 7,148,775 47,547,207 5,061,876
8 20,488,078 2,181,161 22,191,262 2,362,482 25,837,663 2,750,678
2(0),9(F) 15,657,169 1,666,862 31,943,967 3,400,755 72,809,303 7,751,278
8,230,351 876,203 7,958,614 847,274 11,878,828 1,264,620
948,292,678 100,955,238 990,737,998 105,473,967 962,558,348 102,473,962
2(0),9(F) 460,075,450 48,979,632 331,335,997 35,274,030 217,492,628 23,154,265
9 130,404,396 13,882,852 87,515,282 9,316,877 59,230,194 6,305,646
42,013,112 4,472,716 44,907,555 4,780,858 42,772,551 4,553,566
1,550,631 165,080 999,204 106,375
634,043,589 67,500,280 463,758,834 49,371,765 320,494,577 34,119,853
1,582,336,267 168,455,519 1,454,496,832 154,845,733 1,283,052,925 136,593,814
850,000 (792,957,184) (84,418,222) (721,216,276) (76,780,685) (806,802, 240) (85,892,166)
150,000 1,267,204,122 134,906,551 1,290,399,100 137,375,888 1,274,221,216 135,653,591
2018 12 31
2017 12 31 45,705 23,722,086 2,525,453 28,660,677 3,051,216 25,239,087 2,686,953
2018 12 31
143,858 2017 12 31 122,972 9(a) 28,576,118 3,042,214 30,984,305 3,298,589 62,079,071 6,608,938
2(1) (65,196,217) (6,940,789) (45,819, 606) (4,877,955) (34,779,215) (3,702,595)
461,348,925 49,115,207 583,008,200 62,067,053 519,957,919 55,354,720
2,043,685,192 217,570,726 2,037,505,032 216,912,786 1,803,010,844 191,948,534
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2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017

2(e) 3,699,085,263 393,804,617 3,069,733,735 326,803,853
2(e) 897,932,904 95,593,937 894,875,087 95,268,402
2(e) 1,121,459,653 119,390,595 1,010, 295,001 107,556,006
2(e) 400,632,761 42,651,364 382,875,278 40,760,902
2(e) 21,116,690 2,248,083 19,056,121 2,028,715
6,140,227,271 653,688,595 5,376,835,222 572,417,878
9 1,921,490,575 204,561,887 1,786,117,811 190,150,102
6 814,837,039 86,747,551 393,884,056 41,932,897
2(p) 625,372,554 66,577,162 627,117,284 66,762,906
246,110,361 26,200,909 212,401,017 22,612,212
7,11 152,147,106 16,197,581 146,505,365 15,596,961
2(K) 116,090,003 12,358,942 97,973,736 10,430,284
54,856,322 5,840,004 54,417,256 5,793,261
3 30,368,244 3,233,003
63,594,897 6,770,313 29,364,266 3,126,120
3,994,498,857 425,254,348 3,378,149,035 359,637,746
2,145,728,414 228,434,247 1,998,686,187 212,780,131
24,051,878 2,560,563 50,067,120 5,330,146
2(b) (1,873,076) (199,408) 125,543 13,365
2,167,907,216 230,795,402 2,048,878,850 218,123,642
10 105,979,276 11,282,554 90,675,758 9,653,341
2,061,927,940 219,512,848 1,958,203,092 208,470,301

2(D) (19,376,611) (2,062,834) (11,040,391) (1,175,360)
2,042,551,329 217,450,014 1,947,162,701 207,294,941
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PIMCO

2017 12 31

IFRS 15

PIMCO

2018 12 31
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2018 2017 12 31
850,000 (806,802, 240) (85,892,166) 150,000 1,274,221,216 135,653,591 45,705 25,239,087 2,686,953
1,444,786,673 153,811,989 429,708,581 45,746,776 83,707,838 8,911,536
(1,407,711,685) (149, 864,986) (413,530,697) (44,024,478) (80,286,248) (8.,547,274)
48,510,976 5,164,479
850,000 (721,216,276) (76,780, 685) 150,000 1,290,399,100 137,375,888 45,705 28,660,677 3,051,216
(17,852,184) (1,900,544) (3,319,784) (353,424) (959,921) (102,193)
850,000 (739,068,460) (78,681,228) 150,000 1,287,079,316 137,022,464 45,705 27,700,756 2,949,022
1,523,328,377 162,173,539 450,997,001 48,013,141 87,602,562 9,326,169
(1,595,853, 856) (169,894,602) (470,872,195) (50,129,054) (91,581,232) (9,749,738)
18,636,755 1,984,069
850,000 (792,957,184) (84,418,222) 150,000 1,267,204,122 134,906,551 45,705 23,722,086 2,525,453
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2016 12 31

PIMCO

2017 12 31

IFRS 15

PIMCO

2018 12 31
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2018 2017 12 31

114,192 62,079,071 6,608,938 (34,779,215) (3,702,595) 519,957,919 55,354,720
1,958,203,092 208,470,301
(1,901,528,630) (202,436,738)
17,416,210 1,854,130 17,416,210 1,854,130

(48,510,976) (5.164,479)
(11,040,391) (1,175,360) (11,040,391) (1,175,360)
122,972 30,984,305 3,298,589 (45,819, 606) (4,877,955) 583,008,200 62,067,053
(22,131,889) (2,356,161)
122,972 30,984,305 3,298,589 (45,819, 606) (4,877,955) 560,876,311 59,710,892
2,061,927,940 219,512,848
(2,158,307,283) (229,773,393)
16,228,568 1,727,693 16,228,568 1,727,693

(18,636,755) (1,984,069)
(19,376,611) (2,062,834) (19,376,611) (2,062,834)
143,858 28,576,118 3,042,214 (65,196,217) (6,940,789) 461,348,925 49,115,207
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2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017
2,061,927,940 219,512,848 1,958,203,092 208,470,301
15,754,902 1,677,267 16,714,824 1,779,460
45,224,698 4,814,621 46,606,978 4,961,779
30,368,244 3,233,003
173,827 18,506 (586) (62)
1,873,076 199,408 (125,543) (13,365)
7,685,839 818,234 2,758,547 293,675
4,011,361 427,049
(19,366,964) (2,061,807) (2,292,016) (244,008)
(104,148,954) (11,087,698) (87,635, 240) (9,329,648)
(2,258,750) (240,467) (2,374,634) (252,804)
59,695,625 6,355,196 (84,912,737) (9,039,810)
8,957,270 953,501 (44,952,843) (4,785,680)
116,569,743 12,410,015 143,906,563 15,320,293
(2,775,258) (295, 454) (6,430,815) (684,625)
2,193,324,355 233,501,311 1,969,833,834 209,708,510
(30,106,393) (3,205,127) (26,776,891) (2.850,668)
(15,013,633) (1,598,351)

(45,120,026) (4,803,478) (26,776,891) (2,850, 668)
2,211,000, 000 235,383,060 2,260,000, 000 240,599,600
(2,203,000,000) (234,531,380) (2,209,000,000) (235,170, 140)
(2,158,307,283) (229,773,393) (1,901,528,630) (202,436,738)
(2,150,307, 283) (228,921,713) (1,850,528,630) (197,007,278)
(19,376,611) (2,062,834) (11,040,391) (1,175,360)
(21,479,565) (2,286,714) 81,487,922 8,675,204
450,700,560 47,981,582 369,212,638 39,306,377
429,220,995 45,694,867 450,700,560 47,981,582
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2018 2017 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding
250,000
PIMCO 2018 12 31
45,705
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO
Pl LLC

FINRA
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2018 2017 12 31 PIMCO
0.00181
0.00165

PIMCO

FINMA
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1ASB IFRS
IFRS

2019

PIMCO

PIMCO
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AAM LP
2018 2017
180.9 143.2
2018 12 31
620 2017 12 31 395

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO

IFRS
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PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO
30

2018 2017 12 31
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IFRS
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IAS 19
2018
AAM LP
2018 IFRS 15
22.1
IFRS 15
IFRS 15 2018 12 31
2018 IAS 39 IFRS
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IAS 39
IFRS
FVOCI
FVTPL
1ASB
2016 13 IASB IFRS 16 IFRS 16
IAS 17
IAS 17 IFRS 16 2019
236.1
276.8
IFRS
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2018 2017 12 31 32.5 17.5
2018 2017
2018 2017
2018 2017 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
Pl LLC
Pl LLC 2018 12 31 3,060
PIMCO
PIMCO

Pl LLC 2018 12 31
3.5

293/380



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

( ) ( ) ) ( )

2016 12 31 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
24,467,417 2,309,474 26,776,891
2,653,000) 105,547) 2,758,547)
38,382,925) 8,224,053) 46,606,978)

2017 12 31 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
(7,685,840) 7,685,840)
35,360,085) 9,864,613) 45,224,698)

2018 12 31 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606

2018 2017 12 31 45.2 46.6
PIMCO
AAM LP
2018 2017
50.4 49.3
AAM LP
PIMCO PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31
10.7 13.6
LIBOR 0.5 90
AAM LP PIMCO 2018 2017 PIMCO
AAM LP 2018
2017 12 31 PIMCO
212.0 204.0 PIMCO
2018 2017 2.3 2.5
2018 12 31
578.1 2017 626.5
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2018 2017 12 31 41.9
2018 2017 12 31
6.2 9.3
PDG
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PDG PDG
2017 11.9
PDG 2018 PDG
2017 25.0
2018 12 31 6.5
PDG 9.8 2017 8.6
2020 11 600.0
LIBOR 20 2018 12 31 2.578

AAM LP PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31
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PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
2018 2017 12
143,858 122,972
2018 2017
15,528 11,804
3.84 3.84
21.0 25.2
11.8 13.7
2.5 1.9
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2018
( )
114,192 114,192 17,932
49,195 49,195 11,804
33,344 33,344)
33,344) 33,344) 21,810
7,071) 7,071) 16,928
122,972 122,972 14,486
49,595 49,595 15,528
19,084 19,084)
19,084) 19,084) 23,594
9,625) 9,625) 14,954
143,858 143,858 13,606
11,319 24,012
15,487 2018 11,932
2018 19,084 2017
2018
2018 12 31 45,274

431 AAM LLC
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2018 2017 12 31
15.8 16.7
2018 12 31 2023 12 31
26.5
PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31
12
LTIP
2018 2017 12
31 LTIP 52.6 48.6
LTIP 2018
2017 12 31 LTIP 106.4 87.7
SPA SPA 2014
2017
2018 12 31
SPA 2017 12 31 21.2
2017 12 31

SPA
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2018 2017 12 31
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401
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299/380

1.1

Ooooooooooooooooooad

21
13.3 13.2
301
2018 12
2018 1.3



10
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2018

21

PIMCO

12 31

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
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17.7
2017 12 31

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

12 31
2018 2017
6,278 2,030,711
856,534 1,127,343
108,644,006 85,232,952
109,506,818 88,391,006
(999, 204)
(3,527,542) 3,283,956
(3,527,542) 2,284,752
105,979,276 90,675,758
39.7 34.0
2018 2017 12 31
14.4 2018 12 31
34,973,549
35,085,091
33,843,209
33,077,475
31,796,216
37,810,486

206,586,026
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2017 12 31 31.1
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2018 12 31

AAM LP

2018 12 31 2018 12 31
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PI LLC 14
13
PINCO
PINCO
14
PI LLC
15 1934 15
2018 2017 12 31 PI LLC 49.7
50.3 3.8 4.5
45.9 45.8 2018 2017 12 31 PI LLC
1.14 1.35
15
2018 2017 12 31 178.2

1.3

2018 2017

289,027,697 184,813,595
131,786 191,510
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16
2019
2019 15 22,293 PIMCO
2019 29
3,171
PIMCO 2019 14 14,516 39,684
2019 PIMCO Gurtin

Municipal Bond Management
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets
As adjusted As adjusted
Note 2018 2017 112017
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaents 2(c) $ 429,220,995 450,700,560 369,212,638
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d),5 32,459,901 17,499,478 15,079,940
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 552,952,116 594,774,505 528,155,825
Private accounts 2(e) 254,081,349 265,415,118 248,092,787
Prepaid expenses 32,694,941 32,353,593 29,806,504
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 25,166,878 31,706,344 30,734,619
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(9),9(f) 15,657,169 31,943,967 72,809,303
Receivables from affiliates 8 7,382,210 15,679,760 10,599,926
Deferred sales charges 36 — 22,123,467 15,603,998
Other current assets 43,846,429 54,450,745 51,770,261
Tota current assets 1,393,461,988 1,516,647,537 1,371,865,801
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of
$292,930,004 and $261,275,747 at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively 2(f),7 146,862,606 169,666,751 192,255,385
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(9),9(f) 460,075,450 331,335,997 217,492,628
Investments in associates 2(b) 13,463,668 101,758 103,150
Other noncurrent assets 10 29,821,480 19,752,989 21,293,880
Total noncurrent assets 650,223,204 520,857,495 431,145,043
Total assets $ 2,043,685,192 2,037,505,032 1,803,010,844
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 433,350,570 524,430,033 366,719,665
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 8 212,000,000 204,000,000 153,000,000
Accrued compensation 9 155,868,165 133,064,250 284,765,682
Commissions payable 6 102,698,345 67,149,872 47,547,207
Payables to affiliates 8 20,488,078 22,191,262 25,837,663
Deferred compensation 2(0),9(f) 15,657,169 31,943,967 72,809,303
Other lighilities 8,230,351 7,958,614 11,878,828
Total current liabilities 948,292,678 990,737,998 962,558,348
Noncurrent liahilities:
Deferred compensation 2(0),9(f) 460,075,450 331,335,997 217,492,628
Other accrued compensation 9 130,404,396 87,515,282 59,230,194
Future |ease obligations 42,013,112 44,907,555 42,772,551
Other lighilities 1,550,631 — 999,204
Total noncurrent liabilities 634,043,589 463,758,834 320,494,577
Total liabilities 1,582,336,267 1,454,496,832 1,283,052,925
Capital:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (792,957,184) (721,216,276) (806,802,240)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,267,204,122 1,290,399,100 1,274,221,216
Class M members (45,705 unitsissued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018, and as of December 31, 2017) 23,722,086 28,660,677 25,239,087
Class M unit option holders (143,858 options issued as of
December 31, 2018, and 122,972 options issued as of
December 31, 2017) 9(a) 28,576,118 30,984,305 62,079,071
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 2() (65,196,217) (45,819,606) (34,779,215)
Total capital 461,348,925 583,008,200 519,957,919
Total liabilities and capital $ 2,043,685,192 2,037,505,032 1,803,010,844

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Revenues: Note 2018 2017
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,699,085,263 3,069,733,735
Private accounts 2(e) 897,932,904 894,875,087
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,121,459,653 1,010,295,001
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 400,632,761 382,875,278
Other 2(e) 21,116,690 19,056,121
Total revenues 6,140,227,271 5,376,835,222
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 9 1,921,490,575 1,786,117,811
Commissions 6 814,837,039 393,884,056
General and administrative 2(p) 625,372,554 627,117,284
Professional fees 246,110,361 212,401,017
Occupancy and equipment 7,11 152,147,106 146,505,365
Marketing and promotional 2(k) 116,090,003 97,973,736
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 54,856,322 54,417,256
Deferred charges amortization 3 — 30,368,244
Other 63,594,897 29,364,266
Total expenses 3,994,498,857 3,378,149,035
Operating income 2,145,728,414 1,998,686,187
Other income 24,051,878 50,067,120
Equity in (loss)/income of associates 2(b) (1,873,076) 125,543
Net income before income taxes 2,167,907,216 2,048,878,850
Income tax expense 10 105,979,276 90,675,758
Net income 2,061,927,940 1,958,203,092

Other comprehensive |oss:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 2(I) (19,376,611) (11,040,391)
Comprehensive income $ 2,042,551,329 1,947,162,701

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balances at December 31, 2016

Net income

Distributions

PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:
Compensation expense
Reallocation of basis

Other comprehensive loss

Balances at December 31, 2017

Impact relating to adoption of IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Restated balances at the beginning of the

financial year

Net income

Distributions

PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:
Compensation expense
Readllocation of basis

Other comprehensive loss

Balances at December 31, 2018
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members ClassM unit option holders trandation Total
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital
850,000 $ (806,802,240) 150,000 $ 1,274,221,216 45,705 $ 25,239,087 114,192 $ 62,079,071 $ (34,779,215) $ 519,957,919
1,444,786,673 429,708,581 83,707,838 — — 1,958,203,092
(1,407,711,685) (413,530,697) (80,286,248) — — (1,901,528,630)
— — — 17,416,210 — 17,416,210
48,510,976 — — (48,510,976) — —
— — — — (11,040,391) (11,040,391)
850,000 (721,216,276) 150,000 1,290,399,100 45,705 28,660,677 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 583,008,200
(17,852,184) (3,319,784) (959,921) — — (22,131,889)
850,000 (739,068,460) 150,000 1,287,079,316 45,705 27,700,756 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 560,876,311
1,523,328,377 450,997,001 87,602,562 — — 2,061,927,940
(1,595,853,856) (470,872,195) (91,581,232) — — (2,158,307,283)
— — — 16,228,568 — 16,228,568
18,636,755 — — (18,636,755) — —
— — — — (19,376,611) (19,376,611)
850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 g 1,267,204,122 45,705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 ¢ 28,576,118 3 (65,196,217) $ 461,348,925

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,061,927,940 1,958,203,092
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,754,902 16,714,824
Depreciation and amortization 45,224,698 46,606,978
Amortization of deferred sales charges — 30,368,244
Unrealized and realized loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value through profit
and loss 173,827 (586)
Equity in loss/(income) of associates 1,873,076 (125,543)
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 7,685,839 2,758,547
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through income 4,011,361 —
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through income (19,366,964) (2,292,016)
Income taxes paid (104,148,954) (87,635,240)
Interest paid (2,258,750) (2,374,634)
Change in operating assets, liahilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable 59,695,625 (84,912,737)
Receivables from affiliates, deferred sales charges, prepaid expenses, and other assets 8,957,270 (44,952,843)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued compensation,
and income tax expense 116,569,743 143,906,563
Other liahilities, future lease obligations, and payables to affiliates (2,775,258) (6,430,815)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,193,324,355 1,969,833,834
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (30,106,393) (26,776,891)
Purchases from redemptions in associates (15,013,633) —
Net cash used in investing activities (45,120,026) (26,776,891)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 2,211,000,000 2,260,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (2,203,000,000) (2,209,000,000)
Cash distributions (2,158,307,283) (1,901,528,630)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,150,307,283) (1,850,528,630)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (19,376,611) (11,040,391)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (21,479,565) 81,487,922
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 450,700,560 369,212,638
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 429,220,995 450,700,560

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(1) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educationa institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns all 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding Il). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2018, 45,705
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (Pl LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dedler that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (collectively, PIMCO Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by
PIMCO. PI LLC isaregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is a member
of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).
StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS), awholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO, owned approximately
0.00181% interest and 0.00165% interest in StocksPLUS LP. as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branchin Italy.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.
PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) Limited (PIMCO Resources) is a company that provides global payroll
services to PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.
PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Services LLC isaholding company, with branchesin the United Kingdom and Hong Kong.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited isin the process of registering as an investment advisor
in Taiwan.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financia assets that have been measured at fair value.

After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeabl e future.
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These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on May 7,
2019.

(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to
determine whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under
the equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in PIMCQO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or
loss primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses
from changesin fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement
asto whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the
Company from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities,
including the power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the
structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only, and key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities
and a narrow and well defined objective.

() Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers al liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of less than three monthsto be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions,
nonaffiliated money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by
Allianz SE. There was $180.9 million and $143.2 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, cash equivalents deposited in the cash
pool with Allianz SE totaled $620 thousand, and $395 thousand was deposited in the cash pool at December 31,
2017. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivaents in various federally insured banking
ingtitutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federa Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage, and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to
amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.
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(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading
business model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a
short-to-moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changesin
fair value are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned
in exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative
services for the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing
costs. The performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are
substantially the same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under
management and recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided
in other periods. As the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of
assets under management, the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the
dependence on unpredictable asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is
generally once these values can be determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company
may also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles.
Such fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually
at the end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and
the fees are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behalf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the
performance obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue
amounts are based on percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the
consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset
values. The constraint is removed once these values can be determined.
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Contract assets and liabilities

Revenues related to investment advisory and administration is included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Revenues
related to distribution and servicing fees are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. The impairment of any receivables recognized
during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers was inconsequential. There are no contract
liabilities related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, fixtures, and software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
generaly threeto five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining
terms of the related |leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year theitem is sold or retired.

(g) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(h) Income Taxes

PIMCO is not subject to United States (U.S.) federal income tax asit is organized as alimited liability company
and is taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their
proportionate share of PIMCO' s taxable income. PIMCO is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the
us.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recoghized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.
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(i) Distributions

Although there is no contractua requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO limited liability company agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the
end of such quarter.

(i) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital,
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As
the Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the
Company’s management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public
entities, discounted cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the
Company’s historical and forecasted financial performance.

(K Marketing and Promotional

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(I) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been trandated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date
on which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with
a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive loss. The cumulative
tranglation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(m) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statementsin conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts
of revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management eval uates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current
economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actua results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:
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Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the
Company’s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to
the Company’s future earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(e)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation
of such entities.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future
events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision
where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is
expected to be reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(o) Deferred Compensation
The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the
carrying value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred
compensation trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(p) General and administrative
General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under

the administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The
Company is considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.
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(@ Changein Accounting Policy

During 2018, the Company evaluated its accounting policy with respect to the deferred compensation plan and
determined to change its accounting policy to a more preferable method. Previoudly, the interest in the deferred
compensation plan and the deferred compensation liabilities were not reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as the plan was accounted for by the Sponsoring Entity, AAM LP. Management determined a more
preferable treatment would be to reflect the interest in the deferred compensation trust and the deferred
compensation liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, prior year comparatives have
been adjusted to reflect this preferable accounting treatment. There was no impact to net income or capital as a
result of the retrospective application.

(3 Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized on the date of initial application. Upon
adoption, the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings was $22.1 million. This adjustment relates to sales
commissions paid to third party intermediaries in connection with the sale of shares of affiliated mutual funds sold
without a front-end sales charge which were previously capitalized. These commission costs do not meet the
criteria of incremental costs of obtaining a contract and are, therefore, expensed as incurred under IFRS 15. Any
sales commissions that are recaptured through contingent deferred sales charges are recorded as other revenue.

The most significant impact of the adoption to the Company relates to the presentation of certain distribution costs
gross within commission expense that were previously netted within investment advisory fees — pooled funds
revenue.

There was no other impact to revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018, as revenue recognition and timing
of revenue did not change as aresult of implementing IFRS 15.

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which fully replaces IAS 39 and
provides a new approach on how to classify financial instruments based on their cash flow characteristics and the
business model under which they are managed. Furthermore, the standard introduces a new forward-looking
impairment model for debt instruments and provides new rules for hedge accounting.

Financial assets such as the following categories included in IAS 39 are no longer available: held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available for sale. Rather, under IFRS 9, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

amortized cogt, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™) or fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") oninitial recognition based on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics.
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This standard did not have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements. There was no impact to
opening retained earnings aresult of applying this standard.

(4 Future Changein Accounting Policies

A number of accounting standards, interpretations, and amendments have been issued by the IASB, which are not
yet effective for the Company’s financial statements. Those that are most relevant to the Company’s financial
statements in future years are discussed below.

Leases

IFRS 16, Leases, was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016. IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most
leases within the scope of the standard in a manner similar to the way in which finance leases are currently
accounted for under 1AS 17, Leases. Lessees will recognize a right of use asset and a corresponding financial
liahility on the statements of financial position. The asset will be amortized over the length of the lease and the
financial liability measured at amortized cost. Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as under IAS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

The Company has completed its assessment of the impact on its consolidated financia statements. The Company
estimates that it will recognize approximately $236.1 million in new assets, which also reflect deferred rent and
other incentives accrued as of the transition date, and $276.8 million in new liabilities for its operating leases of
offices space.

(5) Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financia
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financia instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 — Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $32.5 million and
$17.5 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted

guoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2018 and 2017.
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The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust primarily consist of mutual funds
and equity securities, which are classified as Level 1 instruments for 2018 and 2017.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2018 or
2017.

The fair value of investment advisory fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees receivable, deferred sales
charges, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It is the Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(6) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed as incurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at arate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. The contingent deferred sales charges
are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an applicable exemption applies such as if the
redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested dividends or capital gain distributions or
appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. Pl LLC incurred $30.6 million in commissions to
third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2018, and is included in commissions in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares. The contingent
deferred sales charge rate on Class C shares is generally 1% if redeemed during the first year following purchase
for applicable PIMCO Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may aso be received on the redemption of
certain PIMCO Funds Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initia
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. PI LLC received $3.5 million in contingent deferred
sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2018 and is included in other revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(7) Property and Equipment

The mgjor classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture,
fixtures, and Leasehold
software improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2016 $ 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
Additions 24,467,417 2,309,474 — 26,776,891
Disposals (2,653,000) (105,547) — (2,758,547)
Depreciation and amortization (38,382,925) (8,224,053) — (46,606,978)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2017 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
Additions 28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
Disposals (7,685,840) — — (7,685,840)
Depreciation and amortization (35,360,085) (9,864,613) — (45,224,698)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 $ 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $45.2 million and $46.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP for certain overhead, administrative services, and occupancy
costs that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These expenses generally consist of rental costs and
salaries and related benefits for finance, information technology, and other general and administrative services.
The amount charged for such services totaled $50.4 million and $49.3 million during 2018 and 2017, respectively,
which is a component of general and administrative in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. The payable to affiliates includes a liahility to be paid to AAM LP in connection with these services and
payables to other affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have
been paid on behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $10.7 million as of December 31,
2018 and $13.6 million as of December 31, 2017.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at arate of 3-month LIBOR plus 0.5% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2018
and 2017, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, PIMCO had outstanding short-term loans totaling
$212.0 million and $204.0 million, respectively, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2018 and 2017, PIMCO incurred $2.3
million and $2.5 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially al of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees — pooled funds, administrative fees — pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had $578.1
million (2017: $626.5 million) in related receivables from &ffiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $41.9 million and $40.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, which are primarily included in investment advisory fees — private accounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $6.2 million and $9.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PIMCO Deutschland GmbH and its branches (collectively PDG), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH, who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE,
together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are subject to PIMCO’s Globa Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer
Pricing Policy) for shared management services that are provided by all PIMCO entities. Shared management
services provided include portfolio management, account management and business management and
administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared management services are alocated in accordance
with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2018, the revenue earned from third parties for shared management services
allocated to PDG was $36.9 million (2017: $11.9 million) greater than the revenue alocated from PDG and is
presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees — private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PDG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2018, costs allocated to PDG
were $30.8 million (2017: $25.0 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had a $6.5 million (2017: $11.9 million) receivable from and a $9.8
million (2017: $8.6 million) payable to PDG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and payables
to affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE, which expires in November 2020. The
facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 20bps (rate of 2.578% as of
December 31, 2018). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf of
its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2018 and 2017.
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Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 9. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one-third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option
grant date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over
the related vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless
transaction unless the participant has elected to defer their M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As
disclosed in note 9(f), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan (the EDCP). If, at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the
exercise price of the option award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of
PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt
of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units are authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, 143,858 and 122,972 options, respectively, were outstanding for M units and 45,705 M units have
been issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third party
valuation was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend
yield was estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed
to PIMCO M unit holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a
select group of peers. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one-third
in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

(Continued)
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The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 15,528 11,804
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 21.0% 25.2%
Expected dividends 11.8% 13.7%
Risk-free rate of return 2.5% 1.9%

A summary of the activity in 2018 and 2017 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the
M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Outstanding at
December 31, 2016

Changes during the year:

Granted
Vested
Exercised
Forfeited

Outstanding at
December 31, 2017

Changes during the year:

Granted
Vested
Exercised
Forfeited

Outstanding at
December 31, 2018

Exercisable as of
December 31, 2018

Weighted

average

Number of options exercise

Vested Nonvested Tota price
— 114,192 114,192 $ 17,932
— 49,195 49,195 11,804
33,344 (33,344) — —
(33,344) — (33,344) 21,810
— (7,071) (7,071) 16,928
— 122,972 122,972 $ 14,486
— 49,595 49,595 15,528
19,084 (19,084) — —
(19,084) — (19,084) 23,594
— (9,625) (9,625) 14,954
— 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2018 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $24,012
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 3.08 years.
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The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $15,487 for 2018 and
$11,932 for 2017. M unit options totaling 19,084 vested during 2018 and 33,344 options vested during 2017.
The M unit estimated fair values as of the vesting dates were less than the exercise price of each of these option
awards. Therefore, as a result of the automatic cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued in 2018 or
2017 and the entire Black-Scholes amount was reallocated from the Class M unit option capital account to the
Class A member capital account in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital. No other
M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2018, 45,274 M units are owned by current
employees and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total humber of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $15.8 million and $16.7 million, respectively, and is
included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2018, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested
M unit option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through
December 31, 2023 is $26.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation under these programs was $1.2 billion for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
expense under the LTIP of $52.6 million and $48.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $106.4
million and $87.7 million at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included within current accrued
compensation and noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financia condition.

(Continued)
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(d) Special Performance Award

The Specia Performance Award (SPA) was an enhancement to compensation. The SPA consists of deferred

cash awards granted during the 4" quarter of 2014, which were earned and payable at various dates through
mid-2017. The purpose of the program was to secure performance and to retain talent. There were no expenses
recorded by the Company related to the SPA during the year ended December 31, 2018, and $21.2 million
during the year ended December 31, 2017, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The SPA liability was fully paid as of
December 31, 2017.

(e) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP is the sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering PIMCO
employees. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Interna Revenue Code and alows €ligible
employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is subject to a maximum
dollar amount determined from time to time by the Interna Revenue Code. Employees are generally eligible
following the later of attainment of age 21 or on the first day of the month following the start date. After the
completion of one year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to
the Internal Revenue Code limits, contributed by the employees. The amount expensed by the Company related
to this plan during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $13.3 million and $13.2 million,
respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

() Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company will be mandatorily deferred and pursuant to
which such eligible employees may elect to defer additional amounts of compensation. The plan is maintained
primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly
compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the plan are invested in
marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the employees and are held in
agrantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing activities of the Company and
only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency. Tota investments and
restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability as of December 31, 2018 and as
December 31, 2017 was $475.7 million and $363.3 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financia condition.

(9) Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz
SE determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines
the discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and amounted to $1.1 million in 2018 and $1.3 million in 2017 and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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(10) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2018 2017
Current:

Federal $ 6,278 2,030,711
State 856,534 1,127,343
Foreign 108,644,006 85,232,952
Tota current 109,506,818 88,391,006

Deferred:
Federal — (999,204)
Foreign (3,527,542) 3,283,956
Total deferred (3,527,542) 2,284,752
Total provision $ 105,979,276 90,675,758

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, income taxes payable amounted to $39.7 million and $34.0 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, deferred tax assets amounted
to $17.7 million and $14.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2018 amounted to
$21 thousand. There were no deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2017. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liahilities are included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(Continued)
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(11) Lease Commitments

PIMCO leases office space under noncancelable operating leases with terms in excess of one year and future
minimum payments are as follows:

Year ending December 31:

2019 $ 34,973,549
2020 35,085,091
2021 33,843,209
2022 33,077,475
2023 31,796,216
Thereafter 37,810,486

Total $ 206,586,026

Rent expense under these leases was $31.1 million and $29.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. Certain |ease agreements provide for rental escalations over the
term of the operating lease. The Company recognizes the rental increases over the terms of the leases on a straight
-line basis.

(12) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

() Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
bank deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually
material to the Company’s operations.

(Continued)
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The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does
not require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for
each customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of
collection on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual
customer has been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financia obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aways have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2018.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial
obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company has access to AAM LFP's line of credit with Allianz SE as
discussed in note 8.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk istherisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The mgjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions aso occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

(Continued)
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Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds
the Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material
investments in such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in
accordance with client guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2018, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material
differences to members capital as of December 31, 2018 or the reported comprehensive income for the year
then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Company’ s approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl LLC (see note 14) and certain foreign
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(13) Provisions

PIMCO is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which arise in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financial position or results of operations. Management
believes that they have made appropriate estimates for provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition and in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The
Company expenses related legal fees as incurred.

(14) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net
capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15-to-1. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, PI LLC had net capita of
$49.7 million and $50.3 million, respectively, for regulatory purposes, which was $45.9 million and $45.8
million, respectively, in excess of its required net capital of $3.8 million and $4.5 million, respectively. Pl LLC's
aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio was 1.14-to-1 and 1.35-to-1 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

(Continued)
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(15) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $178.2
thousand and $1.3 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees — pooled funds in the
accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

2018 2017
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 289,027,697 184,813,595
Investment advisory fees
receivable — pooled funds 131,786 191,510

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through May 7, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 22,293 vested on January 15, 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards were
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 3,171 M units.

On March 14, 2019, PIMCO granted 39,684 M unit options that have an exercise price of $14,516 per unit.

On January 2, 2019, PIMCO fully acquired the equity interest in Gurtin Municipal Bond Management, a
municipal bond manager.
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526,417,908 56,042,450
18,904,554 2,012,579
509,900,465 54,284,004
302,071,688 32,158,552
36,867,533 3,924,918
23,150,697 2,464,623
17,604,135 1,874,136
10,852,543 1,155,362
56,079,480 5,970,221
1,501,849,003 159,886,845
150,530,886 16,025,518
221,565,313 23,587,843
565,976,329 60,253,840
12,618,124 1,343,325
30,864,520 3,285,837
58,362,220 6,213,242
1,039,917,392 110,709,606
2,541,766,395 270,596,450
400,371,911 42,623,594
486,538,567 51,796,896
109,347,421 11,641,126
30,035,601 3,197,590
18,364,844 1,955,121
17,604,135 1,874,136
13,136,414 1,398,503
1,075,398,893 114,486,966
565,976,329 60,253,840
232,900,862 24,794,626
113,717,301 12,106,344
2,782,918 296,269
915,377,410 97,451,079
1,990,776,303 211,938,045

(718,894, 499)

(76,533,508)

1,278,465,927 136,105,483
27,621,882 2,940,626
25,867,868 2,753,893

(62,071,086) (6,608,088)
550,990,092 58,658,405
2,541,766,395 270,596,450
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1,754,941,154 186,831,035
492,969,941 52,481,580
554,379,338 59,019,224
185,124,457 19,708,350

11,784,089 1,254,534

2,999,198,979 319,294,723
936,982,110 99,751,115
425,097,429 45,255,872
320,280,419 34,097,053
101,131,473 10,766,457

71,616,472 7,624,290
57,082,620 6,077,016
23,308,735 2,481,448
12,711,464 1,353,262
1,948,210,722 207,406,513
1,050,988, 257 111,888,210
7,107,693 756,685
(6,783,645) (722,187)
(760,018) (80,912)
1,050,552, 287 111,841,796
47,186,828 5,023,510
1,003,365,459 106,818,287
3,125,131 332,701
1,006,490,590 107,150,988
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(668,394,234) (71,157,250) (213,348,887) (22,713,123) (42,436,427) (4,517,782) - - - - (924,179,548) (98,388,155)

PINCO
- - - - - - 7,330,125 780,365 - - 7,330,125 780,365
9,735,516 1,036,443 - - 302,859 32,242 (10,038,375) (1,068,685) - - - -
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1,003,365,459 106,818,287
7,117,776 757,758
33,336,196 3,548,971
6,783,645 722,187
760,018 80,912
68,401 7,282
(72,616) (7,731)
14,132,707 1,504,568
(401,218) (42,714)
(86,028, 269) (9,158,570)
(6,821,123) (726,177)
2,776,915 295,630
(20,273,676) (2,158, 336)
359,744,365 38,298,385
1,352,133 143,948
1,315,840,713 140,084,402
(51,884,452) (5,523,619)
(19,717,309) (2,099,105)
(18,000) (1,916)
(71,619,761) (7.624,640)
1,318,000,000 140,314,280

(1,530,000,000)
(924,179,548)
(13,969, 622)

(162,883,800)
(98,388, 155)
(1,487,206)

(1,150,149,170)

(122,444,881)

3,125,131 332,701

97,196,913 10,347,583
429,220,995 45,694,867
526,417,908 56,042,450
233,386,374 24,846,313
(272,699,025) (29,031,538)

39,312,651 4,185,225
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2018 12
525
2018 12 1,650.4
BMA
2008 12 | 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 12 | 2014 12 | 2015 12 | 2016 12 | 2017 12 | 2018 12
819 697 661 613 529 478 457 429 392
76 72 64 47 44 42 40 38 68
220 203 172 119
83 86 79 68 62 72 65 69 35
336 343 229 209
1,534 1,401 1,205 1,056 635 592 562 536 495
71 53 39 39 58 57 52 52 28
84 108 101 95 83 60 47 36 44
198 201 175 155
353 362 315 289 141 117 99 88 72
1,887 1,763 1,520 1,345
1,133 1,016 1,205 1,056 776 709 661 624 567 543 525
1,711.9 1,544.5 1,812.4 1,604.4 1,842.6 1,758.0 1,750.2 1,442.2 1,371.5 1,615.4 1,650.4
( 18 ( 16 ( 19 ( 17 ( 19 ( 18 ( 18 ( 15 ( 14 (17 ( 17
2,249 ) |4,427 ) |2,948 ) |84 ) |6,263 ) |7.157 ) l6.,326 ) [3,537 ) |6,000 ) |1,975 ) |5,702 )
BMA 2012
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee of PIMCO Bermuda Trust:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (J TF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Yen-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund II,
PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund , PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO
Short-Term Strategy (the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules
of investments, as of May 31, 2018 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for
PIMCO Real Return Fund the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the financial highlights for each
of the periods indicated therein. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively
referred to as "financial statements’.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financia statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosuresin the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the financial
position of each Fund as of May 31, 2018, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net
assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund the results of its cash flows for the year then ended, and each of their
financia highlights for the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 8, 2018
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively referred to
as the “Funds”), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31,
2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-
Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These
financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as “financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2019

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2019

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2019, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of each of
the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2019, and the results of each of their operations, the changes in each of
their net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their cash flows, and
each of their financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 6, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying 2018 consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries  the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31,
2018, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in capital, and cash flows for the
year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statementsin
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pecific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(q) to the consolidated financia statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for
deferred compensation in 2018. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

The consolidated financia statements of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and for the year then ended, prior to the
retrospective change in accounting for deferred compensation as discussed in Note 2(q), were audited by other auditors whose
report, dated March 22, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

We also have audited the adjustments to retrospectively apply the change in accounting for deferred compensation as discussed
in Note 2(g). In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit,
review, or apply any procedures to the 2017 financia statements of the Company other than with respect to the adjustments
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2017 financial statements taken as a
whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Los Angeles, California
May 7, 2019
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